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UNITED STATES COMMISSION ON CIVIL
RIGHTS

Tuesday, August 17, 1976

The U.S. Commission on Civil Rights met at 8:55 a.m. in the Exposi-
tion Hall, Corpus Christi, Texas, Arthur S. Flemming, Chairman,
presiding.

PRESENT: Arthur S. Flemming, Chairman; Frankie M. Freeman,
Commissioner; Manuel Ruiz, Jr., Commissioner; John A. Buggs, Staff
Director; Lawrence Glick, Acting General Counsel; Ruthie Taylor,
Assistant General Counsel; and Gloria Cabrera, Southwest Region at-
torney.

PROCEEDINGS

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. It’s before 9:00 a.m., but persons who are
going to participate in the opening of the hearing are here and, in the
interest of utilizing our time in the most effective manner, I think we’ll
get underway. First thing that I would like to do is to recognize our
welcoming comments by the Most Reverend Patrick F. Flores, Chair-
person of the Texas Advisory Committee. I know accompanying him
is one of his associates on the Advisory Commitfee. And Mr. Flores,
I suggest that after you make your remarks that you introduce your
associate so that he also can make any remarks that he desires to
make at this time.

We’re very happy to recognize you. And in recognizing you, I want
to express to you and your associate our deep appreciation for the ser-
vice that you have been rendering. We want to commend particularly
the hearings that were held here in the early part of May.

STATEMENT OF THE MOST REVEREND PATRICK F. FLORES, CHAIRPERSON,
TEXAS ADVISORY COMMITTEE TO THE U.S. COMMISSION ON CIVIL RIGHTS

REVEREND FrLoRres. Thank you very much. Chairman Flemming,
Commissioner Freeman, and Commissioner Ruiz, on behalf of the 19
members of the Texas Advisory Committee to the Commission on
Civil Rights, it is an honor for me and a pleasure to welcome you to
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the State of Texas. Several prominent citizens of this State have been
a part of the Commission. In the early days, the Vice Chairman of the
Civil Rights Commission was Dr. Robert Story, who was then dean of
the law school at Southern Methodist University and the former pre-
sident of the American Bar Association. We’re also very proud to have
on our Committee Dr. Hector P. Garcia, former member of the Com-
mission and a prominent national civil rights leader. Other Advisory
Committee members from the Corpus Christi area are State Represen-
tative Carlos Truan, Dr. Nancy Bowen, professor of government, and
Mr. Paul Montemayor with the United Steel Workers.

As Commissioner Freeman, I am sure, will remember, it was 8 years
ago that the United States Commission on Civil Rights held a hearing
in San Antonio. It is significant to note that a substantial part of that
hearing dealt with the problems facing minority students in public
schools in this State. Since that time the Texas Advisory Committee
has continued to examine laws and policies that affect people in vari-
ous ways. A great deal of our work has been in following up and dis-
seminating the Commission’s six reports on the education of Mexican
Americans in the Southwest. We have been very involved in making
recommendations to the Texas State Legislature in the area of school
finance reform. This is a critical area that affects blacks, Mexican
Americans, and the poor white children.

I would like to commend the Commissioners for undertaking this
major effort in examining the styles of school desegregation throughout
the country. We are especially pleased that you have decided to follow
up the hearings held in Corpus Christi in May of this year.

There is absolutely nothing that is more important to us than an
equal education for all children of this State. We’re still a long way
from reaching that goal, but the activity undertaken by the Texas Ad-
visory Committee coupled with this Commission’s hearings represent
substantial progress towards that end.

Again, I’d like to welcome you to Texas. We all hope that your ef-
forts will bear fruit, in particular for all the students of this State and
of Corpus Christi. Welcome, Dr. Flemming.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Thank you very, very much. We appreciate
your words of welcome. We’re delighted to be here in order to follow
up on some of the activities of you and your associates.

You refer to Dr. Story as a former member of this Commission, and
it was my privilege to serve with him as a member of the Hoover Com-
mission on reorganization of the Executive branch of the Government.
Like everyone else, I developed a very high regard [inaudible].

We’d be very happy at this time to listen to the chairman of the sub-
committee on education who came to the hearings here in Corpus
Christi in May. Milton, I'm delighted to have you with us and ap-
preciate your being here today.



3

WELCOMING STATEMENT OF MILTON TOBIAN, MEMBER, TEXAS ADVISORY
COMMITTEE TO THE U.S. COMMISSION ON CIVIL RIGHTS

MR. ToBiaN. Thank you, Dr. Flemming. It is my pleasure as a
member of the Texas Advisory Committee to welcome to Texas the
three of you, our Commissioners, the Honorable Arthur Flemming, the
Honorable Frankie Freeman, and the Honorable Manuel Ruiz.

As you know, one of the functions of the State Advisory Committee
is to advise the Commission of any knowledge it has regarding the
deprivation of voting rights and of any constitutional violations relating
to the equal protection of the laws. They also have the responsibility
to assist the Commission in those matters in which the Commission
shall request assistance and to generally act as a factfinding for the
U.S. Commission on Civil Rights.

In early May of this year, the Texas Advisory Committee conducted
hearings in Corpus Christi on school desegregation as part of the Com-
mission’s national program. The purpose of that hearing was to gain
a perspective on how the desegregation process in this community was
able to benefit. We were aware that Corpus Christi has been dealing
with this issue for more than 10 years, 8 of which have been spent in
the long and costly litigative process. We were also aware of the ex-
tremely complex social, economic, and political factors involved. And
taking all of these factors into consideration, we tried as best we could
to obtain an objective and well-balanced overview of the issues.

Briefly, the primary objectives of our hearing were as follows: firstly,
to influence in a positive manner a future course of the school
desegregation in Corpus Christi. Secondly, to promote a more effective
decisionmaking process within the school system that would be respon-
sive to the needs of the total community. Thirdly, to assist in informing
the community on the need for extensive and effective bilingual and
bicultural programs. And fourthly, to promote a greater awareness of
the unique problems affecting this community with respect to school
desegregation.

It was in this context that the Advisory Committee examined the
need for school desegregation in Corpus Christi. We first took
testimony on the effects of a segregated system upon the Anglos, the
Mexican Americans, and the blacks in the community. The historical
sequence of events and the constitutional basis for desegregation was
laid out and established with respect to the litigation process. The Ad-
visory Committee carefully examined the events and conditions leading
up to the filing of the Cisneros lawsuit. The plaintiffs, who were by
definition intimately involved in the lawsuit, gave to us their personal
reasons for finally entering the suit against the district, after having ex-
hausted all other avenues of relief.

It was established that numerous opportunities for resolving the issue
of desegregation were afforded but never positively received by the
school district. The most praiseworthy element in Corpus Christi’s
desegregation situation was the involvement of community leadership
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in ensuring peaceful implementation of the plan. The role here of the
media was responsible and skilled. The role of local business, profes-
sional, and religious leaders was crucial and effective. Those leaders
identified for us the key factors which have set Corpus Christi apart
from other communities where implementation of desegregation has
met active and sometimes violent resistance.

The Advisory Committee heard testimony from leaders of the Con-
cerned Neighbors Organization, a group opposed to most measures
necessary to desegregate. We did gain valuable insight into what they
felt were the important ingredients that should be considered in a
desegregation effort.

We examined the court-ordered computer plan; how it evolved, and
its impact on the school district and the communities as a whole. The
Advisory Committee made the determination that supposed arithmetic
goals and a seemingly impartial selection process had perhaps been ap-
proached at the expense of some valid educational values.

In order to get a greater insight into the background of policy for-
mations surrounding integration, and into those measures taken or not
taken to prepare for and implement school desegregation, Superinten-
dent Dana Williams was invited to testify. He, as chief administrator
for the district, and only he had the information needed to fill out the
record and compete the educational picture of the district. This
testimony was not forthcoming. He refused to testify. We feel that his
refusal was truly unfortunate and a disservice to the Committee and
the entire Corpus Christi community. As a public official, he had the
responsibility to share with us and of his knowledge and experience.

Also invited were members of the school board, and they provided
some insight on how the school district responded to desegregation.
They also provided their ideas and perceptions on such issues as board
leadership, accountability, and the need to respond to the educational
requirements of Mexican Americans, Anglo, and black children.

Finally, we discussed the need in Corpus Christi for effective bilin-
gual and bicultural education and the philosophical and educational
basis for it. The importance of the Lau decision, if it is ever imple-
mented on the educational system in this community, was also looked
into.

Dr. Jose Cardenas, executive director of the Intercultural Develop-
ment Research Association of San Antonio, summed up the hearing by
pointing out the importance of desegregation for all segments of the
community. He also discussed the necessary elements needed to make
a desegregation plan comprehensive and workable.

In studying the situation in Corpus Christi, the Advisory Committee
became increasingly aware of the gulf that currently separates the
larger community from school administration. It should be noted that
many desegregation plans were submitted by the school district,
private citizens, the courts, consultants, and Federal agencies before
the so-called computer plan was first ordered into operation for the
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1975-76 school year. At no time during this 8-year period of intense
litigation and legal maneuvering did the school district take the initia-
tive. The only plan put into effect during this period was a voluntary
majority-to-minority plan, which was implemented during the 74-75
school year.

When this plan predictably failed to meet the court’s standard for
desegregation, the court mandated that the district must come up with
a more effective plan. Ultimately the computer plan was put into
operation, and even more recently, the court has ordered the district
to desegregate junior high schools.

In closing, the Texas Advisory Committee is very pleased the Com-
mission has decided to come to Corpus Christi to get a firsthand idea
of what has transpired over the years in this community concerning
school desegregation. We hope that the insights you gain today will not
only help Corpus Christi but in a significant measure contribute to the
realization of educational promise for children throughout the Nation.

I thank you very much.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. We thank you very, very much.

Both you and the Chairman have referred to the fact that the Com-
mission is in the middle of a nationwide study relative to the status of
desegregation. About 10 months ago now—as a result of our ex-
perience in connection with a public hearing in Boston—we decided
that for a period, approximately a year, we would put major emphasis
on the issue of desegregation. As a Commission, we feel that the
desegregation of our public schools is the single most important issue
confronting us in the field of civil rights at the present time. If we
retreat or if we fail to move forward in this particular area, we will
be undermining the foundation on which our whole civil rights move-
ment rests.

As I've indicated, we had a full public hearing in Boston. We have
held similar hearings in Denver, Colorado; Tampa, Florida; and
Louisville, Kentucky. Prior to the hearings that I have just identified,
our staff went into the communities and they interviewed around 4,000
to 4,500 persons. Then over a period of 3 to 5 days, we listened to
testimony under oath from close to 500 witnesses. We decided that in
addition to holding those public hearings, we would ask for State Ad-
visory Committees to conduct hearings relative to situations in school
disticts within their State.

As you have indicated, we did request the Texas Advisory Commit-
tee to conduct a hearing in Corpus Christi, and you have given us an
excellent summary of what took place at that hearing. In addition,
we’ve asked 25 other State Advisory Committees working with our re-
gional staff to conduct case studies of what has happened in the area
of desegregation in 25 other school districts. Then, in addition to that,
using an instrument developed by our research department, we have
sampled the public opinion in several hundred other school districts.
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We have been in the process of evaluating this evidence and arriving
at conclusions based on the evidence that has been presented to us.
Next week, we will release a public report in which we will set forth
a summary of the evidence that has been presented to us and in which
we will set forth our own conclusions on the basis of evaluating the
evidence.

Reading the report of the hearings conducted in Corpus Christi, we
took note of the fact that as you expressed it, you found it impossible
to fill out the record. In other words, you were unable to obtain
testimony from the school administration. We decided, therefore, that
in order to fill out and round out the record, that it was important for
us to come to Corpus Christi and to utilize the authority that has been
conferred on us by the Congress, in order to round out or fill out the
record.

It so happened that I was serving as a member of President Eisen-
hower’s Cabinet at the time that the Executive branch had under con-
sideration a legislative proposal which led to, ultimately, the Civil
Rights Act of 1957. In the Cabinet discussions, the question was raised
as to whether or not it would be desirable to have a Civil Rights Com-
mission. Some of the members of the Cabinet told the President that
he could set up a commission by Executive order, but his response
was, yes, I can set it up by Executive order but I could not confer on
it the right to subpena witnesses and to put witnesses under oath. And
said, I believe that it is important to have in the picture a commission
which is in a position where it can get all of the facts on top of the
table. Therefore, I think we ought to ask the Congress to create such
a commission, and to confer on the commission the authority to sub-
pena witnesses and put witnesses under oath. The experiences that the
Commission has had since 1957 bear out the wisdom of the late Pre-
sident’s view as far as this particular issue is concerned.

I am accompanied, as you have indicated, today by two of my col-
leagues. Commissioner Freeman is now the oldest member of the
Commission in point of service. I always get that in very, very quickly.
She was appointed by the late President Johnson and has served on
the Commission ever since. The Commission—as some of you know,
Commissioner Freeman is a very distinguished trial lawyer from St.
Louis, Missouri, and certainly has been one of the active leaders in the
whole civil rights movement down through the years.

I'm also accompanied by Commissioner Manuel Ruiz, who is a very
distinguished international lawyer from the city of Los Angeles. He has
now served on the Commission for a number of years and has been
a tremendous help to the members of the Commission.

We’re also accompanied by John Buggs, who is the Staff Director
of the Commission.

As | know you appreciate, this is a part-time Commission as far as
service is concerned. All members of the Commission have other as-
signments. Therefore, we are very dependent on the quality of leader-
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ship that we receive from our Staff Director, and we have come to rely
very heavily on John Buggs. We have come to appreciate very, very
much the quality of his leadership in this area. He is assisted by a staff
of approximately 250, some of whom work out of our regional offices.

Then on my left is Lawrence Glick, who is the Acting General
Counsel of the Commission. When 1 served as Secretary of Health,
Education, and Welfare [HEW], Mr. Glick was a member of the legal
staff of that particular department. He has now been with the Civil
Rights Commission 14 years. Then he is being assisted today by one
of his associates, Ruthie Taylor, who is on his left.

It is our practice in holding a public hearing to first of all make sure
of the fact that all who are participating in the hearing and all who
are observing the hearing are notified of our hearing rules and
procedures. At this time, I'm going to ask that Commissioner Freeman,
if she will, go over these hearing rules and procedures for us.

Before she does, now, I again say to both of you, thanks so much
for the leadership you provided, for the advice that you are giving this
Commission, and thanks so much for conducting in the way in which
you did the hearing here in Corpus Christi. We will not be going into
a great many things that we would normally go into when we come
into a city for a hearing. We’re not going to do it because you’ve done
it and the record is available to us.

We’re all had the opportunity of reading summaries of that record.
As indicated, we are here now simply to round out the record and to
get on record testimony which we agree with you is necessary if we
are to have an indepth understanding of the situation that exists in
Corpus Christi. Thank you so much. Commissioner Freeman.

CoMMISSIONER FREEMAN. Thank you, Dr. Flemming.

At the outset I should emphasize that the observations I am about
to make on the Commission’s rules constitute nothing more than brief
summaries of the significant provisions. The rules themselves should be
consulted for fuller understanding. Staff members will be available to
answer questions which arise during the course of the hearing.

In outlining the procedures which will govern the hearing, I think
that it is important to explain briefly a special Commission procedure
for testimony or evidence which may tend to defame, degrade, or in-
criminate any person. Section 102(E) of our statute provides and I
quote:

If the Commission determines that evidence or testimony at any
hearing may tend to defame, degrade, or incriminate any person,
it shall receive such evidence or testimony in executive session.
The Commission shall afford any person defamed, degraded or in-
criminated by such evidence or testimony an opportunity to ap-
pear and be heard in executive session with a reasonable number
of additional witnesses requested by him before deciding to use
such evidence or testimony.
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When we use the term “executive session” we mean the session in
which only the Commissioners are present, in contrast to a session
such as this, in which the public is invited and present.

In providing for an executive or closed session for testimony which
may tend to defame, degrade, or incriminate any person, Congress
clearly intended to give the fullest protection to individuals by afford-
ing them an opportunity to show why any testimony which might be
damaging to them should not be presented to the public.

Congress also wished to minimize damage to reputations as much as
possible and to provide persons an opportunity to rebut unfounded
charges before they were well publicized. Therefore, the Commission,
when appropriate, convenes an executive session prior to the receipt
of anticipated defamatory testimony.

Following the presentation of the testimony in executive session, and
any statement of opposition to it, the Commissioners review the sig-
nificance of the testimony and the merit of the opposition to it. In the
event we find the testimony to be of insufficient credibility or the op-
position to it to be of sufficient merit, we may refuse to hear certain
witnesses even though those witnesses have been subpenaed to testify
in public session.

An executive session is the only portion of any hearing which is not
opened to the public. The hearing which begins now is open to all and
the public is invited and urged to attend all of the open sessions.

All persons who are scheduled to appear who live or work in Texas
or within 50 miles of the hearing site have been subpenaed by the
Commission. All testimony at the public session will be under oath and
will be transcribed verbatim by the official reporter.

Everyone who testifies or submits data or evidence is entitled to ob-
tain a copy of the transcript on payment of costs. In addition, within
60 days after the close of the hearing, a person may ask to correct
errors in the transcript of the hearing of his or her testimony. Such
requests will be granted only to make the transcript conform to
testimony as presented at the hearing.

All witnesses are entitled to be accompanied and advised by counsel.
After the witness has been questioned by the Commission, counsel
may subject his or her client to reasonable examination within the
scope of the questions asked by the Commission. He or she also may
make objections on the record and argue briefly the basis for such ob-
jections.

Should any witness fail or refuse to follow any order made by the
Chairman or the Commissioner presiding in his absence, his or her
behavior will be considered disorderly and the matter will be referred
to the U.S. Attorney for enforcement pursuant to the Commission’s
statutory powers.

If the Commission determines that any witness’ testimony tends to
defame, degrade, or incriminate any person, that person or his or her
counsel may submit written questions which in the discretion of the
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Commission may be put to the witness. Such person also has a right
to request that witnesses be subpenaed on his or her behalf.

All witnesses have the right to submit statements prepared by them-
selves or others for inclusion in the record, provided they are sub-
mitted within the time required by the rules. Any person who has not
been subpenaed may be permitted in the discretion of the Commission
to submit a written statement at this public hearing. Such statement
will be reviewed by members of the Commission and made -a part of
the record. .

Witnesses at Commission hearings are protected by the provision of
Title 18, U.S. Code, section 1505, which makes it a crime to threaten,
intimidate, or injure witnesses on account of their attendance at
Government proceedings. The Commission should immediately be in-
formed of any allegations relating to possible intimidation of witnesses.
Let me emphasize that we consider this a very serious matter, and we
will do all in our power to protect witnesses who appear at the hear-
ing.

Copies of the rules which govern this hearing may be secured from
a member of the Commission’s staff. Persons who have been sub-
penaed have already been given their copies.

Finally, I should point out that these rules were drafted with the in-
tent of ensuring the Commission hearings be conducted in a fair and
impartial manner. In many cases the Commission has gone significantly
beyond congressional requirements in providing safeguards for wit-
nesses and other persons. We have done that in the belief that useful
facts can be developed best in an atmosphere of calm and objectivity.
We hope that such an atmosphere will prevail at this hearing.

With respect to the conduct of persons in this hearing room, the
Commission wants to make clear that all orders by the Chairman must
be obeyed. Failure by any person to obey an order by Dr. Flemming,
or the Commmissioner presiding in his absence, will result in the ex-
clusion of the individual from this hearing room and criminal prosecu-
tion by the U.S. Attorney when required. The Federal marshals in and
around this hearing have been thoroughly instructed by the Commis-
sion on hearing procedures and their orders are also to be obeyed.

This hearing, which began at 9:00 a.m., will be in public session and
will continue without a recess until its conclusion at 2:30 p.m.

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Thank you very much, Commissioner
Freeman.

I would like to recognize Mr. Glick, Acting General Counsel.

MR. GLick. Mr. Chairman, two small items of business. I would like,
with your permission, to introduce into the record as Exhibit No. 1,
the notice published in the Federal Register in Washington on July 14,
1976, advising the public that this hearing would be held pursuant to
our statute.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Without objection it will be admitted.
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MR. GLICK. Secondly, I would like Ms. Norma Valle to step forward
please and be sworn.

[Ms. Valle was sworn.]

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Counsel will call the first witness.

MR. Guick. Mr. Chairman, our first witness for today is Mr. Dana
Williams, Superintendent of the Corpus Christi Independent School
District.

Mr. Williams, would you step forward? Will you remain standing and
be sworn?

[Mr. Williams was sworn.]

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Thank you very much, sir.

TESTIMONY OF DANA WILLIAMS, SUPERINTENDENT, CORPUS CHRISTI
INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

MR. Guick. Mr. Williams, are you accompanied by counsel this
morning?

DR. WILLIAMS. | am accompanied by counsel.

MR. GLICK. May [ ask counsel to identify himself for the record?

MR. GARY. My name is J.W. Gary. | am the attorney for the Corpus
Christi Independent School District. With your permission, Mr. Chair-
man, we would like to also have seated with us, for the purpose of tak-
ing notes, Dr. Williams’ secretary as far as—

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Okay.

MR. GLick. I might point out, at your request, the Commission will
be happy to furnish you with a copy of your testimony here this morn-
ing as soon as the transcript has been presented.

DRr. WiLL1aMs. Thank you very much. I really—I was not advised
about the kind of questions I might be asked this morning. I thought
if I had my notebook keeper here, she might be able to assist me in
responding to any question.

MR. GLick. Just for the record, please, Dr. Williams, will you identi-
fy yourself, your name, your title, and business address?

DR. WiLLiaMS. Yes. My name is Dana Williams. I'm the Superinten-
dent of Schools cf the Corpus Christi Independent School District. My
office is 801 Leopard Street.

MR. Grick. How long have you been superintendent in Corpus
Christi?

Dr. WiLLIaMS. I came to Corpus Christi in 1962. I completed 14
years of superintendent of schools here.

MR. GLICK. Thank you, sir. Have you a prepared statement that you
may wish to present to the Commission?

DRr. WiLL1aMS. I do not, sir.

MR. GLIck. Thank you, sir. Mr. Williams, can you tell me the annual
budget of the Corpus Christi Independent School District?

DRr. WiLLiaMs. Well, the total budget for the school district is ap-
proximately $52 million. General operating budget—it runs in excess
of about $30 to $32, $35 million.
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MR. GLick. The balance is for facility improvements and things of
that nature?

DR. WiLLIAMS. Also all sorts of programs not involved in the regular
operating budget, including Federal programs, transportation systems,
the school food service, athletics, those—all types of operations not
necessarily associated with the—with our major budget as we operate
under Texas law.

MR. Gurick. I see. Mr. Williams, beginning in 1968 and with jurisdic-
tion still maintained by Federal district court, there has been litigation
underway for the purpose of desegregating the Corpus Christi public
schools. During that period from 1968 until the present, has the ad-
ministration, independently or by direction of the board, voluntarily
undertaken any measures to achieve desegregation of public schools?

Dr. WiLLIAMS. Well, we’ve done what we thought we could do
working with our court and trying to determine basically what the law
of the land was. We’ve made it our business to try to pursue this case
through all the legal avenues that were available to us in the country.

The case was, I guess, could be considered by many as being a land-
mark and when we found—when the decision was finally made by the
court, then we’ve been working with the court for a reasonable solu-
tion to the remaining problem and that is the student assignment plan.

MR. GLIck. Student assignment plan. Did the school district prepare
a plan for submission to the court?

DRr. WiLLiaMs. We have prepared many plans for the court, yes, sir.

MR. GLIck. Can you give me an idea of the main component of the
plans that have been—

Dr. WiLLiaAMS. The more recent that we prepared, more recent one,
of course, is the—are you having trouble, Mr. Glick? Is that not work-
ing? Are you all hearing me? I'll get a little closer to the microphone.
I noticed he’s having trouble.

We more recently prepared a plan for the court which was the pair-
ing plan for junior high schools. We submitted two in the spring to the
court, and more recently one approved by the board. So, I would say
that we sent up about three different plans to the court for desegrega-
tion of junior high schools during the last few months.

MR. Grick. Did you submit any plans for desegregation of the ele-
mentary schools?

DRr. WiLLiams. Well, we—yes, we submitted many plans for the
desegregation of elementary schools.

MR. GLick. Were these plans accepted by the court?

DRr. WiLLIaMS. No, they were not.

MR. GLIck. Do you have any conclusions as to why they were not
accepted by the court?

DRr. WiLLiams. Well, no, I really don’t know, Mri. Glick, why the
court did not accept the plans we submitted. I just don’t have an
answer.
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MR. GLick. I understand that there was, at one time, a plan that was
labeled—I don’t know how accurately—a freedom-of-choice plan in
the independent school district?

DRr. WiLLIAMS. Yes.

MR. GLick. Can you tell us what period of time that was?

Dr. WiLLiaMs. | would say, Mr. Glick, it was either in 73 or '74,
and it was an agreed-upon plan that was submitted to the court by
both the plaintiffs and the school district.

MRr. Grick. The freedom-of-choice plan was a stipulated plan by
both parties?

DRr. WiLLIAMS. It was agreed upon by both parties, yes.

MR. GLICK. I see. You think that the acceptance of that plan would
have resulted in full desegregation of the public schools?

Dr. WiLLiams. Well, we simply were attempting to follow the
guidelines laid down by the Fifth Circuit which provided certain op-
portunities for the school district to make certain kinds of steps. One
of the points made by the plaintiffs was that the students should have
an opportunity to choose his own school. We made—we simply
thought it, be appropriate without transportation time, and the year
was late. We simply thought that there might be a significant dif-
ference made in the percentage of students attending schools, so we
suggested that to the courts along with the plaintiffs and the court ac-
cepted it.

MR. GLick. And the courts did not accept the plan?

DRr. WiLLiaMS. The court did accept it.

MR. GLick. The court did accept the plan?

DRr. WiLLIaMS. Yes, sir. We operated under the freedom-of-choice
plan for 1 year.

MR. GLick. But subsequently the plaintiffs objected to the plan, is
that why it was not continued?

Dr. WiLLiaMms. Well, at the end of ’73-74—the end of '73-74 the
court found that there had not been significant changes in the racial-
ethnic composition of our schools and said we will not continue with
the freedom-of-choice plan.

MR. GLick. I see. And then subsequently a plan was prepared, and
proposed, and accepted by the court, but it was not the school dis-
trict’s plan, as I understand: this was 19737

DRr. WiLL1aMS. I don’t believe I understand your question.

MR. Grick. The plan that was finally accepted in 1973 was not the
plan proposed by the administration?

Dr. WiLLiaMs. No. You are right, sir, it was not.

MR. GLick. The plan that was accepted was the one that was labeled
the computer plan?

DRr. WiLLiaMs. That’s correct, sir.

MR. GLIcK. And that plan is the one that’s in effect for the Corpus
Christi Independent School District?

DR. WiLL1aMs. That’s correct.
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MRr. GLick. Mr. Williams, it’s my understanding from the interview
that you and I had some weeks ago, that you were one of the founders
and, for a considerable period of time, director of Southwest Educa-
tional Development Laboratory [SEDL]?

Dr. WiLL1aMS. Yes, I was one of the original founders of SEDL.

MR. GLick. And that suggests to me that you, for a long time, had
an interest in improving educational opportunities for poor chil-
dren—minority-group children. I think that’s a reasonable assumption
from that association, I gather.

DRr. WiLLIAMs. I appreciate the assumption because that’s true.

MRr. GLICK. Yes. Now, I'd like to ask in your opinion whether the
school desegregation that has taken place in Corpus Christi, or what-
ever plan, will provide improved educational opportunities for minority
groups, and poor children, as well as for majority-group children?

Dr. WiLLiaMS. What was your question again, Mr. Glick?

MRr. GLICK. Well, framing the question with a background of your
interests in educational opportunity for minority-group children, T am
asking whether you think that the desegregation of schools in the Cor-
pus Christi Independent School District will result in improved educa-
tional opportunities for minority-group children?

Dr. WiLLIAMS. You set the background of SEDL and SEDL was an
effort, on the part of the founders of the laboratory, to try to find a
better way to teach Mexican Americans, black Americans, and French
Americans in a two-State area. It had no design whatsoever upon the
racial-ethnic mixing of students. Now, our efforts were in the field of
material development and we made some rather large efforts, I think,
with the Federal dollars and I guess spent $40, $50 million in that ef-
fort. The problem I faced on the board of SEDL, whether we were a
loss or failure, but yet we made a tremendous effort to try to find
some way to teach these young men and young women. As far as—so
that has no relationship except to, I guess, to impress on you, I hope
I did that, I've been in the business of education for a long period of
time and I have been concerned, always have been, continue to be at
this time, interested about the concern and welfare of young people.

We just simply had a lawsuit here in Corpus Christi which attempted
to determine that this school system had discriminated against some of
our ethnic groups, which was not true. It was not the proper lawsuit.
The lawsuit was not favored by segments of our people. That percent-
age hasn’t changed today. We don’t see any of that real educational
advantage, though there were other ways of getting at it. My mind
somewhat changed, as it does over the years, about how to do this.
We’re attempting. It was our goal and still is to provide quality educa-
tion for our youngsters. And I think if you have read the results across
the country, you don’t find that basically anything is happening as far
as the research is concerned on improved academic opportunities for
young people; and the scores are not changing; their attitude concern-
ing their self-image is not being enhanced; and really, Mr. Glick, those
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that have opposed the racial-ethnic balance as a way of—doesn’t
necessarily mean that they’re in opposition to quality education. And
I certainly may know. We have tried to do the best we could with it,
got a good school program.

MR. Grick. I understand. But I would just like to follow up, if I
could, whether you think in your opinion as an educator, the results
of the desegregation of Corpus Christi schools will contribute to im-
proved opportunities for minority as well as—

DRr. WiLLIAMS. As far as sure educational improvements, the record
anyplace doesn’t show that the achievement has been enhanced and
I don’t think—we’ve not seen indications of it either.

MR. Grick. Well, if you suggest that—

Dr. WiLLiamMs. It doesn’t necessarily mean that we’re for segrega-
tion. We love—we believe—we think we have a fairly well integrated
community. We don’t have a school in this district that doesn’t have
all races and ethnic groups involved in it. They’re open to all of our
students. We’re basically a minority community now. We are really
making what looks to me like a very futile effort trying to implement
desegregation procedures in this school district. We think there may
be other ways to do it. Maybe we continually can provide some sort
of a better system for it.

MRr. Grick. Well, this was a desegregated school system, you sug-
gested, before the court’s order. Was that desegregation on the ratio
of the 75-25 percentage that the court ordered in the elementary
schools?

Dr. WiLLIaAMS. What was your question again?

MR. Grick. I ask you whether in the—what you state to be a
desegregated school system before the court ordered in the Cisneros
case—

Dr. WiLL1aMs. I did not meet a 75-25 order set down by the court.

MR. GLick. Were there any schools that were predominately minori-
ties?

DRr. WiLLiaMs. We had schools that were predominately minorities,
we sure do.

MR. GLICK. Were there any schools that were predominately black?

Dr. WiLLiams. Not to the degree that they were predominately
minority, but some were, yes. I think the record shows that. You have
all that information, I think, in your files.

MR. GLICK. But that has been pretty well broken up by the court
order in that there aren’t minority schools?

Dr. WiLLiams. Mr. Glick, I don’t argue that all what’s happened
doesn’t change the racial-ethnic percentage; it has.

MR. GLick. Returning again to educational opportunities, you sug-
gest that the Southwest Regional Development—Educational Develop-
ment Lab was a loss and failure. I think that is a matter of dispute.
I think it has been very beneficial in fact, but if—that is, in providing
equal educational opportunities through material use and teacher train-
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ing, of that nature, and if desegregation is possibly not going to be the
answer either, can you give us some idea, from your point of view as
an educator, what will be?

Dr. WiLLiaAMS. Let me go back and just discuss with you a little bit
my comments about the failure. We had thought that through the
development of material—we had the understanding of many educa-
tors across the country and we employed the best blends in the
country. I was not one of those people who made the great decision.
We employed Dr. Frank Chase, who in my judgment was one of the
most outstanding educators of this nation, provided, he was a father
of the laboratory system. He came to our laboratory. And our goal was
to try to develop material to be used by common people that might
in some way provide a better opportunity for these young people.

We really didn’t have any—maybe they were—loss and failure is not
appropriate. We didn’t have any great breakthroughs. You can’t go to
the SEDL today and say, you know, give me a package of materials
that they spent millions of dollars trying to develop and guarantee you
that it will improve the education of young people, just doesn’t do it.
Gave us new tools we put in the hands of teachers that I think is im-
portant, and I wouldn’t say that everything that hasn’t been done is not
proper. The main thrust is that we could do it—did not do it. So, in
this let’s get the record clear on SEDL.

Pm proud of SEDL. I was president of SEDL, president of the
board, and gave a lot of time to it and we realized that we never had
any money for research and development, especially development edu-
cation. The fact that we were not greatly successful was—did not
create a great concern on our part. Much of this money is wasted,
when used to research doesn’t prove to be fruitful. .

After these remarks when you get back to your question, I'll try to
respond.

MRr. GLick. My question is if that kind of effort, educational
development effort, which may be unfunded, or poorly funded, doesn’t
seem to have much effect on improving educational opportunities for
minority-group people, and we’re concerned particularly with the
Spanish-surnamed group, and desegregation isn’t going to have that ef-
fect as you expressed the opinion, what could you see as the possible
solution?

DRr. WiLLiams. Well, development is not stopped. It doesn’t mean
because SEDL is not successful, development has stopped. All sorts of
opportunities are being provided for young people; new materials,
better training, teachers, the opportunity for youngsters to be involved
in different kinds of activities they’ve [not] been involved in before.
I don’t say that. I wouldn’t say at all, Mr. Glick, that it’s bad for a
school of youngsters to be mixed up racially and ethnically. I'm just
saying that the opposition comes from parents and your own Commis-
sion states, in its letter, that one of the reasons you are making these
hearings is because of the vast opposition that’s coming from the Con-
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gress of the United States about forced busing and racial-ethnic mix-
ing. There is a great concern on the part of this nation that people’s
rights be taken away from them locally, and there are those above that
are imposing requirements on school districts and on people that are
not fruitful.

That not anyone who is saying that I hear—I don’t hear a drum
anywhtre saying—playing a bit of music that says, we shouldn’t pro-
vide equal education to young people. We simply haven’t found a way
to do some of these things yet. I think we’ll keep working at it.

If you contend that busing will get it done, then I presume we’re
going to have the opportunity to see whether or not it does. It’s been
going on many—in many districts across this nation for a long period
of time without the effects that, I presume, you purport it will finally
reach, but I'm not—I just don’t know about it yet.

MR. GLIcK. I just would like to switch to another topic for a minute.
In 1972, a Supreme Court issue, in the case of Eisenhower v. San
Francisco, Lau, found Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 required
students in school districts who were educationally disadvantaged
because of opinioned [phonetic] or public differences were required
to have provided for them through any Federal funding that went into
the district, some kind of remedial educational opportunities. And
growing out of that, HEW established a task force which came up with
findings specifying remedies available for elementary and postseconda-
ry for eliminating past educational practices ruled unlawful under Lau
v. Nichols, and these are commonly know as the law of desegregation.

I wonder if you care to express an opinion or would you please ex-
press an opinion, Mr. Williams, as to how those guidelines can be ef-
fectuated in, the Corpus Christi Independent School District, and what
you intend to do respecting the guidelines?

DRr. WiLLiaMs. 1 would like to—I'll make a brief comment. I think
our position can be best expressed by Dr. Gene Bryant, who is our
assistant superintendent for instruction, and I would like to, if you
would, let him give you the position of the district only in more detail.

I will tell that this district has long been involved in bilingual educa-
tion. We’re no Johnny-come-lately to the process, since we started in
1956, or the summer, a program for the non-English-speaking young-
sters. We've had preschool education programs all the way through.
We were one of the first Head Start and Follow Through programs in
the country. We’ve had experimental reading in Mexican American
studies. We’ve been involved in all of the Federal programs that’s
come along, that’s been made available to us, and there has been
much participation as far as staff development is concerned. So, we’re
no Johnny-come-lately to this process. We really don’t believe that—as
we have studied Lau we really believe that the people who wrote the
remedies have far overstepped themselves.

We think that the real purpose of bilingual education is
to—transitory. We think that the main thrust at the present time -
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should be to remove any youngster from his mother tongue to English,
in the main stream through the educational process. We think we have
a good statewide program in our bilingual program mandated by the
State board of education. We believe it does that job. We’re trying to
follow those guidelines.

We also believe that as a matter of good educational practice that
options should be provided for parents who want their youngsters to
have a language of any kind and if there’s a segment of our population
that wants Spanish, or French, or Russian, or what other language, that
is an option, we ought to provide that for them.

As far as the schools are concerned at the present time, this district
doesn’t have enough money to follow either of the guidelines
developed under Lau. We think that the Tenth Circuit’s response to
that is a good response and Lau, those guidelines are not legal and
don’t follow the Court’s findings as far as Lau was concerned by the
Supreme Court, and we plan to have some discussion with those peo-
ple who want to enforce those remedies on this school district.

MR. GLick. When you say have some discussion, you mean with the
HEW?

Dr. WiLLiaMs. Whoever is the enforcing agent.

MR. Grick. Has the district done a workup of the cost of implement-
ing?

Dr. WiLLIAMS. Yes, sir, we have.

MR. Grick. Can you give me some idea?

Dr. WiLLIaAMS. About 3-1/2 million. We followed the Lau guidelines
and in following them explicitly as they are stated in the guidelines.

MR. Grick. Three million?

DRr. WiLL1AMS. About $3-1/2 million per year, yes, sir.

MR. GLIck. Additional funding for the operation?

Dr. WiLLiaMs. What we’re doing—

MR. GLick. Operational budget?

DR. WiLLIaMS. That’s correct.

MR. Guick. At this point, Mr. Chairman, I'd like to introduce a
study that was done by the Intercultural Development Research As-
sociation which operates out of San Antonio and, as I understand it,
which has some comments on the costs and the costs implications of
implementing Lau remedies in the Corpus Christi school district. This
has not been thoroughly researched by staff, but I think it will be an
interesting document for us to have in the record, if I may introduce
this as Exhibit 2.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Without objections, it will be entered in the
record at this point.

DRr. WiLLIAMS. Would you mind; when was this study completed?

MR. Grick. I think it’s fairly recently. I forget the exact date.

DRr. WiLLiaMs. What does—would you mind telling us what the re-
port shows is the cost in Corpus Christi?

MR. GLIcK. It doesn’t. As I read it, it doesn’t show a total cost.
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DR. WiLLIAMS. What’s the reason for it? What is the reason for en-
tering it in the record?

MR. GLIcK. Just so that we can examine it. I'm not saying that it
doesn’t prove anything useful at all, but it’s something we can ex-
amine. It’s been done and totaled in the last couple of months in 1976.

Can I ask you just one more question because I see I’'m going to be
running out of time? You indicated that the State Bilingual Education
Act which is being implemented by the TEA [Texas Education Agen-
cyl, we’re going to go into that further later on—

Dr. WiLLIAMS. We asked the—your office, the Dallas office, to con-
sider our plan as being the plan that responds to Lau, and that matter
is under advisement at the present time.

MR. GLICK. It’s under advisement?

DR. WiLLIAMS. That’s what I understand.

MR. GLIcK. I wanted to ask whether you think that implementation
in the Corpus Christi Independent School District of the Texas bilin-
gual act under the guidelines prepared by TEA—

DR. WILLIAMS. Texas Education Agency.

MR. Grick. Yes, Texas Education Agency, will meet the Lau
guidelines, as you see the Supreme Court decision.

DR. WILLIAMS. As I see the Supreme Court decision, yes. As the
guidelines, as I see the Supreme Court guidelines, no. But I think it
deals and we plan to make every effort, Mr. Glick, to serve the educa-
tional needs, of these young people. I just don’t believe that we have
the resources and the staff, and problems of the district are too monu-
mental for us to simply turn out and start teaching every youngster
bilingually. That’s what Mr. Cardenas would have you do, that’s what
the guidelines would have you do if they are to be interpreted in their
strictest sense.

MRr. Grick. Well, if the resources, money, the teachers, etc., were
not a problem, if all those resources were available, would you think
it would be useful in providing equal educational opportunities?

DRr. WiLL1AMS. I think it goes—

MR. GLick. Following the guidelines?

Dr. WiLLiaMs. I think not. I think it goes beyond what we consider
best educational needs of the boys and girls in this school district.

MR. GLIcK. And as I understand it, you think the transitional educa-
tion of some language other than English into English is the best—

DR. WiLLiaMS. Supported by a vast portion of Mexican American
people in this neighborhood and we also believe in the right for contin-
gent studies as an option to parents and students.

MR. GLick. Thank you, Mr. Williams.

Mr. Chairman, I have no further questions.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Mr. Williams, the Supreme Court, beginning
with Brown v. Board of Education, has reached the conclusion that
there are segregated schools with nonequal educational opportunities
which are guaranteed under the 14th amendment of the Constitution.
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We, as I indicated in my opening comment, have been engaged in an
indepth study of what is going on in the area of desegregation. There
isn’t any doubt in our mind at all that in the communities that have
accepted the decision of the Supreme Court or orders that have been
issued by lower courts which have gone to work to implement the con-
cept of desegregation, but that desegregation has improved the educa-
tional opportunity of minorities in those areas.

Following up on one line of questioning by Mr. Glick, you've now
completed, as I understand it, 1 year of experience in implementing
a court-ordered desegregation plan, namely, the computer plans; is
that correct?

Dr. WiLLIAMS. Yes, sir. Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. During this year, what kind of support have
you received from leaders in the community in implementing this
court-ordered plan?

Dr. WiLLIams. Well, first of all, as you say, Dr. Flemming, that this
is a marvelous and wonderful community. Our people here have had
strong feelings about this opportunity to be heard in court and have
this day in court. We all understand full well that the findings of the
court are the law of the land until changed; and we all knew and we’ve
all worked toward the fact that we would try to get the best of what
the resolution of the problem would be by the board and by the com-
munity. When we received that order, there would be no question
about it being implemented.

We have sought and the record speaks—Mr. Tobian gave all the
credit to certain other leaders of the community for what’s happened
here, but I say to you, sir, the board of education, their superintendent
and his staff, have been the leaders in this community’s—in molding
this community together and seeing to it that it responded in a peace-
ful, harmonious way in responding to the court order. We received
outstanding support from this community; outstanding support from
our professional staff. Our board of education, though not of one mind
on any of these issues, have certainly said that this is the law of the
land, this is what we’ll do; and we’ve done everything we could to
make these plans work. We plan to do that with the junior high assign-
ment; we plan to do that with any assignment that comes our way.
And maybe our position, even though criticized by many and severely
criticized by your Commission, that has held this hearing here previ-
ously, maybe our position is—might have been one of the strong points
in being able to get this community to do what it’s done.

CHaIRMAN FLEMMING. What specific steps did you take or the board
of education take in order to bring about an effective implementation
of the court-ordered plan that you’ve been working under during the
past school year?

Dr. WiLLiaMs. Well, we had community meetings all over with large
groups of people in attendance. I appeared on television. I have my
written statements that was given to the community on August 13,
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1975, 8 days after the—our court order. I mean, it was given on the
8th, 5 days after the court order. It was on prime time on one of our
fine television stations here. We had an opportunity to speak to the
people. I do it twice monthly, a television program live on our public
television station and respond to questions from the community. I am
available to the press everyday and at anytime or night. We worked
very closely with them. They’ve been extremely helpful to us.

We work with the Parent-Teachers Association. We have school
community advisory committees in each one of our schools. We work
with principals in preparation. We prepared teachers through a long
workshop for years and years and we’ve used the resources of the
Federal Government, the old Ted Tack group at the University of
Texas. There’s more recently a group called—I forget the first
name—it was their committee for ethnic studies. We’ve used those,
I've been a consultant for those people and worked in conflict manage-
ment.

So, we worked with the ministers in the community. I have an in-
tegration desegregation advisory committee composed of all the people
from all the leadership in the community.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Could I interrupt? How often does that com-
mittee meet?

DRr. WiLLiaMms. I've had the committee in effect about 3 years, I
think. It’s mostly, conveniently being—bolted by the AFL-CIO
[American Federation of Labor and Congress of Industrial Organiza-
tions] which was invited to participate, headed by Mr. Montemayor,
who is a member of your Commission, as I understand it. They’re one
of the groups that failed to be a part of that, but we’ve had strong
leadership from—

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Could I just pursue that? Does that committee
meet in accordance with a regular schedule?

DRr. WiLLIAMS. That committee, no, it does not. It meets when we
feel like we have business to attend to. When the superintendent of
schools is in—needs to be in advisory commission before going before
the board of education. It has Dr. Hector Garcia on it, who has been
very helpful to us.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Can the committee meet on its own initiative
and put on the agenda items that it desires to discuss with you?

DR. WiLLIAMS. It has not had that opportunity up to now. It’s purely
been advisory, but we’ve not had any problem in discussing anything
that they want to discuss.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Pardon me.

Dr. WiLLIAMS. It’s not constituted as a court-appointed committee.
It’s a committee of my own.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. You now look back over one school year dur-
ing which you’ve been operating under the court-ordered desegrega-
tion plan. You've indicated that you do meet with various groups from
time to time?

Dr. WiLLIAMS. Yes, sir.
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CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. As you have met with those groups, have you
identified some positive gains in terms of opening up educational op-
portunities as a result of operating under the court-ordered plan?

DRr. WiLLIAMS. I really can’t say that we have. I think basically we’ve
dealt with the mechanics of court orders and proposals to be filed by
the court order; responding to court orders.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Have you in fact, you or your associates,
identified during the course of the year some gains in terms of opening
up educational opportunities resulting from your implementation of the
court-ordered plan?

Dr. WiLLIAMS. I don’t know that we’ve had any product, studies, Dr.
Flemming, that give us the right to respond to that question either yes
or no.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. In other words, you made no evaluation of
the situation during the past year ffom that point of view?

Dr. WiLLiaMs. Well, of course, we have our—all our data in test
scores and everything shows, as it does in most major cities, where
there’s a lot of movement, movement of poor people coming into the
community, our scores continue to decline.

CHalRMAN FLEMMING. Have you brought together any evidence
bearing on the relationships that have developed between students
from various cultures as a result of increased opportunities for attend-
ing school together?

DRr. WiLLiaMs. We don’t have any studies which speak to that either
way. We’ve has some—we’ve had a project that Dr. Bryant will discuss
with you. He managed that in detail. He did some testing to that. We
have some—I think we have some findings on that special project.
That we did a Iot of moving children around together and had them
in certain kinds of activities with different races, ethnic groups. He’ll
be glad to respond to that. I don’t have the exact data on it.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. What specific steps have been taken in the in-
terest of implementing the new junior high plan?

DR. WiLLIAMS. What have we done?

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Yes.

DRr. WiLLlaMs. We’ve done all the things that’s necessary to—we
think—to a peaceful and successful implementation of the court order.
We’ve had meetings with our groups of people. We’ve worked with
staff. We've advised with the community groups and we’ve had open
lines from our telephone system. We've been on television. We've tried
to do all the same kind of things that we did a year ago which put
us in good stead, we think, with the community.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Commissioner Freeman.

ComMmIssIONER FRegMAN. Mr. Williams, you indicated that of the
budget of $52 million that about $20 million is received by Corpus
Christi from Federal programs. Will you identify—

Dr. WiLLIAMS. No, I didn’t indicate that at all.

ComMISSIONER FREEMAN. $32 million, general operating?
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DR. WILLIAMS. I said there was a general operating budget and there
was, I would think—Mr. Pearce, could you give the exact dollars on
it?

I said there was a general operating budget, then there was a total
overall budget and in that, of course, includes interest, and sinking
fund, payment of all our debts, the operation of our cafeteria system,
the operation of our athletic programs, many other kinds of special
programs that we have. I’'m not prepared to give you—

CoMMISSIONER FREEMAN. Do you have information about the
number of dollars in Federal funds that are received by the Corpus
Christi school district?

DRr. WILLIAMS. Yes, we furnished that to your staff.

CoMMISSIONER FREEMAN. Do you have—would you restate that?

DRr. WiLLiaMs. Let’s see if I can find it. Well, it’s a long two-page
document; it isn’t totaled up. Could I just provide you with a copy?

CoMMIsSIONER FREEMAN. Will you just tell me which Federal pro-
grams? Will you state for the record?

Dr. WiLL1AMS. Well, we have Title | ESEA [Elementary and Secon-
dary Education Act] of one eight—$1,686,485.

ComMmIssIONER FREEMaN. Title 1?

Dr. WiLLiAMS. One million—$1,686,485. Follow Through was
$267,000 plus, which $66,000 of that was nonfederal so about
$200,000 for Follow Through. Title VII bilingual, $147,643. The Adult
Learning Center was $176,686. We have an ESAA [Emergency School
Aid Act] project of $282,450. We have several small grants through
Title IV, section C that run from—you want these figures exactly?

CoMmmissioNER FREEMAN. No, if you’d give me—if you have a total
of Federal money that’s—

Dr. WiLLiaMs. I'm sorry, my document doesn’t show that. I'm
prepared—maybe it does on the next sheet.

CoMmMmissIONER FREEMAN. You’ve given us about $2-1/2 million;
would that be about right?

Dr. WiLLiaMs. Well, I presume that would be it. Some of my staff
is saying $3 million to me.

ComMIsSIONER FREEMAN. $3 million in Federal money?

Dr. WiLL1aMS. I think so.

CoMMmiIssiONER FREEMAN. All right. You indicated earlier that Cor-
pus Christi is a city of minorities?

DRr. WiLLiaMs. That’s correct.

CoMMISSIONER FREEMAN. Which minorities are here?

DRr. WiLLiaMs. Well, the population of our community, the black
population is about 5.8 percent.

CoMMISSIONER FREEMAN. 5.8 percent?

Dr. WiLLIaMS. Right.

CoMMIsSIONER FREEMAN. Black?

Dr. WiLLIAMS. And let me give it to you exactly since you seem to
want exact figures. We last made—when we made our report that we
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used for the base data for HEW and all the dealings with the court
and everyone which was last October 15, we had 5.78 black students.
We had 36.87 others or Anglos, and the others not included among
the black and Spanish surnamed. Spanish surnamed, we had 57.35.

CoMMISSIONER FREEMAN. 57.357

Dr. WiLLIAMS. Yes, ma’am.

CoMMISSIONER FREEMAN. And Anglo 36.877

DRr. WILLIAMS. 36.87.

CoMMISSIONER FREEMAN. Now, Mr. Williams, will you give me the
same breakdown with respect to employees? The superintendent is
Anglo. Now, the top positions of the district, will you give us that
breakdown as to race and ethnicity, starting with the board of educa-
tion. Are there any black members of the board of education?

DRr. WILLIAMS. No, the board of education is all Anglo.

CoMMISSIONER FREEMAN. All Anglo?

Dr. WiLL1AMs. That’s correct.

CoMMISSIONER FREEMAN. Now, with respect to the top staff.

Dr. WiLLiAMS. The superintendent, three assistant superintendents
are Anglo Americans. We have 10 directors, 7 are—we have 11
directors, 7 are Anglo and 4 are Mexican American.

COMMISSIONER FREEMAN. Any black?

DRr. WILLIAMS. Seven and four.

COMMISSIONER FREEMAN. Zero black?

Dr. WiLLiaMs. The assistant directors, we have nine assistant
directors. We have 12 assistant directors; 9 are Anglo, 2 are Mexican
American, and 1 is black.

Next level of administrators on our staff would be called a coordina-
tor and there are basically instructional programs but scattered in
other parts of our program too. There are 11 of those—there are 15
of those; 9 are Anglo Americans, 5 are Mexican Americans, 1 is black.
There are—the consultant staff is somewhat larger. There are
39—these are last year’s reports. I don’t know what the staff would be
today, but 39 Anglo Americans, 11 Mexican Americans, and 3
Negro—3 blacks.

CoMmMIsSIONER FREEMAN. These constitute persons who make the
decisions relating to the operation of the Corpus Christi school dis-
trict?

Dr. WirLLiams. That’s correct. There are other people, of course,
who—inspectors, supervisors, psychologist, others that are part of our
staff—guidance, associates, these kind of people.

CoMMISSIONER FREEMAN. So that is it true—it is true, is it not, that
when you say, we think, and you use that term quite often, that it is
consistent solely of the opinions of Anglos concerning whether the
minorities are receiving equal educational opportunities?

Dr. WiLLiaMs. I don’t think so. This top group of people—let me
give you another breakdown, it might be of assistance to you. We have
152 people listed in our central office staff. A hundred and eight of
those are Anglo American or 70.6 percent.
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CoOMMISSIONER FREEMAN. 70.67

DR. WiLLIAMS. 70.6 percent.

CoMMISSIONER FREEMAN. Anglo?

DRr. WiLLiams. Yes. Thirty-eight of those are Mexican-Americans,
24.8 percent, and 7 are Negro Americans, 4.6 percent.

CoMMIsSIONER FREEMAN. Would it be a fair statement then if, on the
basis of the figures that you have indicated, a statement that perhaps
the Corpus Christi school district is not carrying out fair employment
practices?

DR. WiLLIaAMS. No, it would not be so. It would not be a true state-
ment.

CommIssIONER FREEMAN. On what basis do you make that state-
ment?

DRr. WiLL1aMs. Because I know and I'm here and I know we’re em-
ploying people and we’ve move from—we’re moving to employ minori-
ty people as fast as we can, all things being equal. We’ve gone from
18.2 percent Mexican American to 70.71, and 25.1 in '75-76 of our
teaching staff. So we’ve gone from 364 in the classroom of 522. Blacks
have gone from 74 to 103.

CoMMISSIONER FREEMAN. So you are decreasing the discrimination?

DRr. WiLLIAMS. If there has been discrimination, it’s being decreased,
but my point is we’re increasing in employment of minority hiring. I
would refer you to a study that your own people made that might be
of assistance to you and if you’d go back, Ms. Freeman, and take a
look at your “Directory of Public Elementary and Secondary Schools
of Selected Districts,” December 72, which seemed to be the latest
document you have and one that you prepared on “Elementary Secon-
dary Schools Civil Rights, Survey of Fall *73,” you’ll find that the
minority people are simply not available to the public schools of the
Nation in proportion to the students enrolled.

CoMMISSIONER FREEMAN. We found there was a pattern of dis-
crimination.

Dr. WiLLIAMS. | don’t know what you found.

CoMMISSIONER FREEMAN. It is correct that we found that it was not
limited to a particular area.

DRr. WiLLIaMs. Simply showed there was not enough people to fill
the jobs.

ComMIssIONER FREEMAN. We did not make such a finding. I would
suggest that you reread it.

Dr. WiLLiams. We suggest that maybe you study your document
again because that’s the way we read it. I don’t plan to argue that with
you. You simply show, for instance, that if parity were to come to
Texas schools we employ the same number of people in Texas—

CommissioNER FREEMAN. Will you describe the document that you
are reading?

DRr. WiLLIaMS. The document that I read that we studied from was
the U.S. Department of HEW, Office of Civil Rights, titled *“Directory
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of Public Elementary and Secondary Schools in Selected Districts,”
dated December 1972.

CoMMISSIONER FREEMAN. Mr. Williams, I said this Commission did
not make such a finding. That is HEW’s document. This is the office
of the U.S. Commission on Civil Rights, which has not made such a
finding.

DRr. WILLIAMS. [ stand corrected. But this is the latest document that
we know anything about coming from—

CoMMISSIONER FREEMAN. From HEW.

DRr. WiLLIaMS. From your—

ComMmIssIONER FREEMAN. Which is quite different from the Civil
Rights Commission.

Dr. WiLLIAMS. From your kindred associate across the city.

CoMMISSIONER FREEMAN. Actually one of the reasons that we asked
the questions concerning the Federal programs is that this Commission
exercises monitoring—

Dr. WiLLiaMs. Right.

CoMMISSIONER FREEMAN. —over the Federal agencies and we would
be critical of the extent to which HEW would fund any local district
without assurances that the funds were administered equally.

Dr. WiLLIaMS. We’ve been investigated by HEW. I presume we’re
under constant surveillance for those people all the time. We think
we’ve been able to satisfy them. We made satisfying progress in our
employment practices. There doesn’t seem to be—

CoMMISSIONER FREEMAN. Of course, you comment on—

Dr. WiLLIAMS. Right.

CoMmMISSIONER FREEMAN. —the extent to which you may satisfy
HEW?

Dr. WiILLIAMS. We don’t consider it to be a problem at this time.

CoMMISSIONER FREEMAN. Well, would you just give me, one final
question. I would like to know, would you make your own assessment
of whether the school system of Corpus Christi is affording equal edu-
cational opportunity to its citizens, to its students?

Dr. WILLIAMS. Yes, I believe we are. We’re doing everything in our
power to provide opportunities for our young people.

CoMMISSIONER FREEMAN. Equal educational opportunities?

Dr. WiLLiaMs. Equal educational opportunities for all of our young
people. Yes, I think we are.

CoMMISSIONER FREEMAN. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Commissioner Ruiz.

CoMMIssIONER Ruiz. I noticed in your testimony that you state that
you were proud of the involvement of the school district and made
reference to the year 1956, that you are not a Johnny-come-lately into
the picture, that you are involved in Head Start matters, etc. Ap-
parently, something has gone wrong. Apparently from your figures, lots
of money has been spent. Material resources, apparently, haven’t been
lacking from your point of view. In what year was the Cisneros case
filed?
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DRr. WiLLIAMS. 1968.

CoMMIssIONER Ruiz. That was a long time after 1956, wasn’t it?

Dr. WiLLIAMS. That’s correct, sir.

ComMMIsSIONER Ruiz. And what were the complaints about from the
Mexican American segments of the community after you had all of this
involvment, all of this money pouring into these particular type pro-
grams, what were the complaints of the Mexican Americans?

Dr. WILLIAMS. Are you asking me what was the basis—what the
plaintiffs’ used as their basis of complaint in the lawsuit?

ComMmIssIONER Rulz. Yes, I'm asking you what they were complain-
ing about?

Dr. WiLLiaMs. It was one of those lawsuits that I presume
that—wherein a lawyer files a suit for divorce they list all the reasons
as commonly found in the records and annals of the court system.

CommissiONER Rulz. And what were those reasons?

DRr. WiILLIAMS. They accused us—we were accused of, oh gee, Mr.
Ruiz, the reasons, they said that we had discriminated in every way,
that the teachers on one side of town were better qualified than they
were on the other; that the textbooks were not the same; that the
buildings were not the same.

CoMMISSIONER Ruiz. Were the textbooks the same and the buildings
the same?

Dr. WILLIAMS. Yes, they were.

CoMMIssIONER Ruiz. In the predominately Mexican communities?

Dr. WiLLIAMS. Yes, they were. The only finding of the court was
that there was separation of the ethnic groups.

CoMMISSIONER Ruiz. And the physical plants were the same and
predominately Mexican—

Dr. WiLLiaMs. Physical plants were basically the same all over the
school district, yes, sir.

CommissioNER Ruiz. And they were, nevertheless, complaining?

Dr. WiLLIAMs. We had a lawsuit filed against us, yes, sir.

ComMIsSIONER Ruiz. And your personal opinion was the complaint
didn’t have any basis?

Dr. WiLLiaMs. Well, just to sit here and say, no complaint or basis
for the lawsuit, I don’t know that I could say that. There were people
who sincerely felt—you see, there’s room for more than one opinion
on these issues.

CoMMISSIONER Ruiz. My question is whether it was your opinion
that there was no basis?

Dr. WiLLiams. I felt that there had been no—I felt that there had
been no discrimination among Mexican Americans in the community,
yes.

CommissioNER Ruiz. None whatsoever?

Dr. WiLL1aMs. None whatsoever.

CoMMISSIONER Ruiz. Now, you mentioned that there was a lack of
teachers for bilingual education, sir?
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Dr. WiLLIAMS. | said that there was not enough Mexican American
teachers in Texas and in the Nation to provide parity on a one-to-
one—on the same ratio basis as there are other teachers.

CoMmMISSIONER Rulz. In what university in Texas have most of your
high school graduates gone to be certified as teachers?

Dr. WiLLIaMS. | would presume, and I don’t have the records before
me, but I would presume that the largest number of teachers coming
to our district basically have come from Texas A & I University at
Kingsville. We also recruit every university and college in the Na-
tion—I mean, in the State.

CoMMISSIONER Rulz. Now, during the past 14 years while you have
been superintendent of schools, how many Spanish-surnamed high
school graduates have joined the Anglo high school graduates in
getting teachers’ credentials?

Dr. WiLLIAMS. I don’t have that information, sir. I’d be glad to try
to get it for you if you let your staff—

CoMMIssIONER Ruiz. Could you give me an educated guess?

Dr. WiLLIAMS. No, sir.

CommissiONER Ruiz. Difference in percentage—Ilet’s take out of 40
or let’s take out of 50, to make it simple, Anglos, how many Mexican
Americans have been received in college courses to become cre-
dentialed teachers, just give me a guess. You are a superintendent.

Dr. WiLLIAMS. I’'m not advised. I don’t believe I care to guess. I
don’t know and I don’t believe my guess would be worth anything to
you, sir.

CoMMISSIONER Rulz. And you don’t want to give me an educated
guess?

MR. WILLIAM. No, sir, I do not.

CoMMISSIONER Ruiz. Now, Mexican Americans and Mexicans have
been around a long time in Texas and Spanish was spoken in Texas
even before it became a part of our United States. Why is it difficult
to find qualified bilingual teachers in 1976?

Dr. WiLLiaMs. Well, first of all, not just because of the schools
themselves but because of many constraints, I guess, placed on our
Spanish surnamed as well as our black teachers. They really haven’t
found their way through the colleges and universities and they’ve been,
as you know, among the lower socioeconomic groups, and the low
socioecnonmic groups have not found their way through the colleges
and universities in this nation, and as a result we just don’t have that
number. I think it’s gaining and I think it will gain, and we look for-
ward to the time that it will, but it hasn’t. They haven’t been produced
up to this time, sir.

CoMMISSIONER Rulz. Are you bilingual, sir?

DRr. WiLLIAMS. No, sir, I am not.

CoMMIssIONER Ruiz. Would you suspect that appropriate action to
opening the teachers’ program to bilingual, Spanish-speaking teachers
hasn’t taken place here in Texas?

DRr. WiLL1aMS. I don’t believe I understand your question, Mr. Ruiz.
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ComMISSIONER Ruiz. Well, I'll repeat it. From what has developed
so far in our colloquy, would you suspect that something is remiss in
the teaching program in the State of Texas to develop bilingual
teachers?

Dr. WiLLiams. Well, probably so, but let me just make one other
comment that I think might be helpful to the committee to consider
your thrust in the bilingual education. What we believe, Mr. Chairman,
and members of the committee, that there are, needs to be some basic
research to determine whether or not the whole matter of bilingualism
is appropriate and to what degree. It needs to be removed from the
political arena. It’s a political football in this country at the present
time. And even your own people that we’ve talked to that have at-
tempted to enforce Lau, admit that they don’t have—the data isn’t in
that bilingualism is entitled to the thrust that we’re giving it. We’re try-
ing to do everything we can with it, but we believe there needs to
some basic research to take it out of the political arena and put it in
the educational arena where it belongs, if it’s beneficial.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. You say “even your own people.”
What—whom do you—what people are you referring to?

Dr. WiLLiams. Let me correct that, Mr. Chairman, and say I'm
sorry—and Ms. Freeman—I'm referring to the people in HEW who is
responsible for the guidelines for Lau.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. I would just like to make—underline what
Commissioner Freeman said. One of the responsibilities of this Com-
mission is to carry on an oversight function as far as all of the depart-
ments and agencies of the Federal Government are concerned that are
involved in the implementation of civil rights law. And if you have the
opportunity sometime in looking at some of our reports dealing, par-
ticularly, in this area of desegregation, you’ll note that from time to
time we take sharp issue with the positions taken by the Department
of Health, Education, and Welfare, and take sharp issue with their
failure to move forward vigorously enough to implement for today’s
children some of these laws that have been put on the books and some
of the decisions that have been made by the court.

I just wanted to clarify the relationship between us and the Depart-
ment of Health, Education, and Welfare.

Dr. WiLLiams. Thank you.

CommissioNER Ruiz. Now, if you’re talking about “you and your
people” in the sense that I am a Mexican American, I am from
California and there have been many successful bilingual programs
that are going on now in California. Are you aware of this?

Dr. WiLLiams. Members of our staff have tried to take a look at
what’s going on nationwide.

CommissiONER Ruiz. Pardon?

Dr. WiLLiaMS. Members of our staff are more familiar with what’s
going on nationwide than I am. They advise me from time to time
about programs across the country. I'm not familiar with the—I
couldn’t describe for you the California bilingual program.
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ComMissiONER Ruiz. Now, apparently in your schools here there’s
been a lack of some type of affirmative action with respect to this
matter that we’re speaking. Do you know what affirmative action is?

Dr. WiLLIaMS. Yes, I think I do, sir.

CommissioNER Ruiz. Will you kindly give me your definition of what
affirmative action is?

Dr. WiLLiams. Affirmative action is a statement to do a certain
thing, would be affirmation of effort.

ComMissiONER Ruiz. To do certain things of, an affirmation of ef-
fort, is that your—

Dr. WiLLiaMS. | say an affirmative action program would be a state-
ment that you plan to do a certain type thing, whatever it might be.

CoMMISSIONER Ruiz. Is that your definition, sir?

Dr. WiLL1aMS. That’s what I gave you, sir, yes, sir.

CoMmMissiONER Ruiz. Does that definition include making up for past
mistakes, making up for—

Dr. WiLLiams. Well, all those efforts speak to that kind of thing,
yes, sir.

ComMissIONER Ruiz. Would that be included in your definition of
affirmative action, or is your definition of affirmative action just mak-
ing a plan?

Dr. WiLLiams. Well, I don’t know what you are trying to get me to
say.

CoMMISSIONER RuIZ. I'm not trying to get you to say anything
because there are definitions of affirmative action. I want to know how
your definition fits into other definitions.

DR. WILLIAMS. Most affirmative action plans that I've seen talk
about what is to be made up, and it’s an effort to make up for and
the description of the efforts to reach a certain destination.

CoMMISSIONER Ruiz. Make up an effort?

DRr. WIiLLIAMS. It’s an effort to reach a certain destination, yes, sir.

CoMMISSIONER Ruiz. What are you trying to make up in this effort,
sir, on affirmative action? What are you trying to tell me there? I don’t
understand, it.

Dr. WiLLiaMs. Well, I don’t know what you are trying to get me to
say. I really don’t know. I don’t know what you are seeking, Mr. Ruiz.
I’'m not trying to be unkind with you. I really don’t know that it—

CoMmMissIONER Ruiz. Do you know what affirmative action in em-
ployment means?

Dr. WiLL1AMS. Yes, sir, I do.

CommissioNER Ruiz. All right. Let’s have that definition, sir.

Dr. WiLLIAMS. We've never in order to try—maybe we can clear up
the picture. We’ve never been .told by the court or by any governmen-
tal authority that we had to reach any sort of a goal within our em-
ployment practices. We’ve had what we think is—

CommissioNER Ruiz. Do you have an affirmative action plan here?
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DRr. WiLLIAMS. Our affirmative action plan, if an affirmative action
plan means a quota we’re going to reach year by year, the answer is
no.

CoMMISSIONER Ruiz. You have an affirmative action plan with
respect to goals?

Dr. WiLLIAMS. As far as we’re concerned our goal is to try to em-
ploy—all things being equal—we employ minority people.

CoMmMissioNER Rulz. I’'m still not making myself clear. Do you have
an affirmative action plan?

DR. WiLLIAMS. Not as such filed with any governmental group.

CoMMISSIONER RuIZ. You have no written affirmative action plan in
this community with relation to employment?

DRr. WiLLiams. We do not, sir.

ComMissioNER Ruiz. Now, out of $3 million—

DR. WILLIAMS. It’s really never been a problem to us because we
think we’ve made good progress. We're doing everything we can to
bring minority people onto our staff. Really, it has not been an issue
in our community, with us.

CoMMISSIONER Ruiz. Well, I'm an attorney and if I've been in court
for 6 years litigating things, I think we have problems, sir. And when
you say don’t have problems and you’ve been constantly in court for
the last more than half a decade, I think there exists problems.

DRr. WiLLIAMS. We’re not in court over this issue.

CommissIoNER Ruiz. Of affirmative action?

Dr. WiLLIAMS. No, sir.

ComMissiONER Rulz. With respect to desegregation?

Dr. WiLLiaMs. Well, ours is a desegregation issue, constitutional
issue. This is not been a problem for us as I understand it.

CoMmMmissioNER Ruiz. Out of this $3 million that you mentioned in
Federal monies, I noticed that you referred to $147,647 for bilingual
programs; is that correct?

DRrR. WitLiaMs. I said we had a Title VII bilingual program of
$147—$147,643 and as my notes say here, it’s designated for the pro-
gram of kindergarten, first and second grade.

CoMmMissioNER Ruiz. And what percentage, I'm not good at mathe-
matics, is $147,643 with respect to $3 million?

Dr. WiLLiams. Well, I think it would be, Mr. Ruiz—I’'m not going
to be able to help you with that.

CoMMISSIONER Ruiz. Would it be around 3 or 4 or 5 percent?

DR. WiLLIAMS. I’'m not going to be able to help you describe the ef-
fort we’re making in bilingual education, but Dr. Gene Bryant, our
assistant superintendent for instruction is prepared to do this. I was
told by Mr. Glick it would not be necessary for me to know all the
details of these particular programs. I could ask my staff to be
prepared to respond to them, so with that in mind I didn’t. Not know-
ing what you might ask, I don’t have the information in dollars we'’re
spending on bilingual education.

Mr. Chairman, I can’t be helpful, I'm sorry.
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CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. We can pick that up with the next panel.

CommissioNER Ruiz. All right. I'll just ask the question then. Which
of the three assistant superintendents that you have has the principal
role of reporting to you upon questions of development pertaining to
bilingual education?

DRr. WiLLIAMS. Dr. Gene Bryant. He’s here and prepared to testify.

ComMmIssIONER Rulz. And is Dr. Bryant in charge of developing
plans for students of limited English?

DRr. WiLL1AMS. Yes, he is.

CoMMISSIONER Ruiz. Bryant? B-r-y-a-n-t?

DR. WiLLIAMs. Bryant, B-r-y-a-n-t.

CoMMiIssIONER Ruiz. Thank you very much.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. I'd like to follow up on just a couple of
questions. Do I understand that you have never been required by any
Federal department to develop an affirmative action plan in the area
of employment?

Dr. WiLLiaMs. Well, I know—I'm not for sure that I know the
details of this. Of course, we sign all these oaths and agreements that
are necessary for Federal funding and if that is an affirmative action
plan, the answer is yes, which is one of those nondiscriminatory state-
ments that we sign. As far as our being required to file with the court,
Mr. Chairman, the answer to that—to answer your question, the
answer is no.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. I recognize that you haven’t been required to
file a plan with the court, but have you had any contact with the Equal
Employment Opportunity Commission [EEOC]?

DR. WILLIAMS. Yes.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. And has that Commission requested an affir-
mative action plan in the area of employment?

DRr. WiLLiaMs. We’re working with the EEOC, yes. I would presume
maybe we have with them. Since you refer to these people, we do
work with EEQOC and are under their constant observation, I would
presume.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Well, could you describe or later could one
of your associates describe the affirmative action plan that has been
developed as a result of your consultations with the EEOC?

DR. WiLL1aMmS. I will ask Dr. Dwyane Bliss, who is our assistant su-
perintendent for administration who deals with this particular segment
of the government, and he could probably be more helpful to you than
L

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Now, if I could go back to one response to
Commissioner Freeman. She asked you whether you felt that you were
providing, as a school system, equal educational opportunities at the
present time. Now, a year ago, the court in effect found that you were
not and directed you to put a plan into effect, so-called computer plan,
in order to move in the direction of achieving that goal. Is that a cor-
rect statement?

Dr. WiLL1aMS. That’s correct, sir.
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CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Now, going back to one of my earlier
questions, do you have plans—have you developed plans for evaluating
the first year under the court order from the standpoint of whether or
not it has yielded increased opportunities for minorities because of
their having had the benefit of better facilities, better equipment,
better instruction, and better opportunities to learn how to live in a
pluralistic society? Do you have any plans for taking a look at all of
those issues, compiling factual evidence on it, and then arriving at
some conclusions?

Dr. WiLLiams. First of all, your question assumed that they had
better equipment, better teaching, better materials, which is not so.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. [ said, are you making plans to find out
whether that in fact—

DRr. WILLIAMS. Oh, yes.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. —was the situation during the past year?

DRr. WiLLIAMS. | can assure you that there was no difference in the
materials and teachers. We’ll make an effort to find out whether or
not there has been educational advancement on the part of our stu-
dents as a result of the court order. Yes, we will do that, sir.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. And including whether or not the court order
has opened up better opportunities for both minorities and Anglos to
learn how to live together in a pluralistic society. Is that one of the
issues to which you will address yourself?

DR. WiLLiAMs. I'm sure we will, yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Fine. John?

MR. BuGas. Just one question. Dr. Williams, when you were on the
board of directors of the Southwest Educational Development Labora-
tory, I wonder, did you exercise any concern or make any plans to cor-
rect what you have indicated exist in Texas with regard to the number
of minority-group teachers? In other words, you’ve indicated that they
don’t exist and without, on my part, stipulating to that was any effort
made by you to correct that situation by providing special incentives
for such teachers—for such persons to go to school in Texas or el-
sewhere?

Dr. WiLLiaMS. Our tasks did not include that. Ours was a program
development task; [it] is very strictly designed and paid for by the
government, as you know, and our task was in the area of material
development, program development, not on staff.

MR. BuGas. But are teachers equally as important as materials?

DRr. WiLLIAMS. Your question was whether or not we did that as a
part of SEDL.

MR. BuGGs. That’s right.

DRr. WiLLiAMS. My answer is no.

MR. BuGgs. Fine. I suspected as much.

Dr. WiLLiAMS. We have staff, I might say in response to Mr. Buggs,
as a part of our development program of SEDL. We certainly did hold
many a staff development opportunities for teachers to—along with the
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materials. As far as our—as far as one of our thrust to get minority
teachers—whether they be French Americans, or black Americans, or
Spanish Americans—into college, that was not part of our thrust. It
was otherwise.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Thank you very much. We appreciate your
being with us.

DRr. WILLIAMS. Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. We appreciate the information that has been
given us. Thank you.

MR. GLIck. Gentlemen, will you please rise so the Chairman can
swear you in?

[Messrs. Bliss, Bryant, and Pearce were sworn.]

MR. GLick. Mr. Chairman, I would request that Assistant General
Counsel Ruthie Taylor question this panel of witnesses.

TESTIMONY OF DWYANE BLISS, ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR
ADMINISTRATION, CORPUS CHRISTI INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT, GENE
BRYANT, ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR INSTRUCTION, CORPUS CHRISTI

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT, AND J.M. PEARCE, ASSISTANT
SUPERINTENDENT FOR BUSINESS AFFAIRS, CORPUS CHRISTI INDEPENDENT
SCHOOL DISTRICT

Ms. TavLorR. Would you all state your name, address, occupation,
and position for the record, please?

Dr. BLiss. Assistant superintendent for administration, at 801
Leopard Street, Corpus Christi Independent School District.

DRr. BRYANT. Assistant superintendent for instruction, 801 Leopard
Street, Corpus Christi Independent School District.

DRr. PEARCE. | am J. M. Pearce, assistant superintendent for business
affairs, Corpus Christi Independent School District, 801 Leopard
Street.

Ms. TAyLOR. Dr. Bliss, I would like to direct the first question to
you. Could you tell us what efforts have been made and what efforts
will be made to prepare school personnel for a desegregated learning
situation?

Dr. BLiss. We have, since we received the order last year, been in
the constant state of staff development with our teachers, principals,
community members, and we feel like desegregation is really a com-
munity problem and not just a school problem. And as it relates to the
students themselves, we feel that it is important for parents and com-
munity to know exactly, first of all, what the plan is. So we’ve taken
every step as much as possible, notifying individually the students who
are to be affected and their families. We have held rather extensive
workshop sessions and orientation sessions with our administrative
field staff, that is, the principals and assistant principals.

We have, I think, a rather unique staff development problem called
an ETP, Equivalent Time Program, which allows teachers to be in-
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volved after school and earn comp time credit for that, and have
availed a2 number of opportunities in the area of student awareness,
reality therapy, and the various other kinds of techniques that are cur-
rently on the scene to make teachers as culturally aware as possible
of members of all the ethnic groups within our community.

Ms. TavLor. All right. Dr. Bliss, you heard the superintendent of
schools indicate that the school district had no affirmative action plan.
That is, as far as he knew, the courts had not found that there was
this—these discrepancies. Is it a fact that the Equal Employment Op-
portunity Commission has filed charges against the school district re-
garding this matter?

Dr. Briss. No, they have not filed charges to the effect that we
don’t have an affirmative action plan.

Ms. TavyLoR. Have they filed charges against you alleging that there
are disparities in the staff regarding minorities?

DR. Briss. There have been individual cases filed against us, not in-
itiated by EEOC, but initiated by individuals, either within the commu-
nity or persons who have made application for jobs.

Ms. TayLorR. And EEOC is at this point involved after those in-
dividual charges have been filed; am I correct?

DRr. BLiss. Yes, they have made investigations.

Ms. TayLOR. Have they issued any findings?

Dr. BLiss. Yes. And in one case did submit for the district, in a con-
ciliatory manner, an affirmative action plan as it related to that
specific case. It was denied on the part of the school district.

Ms. TayLoR. Was denied on the part of the school district?

Dr. Buiss. That is correct.

Ms. TAYLOR. So you have done nothing further on that point?

Dr. BLiss. On the point of that affirmative action plan for that par-
ticular position?

Ms. TAYLOR. Yes.

DRr. BLiss. We have done nothing; that is correct.

Ms. TayLor. What about a general affirmative action plan?

DRr. BLiss. We do not have a general affirmative action plan.

Ms. TAYLOR. Is there any intention on your part to develop such a
plan?

Dr. BLiss. No.

Ms. TayLoRr. Why is there not?

Dr. Briss. I think our attitude is like that which was expressed by
the superintendent of schools. We do not feel like we have been dere-
lict in—discriminating against employees. On the particular case that
was filed against the school district in which they submitted an EEOC
draft and an affirmative action plan, the allegation was that we dis-
criminated against a Mexican American in a particular position. The
truth of the matter was we hired a Mexican American in that particu-
lar position, so it was difficult for us to concede that we had been dis-
criminatory in that that position was indeed filled by a Mexican Amer-
ican. It was a director-level position.
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Ms. TayLor. Dr. Bryant, have any curriculum or teaching method
changes been made in this district as a result of the desegregation of
last year—desegregation plan?

DR. BrRYANT. As Dr. Bliss has already indicated, there’s been quite
a lot of staff development preparation for teachers, for administrators,
central administrators and field administrators. The curriculum had to
be redesigned in bilingual education programs because the court case
scattered the children, as identified by the State bilingual education
program, all over the city. Sp, it took some three of my staff members
about a month’s work to trace down—by looking at the printouts of
the list of students for each of our schools in the district—to trace
down where those bilingual students were sent to. And then we tried
to provide a program for them, having to deploy teachers then after
school had begun to meet their particular needs.

We also wrote ESEA proposals that funded certain programs to
assist in this integration effort. Some of the programs that I will refer
you to were our teaching center located at the Carver annex of Rose
Shaw School, which was designed to provide staff development under
ESEA funds for our teaching staff to assist them in the areas of read-
ing, mathematics, and bilingual education as well as humanistic kinds
of development that would go along with integrative efforts.

Ms. TAYLOR. Very good. Could you describe for us, please, the abili-
ty-grouping system used in the elementary grades?

DRr. BRYANT. Yes, I could. Our ability-grouping system is one that
we term cooperative teaching. It is a blend of nongradedness with
team teaching. We have had this particular system in effect since 1965
in the Corpus Christi Independent School District. It is one that simply
takes every group of students, first of all it pairs teams of teachers and
we have nongraded the schools so we do not refer to them as grade
1, 2, 3, 4. We refer to module; primary modules as replacing grades
1 and 2; intermediate modules as replacing grades 3 and 4; and ad-
vanced modules as replacing grades 5 and 6; simply because we do not
think children fit grade designations, and we think the research has
adequately proven that over the years.

Now, once that is done, the students are organized heterogeneously
into a classroom; meaning that there are some enriched students capa-
ble of doing enriched work, some that are capable of moving along at
a medium pace, might be average, some that are rather slower moving
in comparison, are placed in the original classrooms together. Now,
the teaching then is divided into teaching units, each of which last
some 2 to 3 weeks in length on the average. Some are longer than
that. Some might be shorter. Each child is in a heterogeneous group
when the unit is first presented so as to enable him to have an equal
chance with every other child in that class, to show the same kind of
performance. At some midpoint in the teaching of that unit, the stu-
dents are tested, or by teacher opinion they are then divided into
groups more suitable to their needs as indicated by their performance
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in the unit itself. So that at that midpoint, three subgroups are then
formed. One for the enriched student who has exceeded the objectives
that the teachers had in a written form in a unit, when they prepared
the unit for teaching. The second group would be those that are about
on target. The third group would be those that need remedial help,
and teachers then are assigned by the modular chairperson to teach
those particular groups for the remainder of the unit, according to
their needs.

At the termination of that unit, the whole process is repeated, in-
troduction of the new unit to a heterogeneous group, regrouping
evaluation, teaching in the subgroups of enriched, standard, and basic,
and then reintroduction of a new unit. That is the grouping plan at the
elementary level.

Ms. TAaYLOR. Very good. Could you please describe for us the bilin-
gual program in this district?

Dr. BryanT. Well, I'd have to describe several bilingual programs
were I to do so. And as Dr. Williams already said, in 1956, recognizing
the needs of some Mexican American students who came to school
with inadequate English skills, we initiated in the district at that par-
ticular time a preschool non-English-speaking program which has since
been adopted across the State by the Texas Education Agency.

We’ve had preschool readiness programs and Head Start in 1965. In
1967, we were 1 of 33, or some number, not more than 35, in school
districts across the Nation that were granted a Follow Through grant.
In 1968, we developed a program using Title IIl funds of ESEA called
Experiment in Reading for Mexican American Students. It was based
on the development by our staff working with various textbook
publishers of special reading materials in bilingual education and was
funded, and was thought to be quite successful, and has received
publicity nationwide and internationally.

In 1969, we utilized the Education Professions Development Act in
collaboration with the Region II Education Service Center, located
here in Corpus Christi, to use funds to train teachers who were going
to be teaching bilingual education to our students. That lasted for 1
year, was a l-year grant only.

In 1970, we were one of the first school districts in the Nation to
enter into the Title VII ESEA program. I personally negotiated that
grant in Denver, Colorado; and we, again, as a component of that par-
ticular program included teacher training, multicultural studies, and
the like.

In 1974, the Texas Legislature passed Senate Bill 121 which man-
dated a State program of bilingual education for the public schools in
the State of Texas.

Following that—

Ms. TayLor. Did you say 1967 then?

Dr. BrRYANT. 1974 for the State bilingual education program.
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Following the requirements of that plan, our board of education
adopted a board policy specifying how the children would be identified
for the plan, notified, and that kind of thing. We continued to offer
that State-supported bilingual State education plan as well as Follow
Through and Title VII. The State plan was to be phased in. At first
it did not include kindergarten, but we voluntarily included kindergar-
ten in the plan before it was required by the State. Later the plan was
extended to include kindergarten and third grade. This year the third
graders enter for the first time into our bilingual education program.

Ms. TAYLOR. It has been stated that your bilingual program, at least
one of them, is accepted as a model over the country. I would like
to know at this point if the bilingual programs involved are at all of
your elementary schools in the district?

Dr. BrRYANT. Last year we had our State program or Follow Through
or Title VII in 30 of the 38 schools in the district.

Ms. TaYLOR. And why is it not—

Dr. BryaNT. Elementary schools.

Ms. TAYLoR. Why is it not in all the schools in the district; all the
387

DRr. BryanT. Because the need was not shown through the testing
procedures that we utilized, which were approved by the Texas Educa-
tion Agency.

Ms. TAYLOR. Why does the bilingual training stop at grade three?
I guess, beginning this year, you said it would go through grade three.
Why is that the case?

DR. BrYaNT. The formal State program will not fund you for more
than 3 years. You have the option to continue the program if war-
ranted. Our philosophy is, already expressed by Dr. Williams, is that
we utilize the transitional bilingual approach. We place the child into
bilingual education. We give him the degree of instruction in Spanish
or whatever his native tongue happens to be that he requires until such
time as he’s able to make the transition into English, and as rapidly
as we can, place him into English. We do so so that we can begin to
give him the skills that he will need.

Ms. TavLor. I want to ask you about older children, junior and
senior high school students who definitely need language skills above
that grade. How are these people, these children identified and do you
have any special programs to provide for these students?

DRr. BRYANT. Yes. These students are identified both by teachers and
by counselors. Any of these students who have a special language
problem are picked up by those folks as well as a central office staff
of consultants which are in the school’s regular visitation schedule.
Anytime a teacher receives a child in attendance in her classroom who
cannot speak the language of instruction, that teacher, of course, is in
trouble and immediately calls upon one of our subject-area consultants
for assistance. We have had an informal policy in effect for many years
whereby—because we do receive some Mexican nationals this close to
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the border—whereby upon receipt of such students, the teacher im-
mediately pairs this student or uses the buddy system, I guess is the
best way to express it, with a student who can speak his language and
English. The teacher also—the principal also assigns a teacher as an
advisor to that student who can speak his language—places that stu-
dent with his teacher as much as possible. It’s been our experience that
these students generally become functional in 6 to 8 months after ar-
riving here utilizing that particular plan.

A case in point was the initiation of a program for Vietnamese refu-
gees in our district, at this time last year. We were notified that there
was some 23. Before receipt of any Federal funds or promises of
Federal funds, this district took the initiative to provide a Vietnamese-
speaking person as a liaison person, counselor type. She was not cer-
tified; it was not possible to obtain such a person to work with these
students and their parents. We developed guides. We assigned a con-
sultant to work with these people. This year all of them are making
such fine progress that we did not need the program further. After
very careful study of the efforts that were made last year—

Ms. TayLoRr. Dr. Bliss, would you tell us please or describe for us
the types of student transfers available in the district and how they af-
fected desegregation?

DR. BLiss. Yes. We have five different broad policy kind of transfers
available to students in the district. The first of which, of course, that
was initially ordered by the court, is the majority-to-minority transfer
policy. And very simply it is that if a student is in a school in which
his ethnic percentage exceeds either 60 percent if he’s minority or 40
percent if he’s majority—perhaps we should say it at this point for the
record that minority in our particular school district means combined
Mexican American and black American or Negro Americans. Others
or so-called Anglos constitute the majority, which in our district is the
minority. Okay. Back to the policy itself.

If a student exceeds his particular percentage districtwide and that
percentage was set back in 1973 of 60-40, then he may opt to transfer
to a school into which the percentage is less than either the 60 or 40
depending on whether he is the majority or minority. And if he lives
more than 2 miles from the school to which he opts to transfer, he
is eligible to receive free transportation. So that’s the majority-to-
minority transfer policy.

We have for a number of years administered a board policy at the
elementary level called the hardship transfer policy, which speaks to
primarily the working mother in our community and says that a stu-
dent is eligible for transfer from one school to another if there are
identified child-care problems or transportation problems on a part of
the family.

The third kind of transfer policy we have is a course-offering
transfer which says that a student may transfer from one school to
another if a course is not taught or offered in the school that he
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presently is assigned to, but is offered in another school, that he or
she has the option to transfer to that school.

A fourth kind of transfer we have is called administrative transfer.
And board policy specifically says, and this is designed primarily for
secondary students, that a student may be administratively transfered
for disciplinary reasons or for extreme hardship reasons, and the ad-
ministration is left with some freedom and discretion as to the in-
terpretation. It has primarily been used to shift students around in the
district where they are involved in certain environmental disciplinary
problems, such as a number of years ago when we were experiencing
drug trafficking. Some of the schools [used it] to get a student out of
his or her environment into another school. It is designed to assist the
student and the family.

Those are the primary—

Ms. TaviLor. Have they had any effect upon the—have they
prevented, I guess I should say, achieving the 75-25 ratio of the
schools that were ordered in the court order?

Dr. BLiss. Well, obviously the majority-to-minority does not have
negative effects. It can have only positive effects so we can exclude
that one.

Ms. TAaYLOR. Right.

DRr. BLiss. There was some concern on the part of the court last
year, and I think we should say that before we implemented the so-
called computer plan at the elementary level that it was discussed with
the court whether or not we could continue to grant hardship trans-
fers, and the court did say that we should and could continue to grant
hardship transfers. There were in some schools a negative effect
achieved as a result of the administration and continuing to grant
under the same guidelines, hardship transfers, that had been granted
prior to the receipt of the order in July of 1975. So, the court spoke
to that in the order that we received of July ’76, and it was refined
even further by saying that we could continue to grant hardship trans-
fers at the elementary level so long as it did not have more than a 1
percent negative effect on the prescribed ratios, and we arz now ad-
ministrating the policy with those court-ordered guidelines.

Ms. TayLor. Have you encountered any problems with regard to
discipline or classroom control as a result?

DRr. BLiss. I'm sorry, I have extreme difficulty hearing you.

Ms. TAYLOR. Sorry. All right. Have you encountered any problems
with regard to discipline or classroom control as a result of desegrega-
tion?

Dr. BLiss. Not really because again we’re talking about elementary
kids.

Ms. TAYLOR. Yes.

Dr. BLiss. My experience has been that—this is not the first school
district 've worked in which we were involved in desegregation. The
student discipline problems as a result of desegregation don’t normally
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occur at the elementary level anyway, so I would say that we’ve really
not experienced any significant discipline problems as a result of the
court order.

Ms. TayLor. Do you expect any problems as older students become
involved?

Dr. Buiss. That’s a tough question to answer. I think it’s no deep-
dark secret that probably schools throughout the Nation are experienc-
ing more discipline problems these days at the junior high school level
than they are perhaps at any other level. In the vertical process of edu-
cation, we anticipate we will have discipline problems at the junior
high schools this year. We had discipline problems last year. I would
anticipate we’ll have next year.

Whether or not they will be as a direct result of the court order that
we received, I think that would be purely speculative on my part. I
think I know this, having served as a junior high school principal in
a suburban school district in Ft. Worth in which only four of the stu-
dents that were assigned to my school were not eligible bus students.
I think I do know that you can take almost any kind of disciplinary
problems such as fighting and smoking and boy-girl hanky-panky, and
you put it on the bus and it’s compounded.

But let me also say this, certainly we have anticipated these kinds
of problems and we feel like we have a system—an administrative
system that’s capable of dealing with those sorts of things, and even
more so than that, capable of preventing many of them from occur-
ring.

Ms. TAYLOR. Mr. Pearce, how did you prepare for court-ordered
busing for the '75-76 school year?

DR. PEARCE. I’'m sorry, Ms. Taylor, I'm having difficulty hearing you
also.

Ms. TayLor. How did you prepare for the court-ordered busing for
1975-76 school year?

DRr. PEaRcE. Let me answer that question, but before I do, Dr.
Flemming, I would like to take this opportunity if I might to clear up
a point in Dr. Williams’ testimony; he asked me to do this.

In reporting the general operating fund budget, Dr. Williams re-
ported approximately $32 million, and that was a figure for the previ-
ous year. Last year’s general operating fund budget was $38,449,000.

So, if I might—

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. We’re very happy to receive that information.
What was the total budget?

DRr. PEARCE. The total budget, he gave the right figure, it was $52
million.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Okay.

DRr. PEARCE. More exactly, $51,926,000.

Now to answer your question, Ms. Taylor. When we received the
court order last year that required movement of students across the
district, | immediately sat down and studied to determine the number
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of buses we would need to implement the program and requested
through the Texas Education Agency that the State board of control
take emergency bids on purchase of school buses and ask that an early
delivery date be a factor in awarding bids. And then began to employ
drivers and train drivers for the buses. These buses were not to be
available at the beginning of the school year. They were not to be
available until about around the first of October, and we worked with
the city of Corpus Christi, their department of transportation, and
through a private contractor and contracted for buses to transport the
children during the first month of the school year.

Ms. TaYLoR. One last question. Could you tell us how much State
money has been or will be reimbursed to the Corpus Christi Indepen-
dent School District for the busing of students during the 1975-76
school year?

DRr. PEARCE. Yes, ma’am. During the 1975-76 school year, this dis-
trict spent $1,439,120 for the purchase and operation of school buses.
We were reimbursed $183,106.

Ms. TayLor. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Thank you very much.

I'd like to return for a moment to the question of your relationships
with the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission. Over a period,
let’s say of the last 4 years, how many cases have you been involved
in with the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission; that is, you,
meaning the school district?

Dr. BLiss. I've only been in the school district 3 years, so I can only
speak for 3 years, Mr. Flemming.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. I'll take 3 years.

DRr. Buiss. I believe there have been three cases filed in those 3
years.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Could you briefly summarize the outcome of
each one of those cases?

DRr. BLiss. One of the cases really was only an investigative case.
The EEOC came onto the scene and investigated and decided not to
pursue it. The second case was the one that I referred to awhile ago,
in which they in effect said the school district was guilty and offered,
in a form of conciliatory agreement, an affirmative action plan on the
part of the school district which spoke not only to that particular issue,
but some other issues. The third case has not been resolved.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Let’s go back to the second case. They found
for the plaintiff in this particular case?

DRr. BLriss. That is correct.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. And based on that finding, they in effect
recommended or suggested that they would be willing to close out the
case if the school district developed an affirmative action plan?

Dr. BLiss. If the school district adopted their affirmative action plan.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Okay. Did you have any discussions ‘with
them relative to the contents of their proposed plan?

Dr. BLIss. Yes, sir, we did.
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CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Did you indicate a willingness to adopt an af-
firmative action plan, but one that would be possibly different from the
one that they proposed?

Dr. BLiss. No, we did not because it was our belief that we were
not guilty of the allegation that was brought against the school district.
As I said before, Mr. Flemming, the indication was that we had been
discriminatory for not hiring a Mexican American applicant when we
had hired a Mexican American for the position that he sought. And
we suggested to the EEOC, at that time, that if they wished to pursue
it, then they needed to do so through the courts.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Has the EEOC taken any action to pursue it
through the courts? Have they given you any notification of their next
move, if any?

Dr. Buiss. I was just discussing with our attorney, we have so many
suits against us, we can’t remember. I do not believe they have.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. When the decision was made not to talk with
them about an affirmative action plan, was that a decision of the board
of education?

Dr. BLiss. The board of education was aware and apprised of the
situation. As far as there being an item on the agenda for action on
the part of the agenda, the answer is no. It was an administratively
handled matter.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Independent of any EEOC proceeding, have
you or the superintendent the board given consideration to the possi-
bility of developing a formal affirmative action plan?

Dr. BLiss. Again, seriously we have not. And let me see if I can’t
qualify it so it doesn’t sound like we’re quite so negative.

I think the literal interpretation of affirmative action is some sort of
positive movement away from something that’s negative. And it has
not been our belief in this school district that we have been pursuing
a practice of employment that is negative and, therefore, to say that
we're really willing now to set down and establish a quota system
though a plan is beyond the scope of our imagination, because, first,
because we do not feel we've been discriminatory. We think our histo-
ry over the past few years, first, shows that positive progress has been
made and, secondly, depending on what sort of ultimate goal one
would choose, I think the realities of the situation in Texas and in this
part of the country dictate, at this point in time, you can’t get to there
from here. And one of the studies that one of our own staff members
conducted show that if we were to have next year the number of Mex-
ican American teachers, and we’re almost there as far as Negro Amer-
ican teachers ratio to the students that we have, but again let’s concen-
trate on Mexican American teachers; if we were to employ, assuming
we had vacancies, enough teachers to be proportionate to the students
we have, we would have to employ every single Mexican American
graduate in the State of Texas next year and we just can’t do it.
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CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Any affirmative action plan, of course, must
be related to the supply of qualified personnel, and in the development
of any affirmative action plan that is always one of the criteria that
is kept in mind. I assume from what you have said and really from
what the superintendent has said that you are not satisfied with the
status quo as far as the employment of minorities, particularly Spanish-
heritage persons, are concerned?

DR. BLiss. Your question?

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. You question the number of persons who may
be available for employment, but am' I correct in my assumption that
although you have made progress, you are not satisfied with the
present picture?

Dr. Briss. Well, if the nature of your question is that should we be
striving toward a better percentage of Mexican Americans, then I must
answer to your question, yes. We’re not completely satisfied because
that is an almost intangible goal, and we feel like we are getting our
fair share, through recruitment practices that we employ, of those that
are being produced by the major teacher colleges and universities
throughout the State and, incidentally, outside the State. We go out-
side the State to recruit, primarily in New Mexico.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. In other words, you are working towards
some kind of a standard of performance in this area?

Dr. Buiss. Yes. It may be very difficult to get a handle on it. I think,
yes, we have some specific sorts of or at least some general sort of
ideas in mind of the administrative staff about what we ought to be
trying to do.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Will the percentage of minority teachers and
staff for the coming school year be greater than for the last?

Dr. BLIss. Yes, it will be.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Do you have any feel as to—

Dr. BLiss. We only employ—you have to keep in mind that the at-
trition rate of teachers is declining considerably and also we have a
declining enrollment, so reduction in force is one of those things that’s
upon us as well. We've tried to handle that through normal attrition,
but we have tried to replace the teachers who left the school district
and the vacancies that were created as a result of any number of
reasons with as many qualified competent minority candidates as was
feasibly possible.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Tried to do—do you think you succeeded to
the extent that the average will go up for the present school year—

Dr. BLiss. Yes.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. —as compared to the last school year?

Dr. BLiss. I don’t have any figures, but as a matter of fact, we'’re
not through employing because we don’t know exactly what our enroll-
ment is going to be.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. If I understand you correctly, as you look for-
ward to the following school year, you plan to try to recruit additional
teachers and staff?
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Dr. BLiss. Yes.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. From the minority—

Dr. BLiss. Yes. Well, it’s a continuous process.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. But you haven’t given yourself any specific
goals as of the present time?

Dr. Buiss. No, except to say the maximum.

CHaIRMAN FLEMMING. Coming now to the past year’s experience
under the court-ordered desegregation, have you in your position
identified developments related to the desegregation plan which you
believe have contributed to the goal of equal educational opportunities
within the system?

Dr. BRYANT. Mr. Flemming, having worked in this school district for
some 25 years and having an intimate knowledge of the elementary
schools which were affected, I was of the opinion, prior to the integra-
tion plan, that there was equal educational opportunities, as I un-
derstand it. Of course, you know, there’s great debate over exactly
what the term means, but I have known throughout the years that we
have basic lists of equipment that are installed in every school in this
district, there was some—there were older school facilities than others,
but the teachers were employed with the same qualifications. I myself
was a principal in a ghetto school, so to speak, with 60 some odd per-
cent black students for 8 years. At no time did I ever feel that while
1 was principal of that school, which incidentally had the first black
teachers in Corpus Christi in it and on its faculty, at no time would
I have tolerated, nor did I ever feel that there was anything unequal
about the kinds of equipment or teachers or education that our school
was receiving or giving to students under my care.

My knowledge of professionals with whom I dealt, both teachers and
other administrators, reinforced that point of view. So, I cannot, in the
space of time of 1 year, say that I've seen any startling kinds of hap-
penings that would lead me toward that conclusion.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Well, striking the word “startling,” have you
identified any developments that you feel will improve the situation as
far as equal educational opportunities are concerned if they are—if
they continue to be carried out in accordance with the court order?
See, I have to start with the finding of the court that, in fact, that
equal educational opportunities did not exist; that is why the court is-
sued its order, and that’s why the computer plan has been put into
operation.

I certainly value your judgment in light of your long connection with
the system. I’'m just wondering whether as you’ve watched this during
the year, as you've had the experiences that I know you’ve had during
the year, whether you've identified some developments which you then
feel if they are continued will help to improve the situation as far as
equal educational opportunities are concerned?

DR. BrRYANT. [ really cannot say yes to that, Mr. Flemming. I simply
have no objective data on which to base it. I also know that there were
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many negative aspects that would contribute toward some possible
problems in that area. Again, though, 1 realize we’ve only had 1 year
experience.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Yes. Yes. Let me come to that because I was
going to ask you that also. Let me just express a little bit more on the
other aspect of it.

As a result of the court-ordered desegregation, did some children in
the system have the opportunity of having educational experiences
with persons from other cultures, opportunities which they would not
have had if it had not been for the court-ordered plan?

DRr. BRYANT. I would say that some students within the district had
opportunities for social experiences that they probably would not have
had in normal situations through the year, the mixture that resulted
from the court plan.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Do you regard that as being on the asset side
of the ledger?

Dr. BryYAaNT. | think the way our professional staff has worked to
make it an asset would cause me to think so in that way. Again, that
is not the whole story, but in that narrow aspect I would have to say,
yes, the exposure that has resulted, the interaction that has resulted
has no harmful effect and in some cases been good for social interac-
tion.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Let me say that we have taken a good deal
of testimony in other communities which points to the same conclu-
sion. Personally, I've always felt that that was a part of the total educa-
tional experience of a student, child, or young person attending school.

Now, you did indicate to me that you have identified developments
related to the desegregation plan which, you believe, tend to stand in
the way of achieving the goal of equal educational opportunity. I
would appreciate your identifying those developments.

DR. BRYANT. The traveling associated with sending young students
across town in school buses, the feeling of unease by parents who
placed those students on buses, that send them 12 miles across town
and know that if they are ill, they may be there all day. Working
parents who have these kinds of hardships, I don’t believe, contributes
in a positive way towards education, because I think that education is
in a partnership through the home and I think for it to work at max-
imum effectiveness both parties have to feel good about what is hap-
pening. And I would have to say to you that in a great many instances
many of our parents have not felt good about what is happening
because there have been cases resulting from our computer plan in
which one child, of one race or ethnic group, was isolated in a particu-
lar classtoom of a school and suffered because of that isolation. In
spite of all of our efforts to try to alleviate that problem, it still per-
sisted. So, these are the negative aspects to which I referred a moment
ago.
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CualrRMAN FLEMMING. You accept, however, the fact that the
Supreme Court found that segregated schools are in conflict with the
Constitution; therefore, we have to move in the direction of
desegregated schools.

You’ve identified some problems that have arisen, as to work, during
this first year under a court-ordered desegregation plan. Have you, on
the assumption that there’s going to continue to be court-ordered
desegregation, developed programs designed to deal in a positive way
with the issues that you have identified?

Dr. BRYANT. Yes, sir. The ESEA program to which I referred earlier
has that as its major goal and purpose. Certain other locally sponsored
inservice training programs also have these as goals.

Our consultant staff has been educated to assist in every way, been
assigned to principals during the first week of the school year last year,
and this year, to assist in helping students to become acclimatized in
the new school where they find themselves. So, we’re doing everything
we know how to minimize the problems that I have referred to.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Thank you very much. Commissioner Ruiz.

CoMmmMmissioNER Rulz. I believe you have accepted the fact that
minority faculty hiring is undersized compared to the district ratio
composition?

Dr. Buiss. Yes.

CommissioNER Ruiz. I understand that there are about 18,000 stu-
dents that have a home language of Spanish and not English. How
many of these students whose primary language comprehension is not
English are given bilingual instruction?

Dr. Briss. Would you like for Dr. Bryant to answer that question?
Since he’s our—

CommissioNER Ruiz. Either one of you, Mr. Bryant or Dr. Bliss, can
answer that question.

Dr. BryanT. Eighteen thousand students were identified as having
a primary home language other than English. There were some 20 dif-
ferent language categories in the city when we did our survey as of
last November the first. At that particular time, we reported to HEW
that we were serving 1,745 students in bilingual education programs.
In the first two categories of the HEW report, which were those who
speak only the native language, and category number two, those who
speak mostly the native language, there were some 3,967 students, and
I would prefer to say that of that 3,967 students we were serving 1,745
at that particular time in our State Follow Through and Title VII bilin-
gual effort.

CoMMIssIONER Ruiz. Now, Mr. Bryant, Mr. Williams wasn’t sure
what the words affirmative action meant. You were here when I tried
to get a definition from Mr. Williams and apparently Mr. Williams
first-hand wasn’t acquainted with what it meant on the subject matter
at hand. Have you as Mr. Williams’ delegated specialists ever discussed
the term affirmative action with Mr. Williams?
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Dr. BrYANT. I can’t say that I’ve discussed the term affirmative ac-
tion with Dr. Williams. I have discussed it in a general way, not in a
specific way.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. The term—

ComMissioNER Ruiz. The words affirmative action in conversations
between you and Mr. Williams haven’t come up then for discussion
only?

Dr. BrYaNT. Only in a general way because they come in almost all
Federal documents that we receive nowadays, Title IX, the whole bit.

ComMIssiONER Rulz. In this general way apparently there has been
a lack of understanding between you and your superiors on this ele-
ment of equal opportunity and this may be one of the difficulties that
we’ve been having in Corpus Christi. Now, I listened to your testimony
very carefully and your testimony indicates an excellent grasp of the
logistics involved in a successful bilingual program. Apparently from
what 1 hear here, you are being shorthanded when it comes to
teachers, is that correct?

DRr. BRYANT. That is correct. We [do not] have enough teachers to
fulfill the requirements of the State-mandated bilingual education pro-
gram as well as Follow Through and Title VII.

ComMissioNER Ruiz. Now, who specifically is in charge of getting
Mexican Americans into teaching positions?

DR. BrYANT. I would say that our personnel office which is under
Dr. Bliss.

CoMMISSIONER Ruiz. Now, apparently Texas colleges aren’t produc-
ing Mexican American credentialed teachers. What special efforts have
you made to go to other States, let us say, California, to acquire them?

DRr. BrYANT. I'll have to defer that question to Dr. Bliss.

CoMMISSIONER Ruiz. To Dr. whom?

Dr. BrYaNT. To Dr. Bliss who is assistant superintendent for ad-
ministration.

DRr. BLiss. Let me see if I, without passing the buck, can correct
something just a little bit. Our director of personnel is specifically in
charge of the recruitment of the teachers and his department—that de-
partment is within the division of administration and the director of
personnel is Mr. Edward Galvan. Now, as to your question about what
effort do we take to go outside the State?

CoMMISSIONER Ruiz. Yes, have you gone to California?

DRr. BLiss. No, we have not.

ComMissIONER Ruiz. Have you gone to anyplace other than New
Mexico?

Dr. Briss. Not to my knowledge, not in the 3 years that I’ve been
in the district.

ComMissioNER Ruiz. Have you ever thought of going to your
neighbor State to the south of us, the state of Coahuila? I understand
that there are many schools in Mexico where American children at-
tend to learn Spanish. Some of our universities have teacher exchange
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programs. Have you checked the University of Southern California or
any of those universities that have that type of an exchange as a transi-
tory period in order to fill the gap while we’re getting materials, local
material trained?

Dr. BLiss. No, we have not.

CommissioNER Ruiz. Have you tried the United States Office of
Education?

DRr. BLiss. You mean, have we gone to the department recruiting
teachers?

ComMiIssioNER Ruiz. Through the department of education in
Washington?

Dr. BLiss. No, we have not been there to recruit teachers.

ComMIssiIONER Ruiz. Have you ever corresponded with organiza-
tions—well, they have printouts. Many institutions—

DRr. BLiss. We get all the printouts, yes, from the U.S. Office of
Education, from our own State associations, from the United States
Directory of Available Teachers, from all sorts of sources.

CoMMISSIONER Ruiz. And have you gone to printouts with relation
to available talent in other universities outside New Mexico?

Dr. BLiss. Yes, we are on the mailing list of a number of placement
offices at colleges and universities throughout the Nation. When you
talk about recruitment, I assume, you meant do we physically go to
that institution or that particular point or place within the confines of
the geographic areas you have mentioned.

ComMIsSIONER Ruiz. What I am trying to find out is this. Affirmative
action means exactly what it says and there’s no mystery about it. For
example, when we wanted to get our space age off the ground, to get
through the use of rocketry for the space age. The Department of
State had no difficulty in getting experts from Europe and from the
United States. Have you suggested to the Texas State Education Agen-
cy to assist you in recruiting bilingual teachers from anyplace outside
of the State of Texas?

Dr. Biiss. I can remember when I was in Texarkana, Texas, and we
first desegregated the schools, we went with an ESEA project and
asked for funding from the Federal level to give us assistance in
recruiting minority teachers, and they failed to give it to us. And I
think we have been somewhat frustrated at the public school level in
trying to comply with the Federal guidelines without Federal assistance
to comply with those guidelines.

CoMMISSIONER Ruiz. Well, apparently this is one. of the negative
things that we have to deal with at the present time?

Dr. BLiss. No, we have to deal with it.

CommissioNER Ruiz. We, I am including we as part of you and
myself because it’s a mutual problem, sir. We have to deal with and
as I understand, you are looking forward to establishing more energy
along these lines, as you have giving your thought over to our chair-
man as to the near future.

Dr. BLiss. Yes.
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ComMissioNER Ruiz. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. We’re very appreciative of your being with us
and providing us with this information.

Counsel will call the next witness.

MRr. GLick. Mr. Chairman, the next are members of the Board of
Education of the Corpus Christi Independent School District. To begin
with, Cornell Barnard, the president of the the board; Marsha Darling-
ton, Mr. Dale Hornsby, Mr. Franklin Bass, and Mr. Glenn Hutson.
There are two members of the board who are not available to testify
today.

Please remain standing so the Chairman may swear you in.

[Messrs. Barnard, Hornby, Bass, and Hutson and Ms. Darlington
were sworn. ]

TESTIMONY OF CORNELL BARNARD, PRESIDENT, BOARD OF EDUCATION,
CORPUS CHRISTI INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT; MARSHA DARLINGTON,
FRANKLIN BASS, DALE HORNSBY, AND W. GLENN HUTSON, MEMBERS, BOARD
OF EDUCATION, CORPUS CHRISTI INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

Ms. TayLor. Would you all state your names and address and
present position for the record and state how long you have served as
a member of the board of education, beginning with Dr. Barnard?

DRr. BARNARD. I'm Dr. Cornell Barnard. My home residence is 13
Lake Shore Drive, Corpus Christi, Texas. I have been on the board of
education for 10 years.

Ms. DARLINGTON. | am Marsha Darlington. I reside at 4729 Congres-
sional in Corpus Christi, Texas. I have been a member of the body of
trustees for approximately 4-1/2 years.

MR. Bass. I am Franklin Bass. I live at 633 Moray. I've been on the
Corpus Christi Independent School District board for 10 years.

MR. HornsBy. I'm Dale Hornsby. I reside at 4409 Coventry Lane
in Corpus Christi, Texas. I have been a member of the board of
trustees for approximately 5 months.

Mr. HuTsoN. W. G. Hutson, 3409 Floyd, Corpus Christi. I've been
a member of this board of education for 12 years.

Ms. TayLor. Dr. Barnard, what was your assessment of the condi-
tions of the Corpus Christi Independent School District with respect
to segregation when you were first elected to the school board?

Dr. BARNARD. My observations, as far as the neighborhood school
system that we used, we had no segregation. I think at that time, if
I am not mistaken, we had a freedom of choice for the black. Is that
not true, Mr. Gary? I think we had a freedom of choice for the black
students and all the rest of the students went to the neighborhood
school. Neighborhoods were—there was no—as far as I know,
economically no one was restricted from living in any part of town.
I'm not sure of this. I've heard differently. I know now that there is
a law that restricts anyone from not selling to anyone in any part of
town
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Ms. TaYLOR. Mr. Hutson, prior to the Cisneros lawsuit—in filing of
the Cisneros lawsuit in 1968—were any efforts made by individuals or
groups in the community to call to the board’s attention disparities in
the provision of educational services that you know of?

MR. HuTtson. If I understand your question, there were from time
to time clamors for better teaching and better learning. I do not know
that it referred to any particular racial or ethnic group. I do not re-
member that—any evidentiary presentation to the board of education
which would indicate that there was something lacking in our offering
of equal opportunity in schools.

Ms. TaYLor. All right. What plans were made by the school board
to assure the successful implementation of the 1975 court-ordered
computer desegregation plan?

MR. HutsoN. I'm sorry, I don’t think I understood.

Ms. TayLOR. What plans were made by the board, school board, to
assure the successful implementation of the 1975 court-ordered com-
puter desegregation plan, and I'd like for each one of you to respond
to that if you would like?

MR. Hutson. Since I'm talking to you would you like me to be first?

Ms. TAYLOR. Sure. Yes.

Mgr. Hutson. This was an administrative matter. We anticiapted no
problems with it; we had none. The court order was implemented by
the superintendent of staff and the community accepted it as each one
to his own taste.

Ms. TayLor. Would anyone else like to comment on that?

MR. HorNsBY. I pass because I was not on the board at that time.

MR. Bass. Ms. Taylor, I think this plan was implemented due to the
fact that the court ordered us to implement this plan. Now, I want to
make it perfectly clear to you that I never did like the order that was
given to me; and I don’t like it today, and you can take this and go
back to wherever you want to and tell them exactly what I said about
it too.

I think we’ve done a good job on implementing what we have been
forced to do.

Ms. TAYLOR. Mr. Bass—

MR. Bass. That’s right.

Ms. TayLor. What don’t you like about the plan?

MR. Bass. I just don’t think that it takes any ethnic balance in any
school for a child to get an education. That child has to put out
something of his own. If he don’t—I can drive you up there to that
waterhole, but I can’t make you drink that water. Do you agree with
me?

Ms. TayLor. I understand what you’re saying. Would anyone else
like to comment?

Ms. DARLINGTON. I would just like to think that—I think part of the
reason that the elementary plan was put into effect with as little noise
as there was in the community was because of two reasons. The first



51

reason was that those who were not affected did not make any noise.
If your kid is not going, then why knock it. We don’t think about a
year from now. The other portion is those people who were affected
had their children in school or else they had them in private schools
and they were not affected. Those people were intimidated so they
were not going to yell a great deal, their child is sitting in a minority
situation or a majority situation. So, you had both groups of citizens
who still didn’t like it a lot, who were not cooperating a lot, because
of our great loss of minority parents, but there was not a great uproar
in the community because of those two reasons.

Ms. TaYLOR. Dr. Barnard, would you like to comment on that?

Dr. BARNARD. No, I have no further comments.

Ms. TayLor. Or anyone else? Mrs. Darlington, I think you’ve pretty
much answered my next question, but I'd like for you to elaborate a
little bit more. What has been the Corpus Christi Independent School
District’s experience with the computer plan, and what do you see as
the major complaints of it?

Ms. DARLINGTON. I think the plan is very inequitable and I think
that’s why the parents are very hesitant to put their child into it. I
think that’s why we’ve had the great amount of white flight that we
have from the district at the elementary level, and I know that most
citizens, not only in Corpus Christi, Texas, but all over these United

States when dealt with fairly will try to be cooperative, and I don’t
think that the computer plan does that. It isolates students. It doesn’t

provide for their best interests. It walks a great number of students
who are already in an integrated situation. It leaves the busing or the
forced transportation to certain areas of the city, isolating those stu-

dents in other areas of the—both majority and minority students. It’s
very arbitrary in the students that it picks. It has no regard for educa-

tion, for safety for the student in the way of crossing the streets and
freeways. There are not a lot of good things that I can say about it,
yet the people of the community have had to buy it.

Ms. TAYLOR. Thank you. Mr. Hornsby, you indicated to the staff
that you favor bilingual education. Why do you have this position?
Why do you adhere to this?

MR. HornsBY. Well, as has already been stated, we have been a
community that has a large number of people who speak a language
other than English, and I think for enhancement of their education,
they certainly need to understand the language that they’re being
taught in. And obviously, one could not or I don’t—it’s my personal
belief that one could not attend 12 years of public schooling, receiving
language in—receiving education in a language other than English and
then be a productive citizen in the United States when they completed
their schooling. So, I think at some point you would have to delete this
program. I don’t know at this point just where that would be.

Ms. TayLor. All right. Since you were elected in April, I guess, of
this year to the board, what efforts have been made to assure that the
district is in compliance with the Lau v. Nichols decision?
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MR. HornsBy. Well, in the conversations that I have been a party
to concerning the Lau decision there has been quite a bit of confusion
apparent on the national level as to just what we’re supposed to do
with the Lau decision. And so, from what I've gleaned from the con-
versations that I have been a party to is that. we would rather substitute
the Texas Education Agency requirements instead of the Lau
remedies.

Ms. TayrLor. I would like for each of you to respond to this
question, please. Do you believe that minority representation on the

board is necessarv? If, yes, why? And if not, why not?
DR. BARNARD. I feel that actually the board represents the whole

community, I wouldn’t want to feel that our present board represents
any group of people or ethnic group. I don’t feel like it is absolutely
necessary. I think that the minorities feel more confortable with a
board that has a minority member.

Ms. TAYLOR. Ms. Darlington?

Ms. DARLINGTON. 1 think that you see in the composition of the
board the people who are elected representative of the people who
vote in this district, and I think if a minority person ran that was
qualified to serve on this board that he would have won or she. I really
don’t think that—we do have a suit filed against us, as you probably
know, about single-member districts. I do not see any vote dilution in
the minority district. If you look at the many elections, you will find
that minority people won those elections. There is no reason to think
that people would vote in the school board election who would vote
in the elections for representatives or for any other election in the city.
And I think if qualified Mexican Americans and blacks ran for this
board, that they would then be elected. They certainly have the voting
power to do it.

‘Ms. TAYLOR. Mr. Bass?

MR. Bass. Well, I want to say that I think I represent all the people
in this city, not necessarily the Anglos, the Mexican, or the Negro. I
hope that I am representing everybody in this city so I have to think
that it—if they want to run and they have been candidates who have
run, but have been unsuccessful only in one case—I think they have
the opportunity. It’s here for them.

MR. HornsBY. I do not believe that it’s a prerequisite to have an
excellent board of education to have minority representation on the
board. I think it might be desirable, but I don’t view it as being a
necessity. I would like to think that I am wise enough to represent the
community as a whole.

Ms. TayLor. Thank you. Mr. Hutson?

MR. Hutson. Would you like to ask the question please?

Ms. TAYLOR. Yes. Do you believe that minority representation on
the board is necessary to ensure minority interest?

MR. HutsoN. No, I do not think it’s necessary. I might comment,
as Mr. Hornsby, that I think it’s desirable. I have to give as a reason
that there is in regarding the Mexican American community more than
the black, there’s considerable division there, and one of the ways they
indicate their preference for people in public office is by staying away
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from the polls. If they go to the polls, they always name a Spanish sur-
name. So this is one method of indicating their preference for officials
who are elected. And this would deprive them if we made
some—imposed some plan—we are considering some that it would
deprive them of their option of staying away from the polls, not
because they’re lazy or neglect but because of their conviction.

Ms. TayLor. Thank you verv much. Mr. Chairman, .
CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. I would like to pursue the question, Ms.

Darlington and gentlemen, with respect to your answers concerning
the representation of minorities on the school board. And I think each
of you indicated that you believe that you were capable of represent-
ing such minorities. And first of all, I'd like to ask if in the counting
of the votes—did you, first of all, have minorities, have a Mexican
American, as a candidate for the school board in the past election?

Ms. DARLINGTON. Yes. There have been candidates running, yes.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. There were Mexican American candidates for
the school board in the past election?

Ms. DARLINGTON. Yes.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Were there black persons who were can-
didates for the school board in the past election?

Ms. DARLINGTON. I don’t believe so.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Those—the Mexican American candidate or
candidates lost?

Ms. DARLINGTON. Right.

CHaIRMAN FLEMMING. Do you have any information as to those
areas in which the Mexican Americans received the greater number of
votes, the areas of the city?

Ms. DARLINGTON. I really didn’t look over the election poll that
minutely because I wasn’t running. But I would assume that they would
poll the most number of votes in the areas where there were most
Mexican Americans. \

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Would you know whether—from the board of
election commissioners—they would have the count? Let me tell you
what I am getting at. If in this community, as I believe it is true, there
are certain sections that are predominately Anglo residents, then there
are other sections in which they are predominately Mexican Amer-
icans, then there are other sections that are predominately black. That
if in the sections that there were predominately Anglo and none of the
Anglos voted for the Mexican Americans, then this would be interest-
ing for a determination as to whether people are voting on the basis
of race or ethnic origin. That is why it would be helpful to us, in this
respect, in considering your replies to the questions.

Ms. DARLINGTON. I understand what you are trying to say, and I
think that a more recent vote is the May election in which there were,
I think, of one single—there were two elections where there were Mex-
ican Americans who were opposing Anglos, and the vote all over the
city was predominately Mexican American. The vote where the Anglo
percentage was the highest was either half or predominately for the
Mexican American. In the heavy Mexican American and black com-
munities the vote was almost 100 percent for Mexican Americans. And
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in that election I looked into the reviews enough to know in the school
board elections we have not found that many voters in the
predominately black and Mexican American communities, which

nobody can make you vote. And so it has not been that those commu-
nities were not carried, but simply a lack of voters whereas the

predominately Anglo community has consistently voted in school
board elections.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. As you probably know, one of the concerns
of this Commission is of voter participation, not only voter registration,
but actually voting, and we have, of course, had an interest in the Vot-
ing Rights Act. And when the Commission endorsed the extension of
the Voting Rights Act, one of the provisions that the Commission was
concerned about was the extent to which the—because of the lack of
bilingual education, because of the fact that the information concern-
ing the election was not available equally in English and Spanish,
whether that would have had a negative impact on the voter participa-
tion. This is one of the reasons why I'm pursuing this question because
it relates not only to the result of the election, but it also relates to
other aspects of the Commission’s jurisdiction.

Ms. DARLINGTON. Yes, I understand that and you do know that in
Texas, now we have—all the election is bilingual as well as there must
be one official in each precinct who is also bilingual.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Yes, we are.

Ms. DARLINGTON. So we no longer have this. This could have been
possible in the past; however, all of our school district’s things have
come out bilingually for a number of years. I think we find that a Iot
of parents who are illiterate in English are also illiterate in Spanish and
for those people, who are very low on the economic scale for the most
part, are no more helped by our bilingual efforts in communicating
with parents than we were able to get to them by communicating with
them in English many years ago.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Then my next question goes to the fact that
the board of education recognizes there may be the need for additional
adult education. Now, to what extent has the board developed and car-
ried out programs for continuing education of the adult population?

Ms. DARLINGTON. We have adult education. It’s been—I can’t tell
you how many years it’s been functional. We’ve had several different
phases of it. We have one now that offers a GED [General Education
Development certificate] for adults or those who are older than high
school age, it [is] also administered to those who are of high school
age but who have dropped out, however. We have offered from time
to time schooling for parents to help their children, a sort of preschool
programs for parents who want to help their children, and yet do not
feel capable. This has been done on an adult education basis, although
that’s not the name of the program. I went to the adult education
graduation last year; we must have graduated some 50 students, I be-
lieve. We have a good facility for that now because we were forced
to close the school that is in a neighborhood where we can administer
to many people on a walk-in basis. Many people were there and
thrilled to death. I believe age 72 was the oldest one we graduated,
but [he was] thrilled at [that] age to go ahead and finish his high
school education.
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CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Each of you indicated that you believe that
you could represent the total community. Well, would each of you in-
dicate to this Commission your contacts with the minorities, the con-
tact, and the nature of that contact?

DRr. BARNARD. Could I answer on this adult education program? We
also have education—TV educational programs over our public TV
which many take advantage of, and over 65 people have a group that
come into the adult education schools and help in tutoring our adults.

I'll try to answer your next question.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. What organizations that are black or Mexican
Americans do you relate to, do you speak to, and what occasions do
you listen to the concerns of those organizations and individuals?

DR. BARNARD. Anytime any group or any individual comes to me,
black, Mexican American, or Anglo, my phone is always available. I'm
always available for any discussion. Through my profession, I'm a
dentist, I have a very high minority—

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. What business?

DR. BARNARD. I'm a dentist.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Dentist?

DRr. BARNARD. Right. I have many patients that come to me. I have
lived in this community all my life. I was raised with black and Mex-
ican Americans. I went to school with them. We had blacks—of
course, we were segregated at that time, but I have a very good rela-
tionship with the minorities in this town.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. You are not suggesting that when a patient
comes to you for dental care that that’s when you discuss the school
problems?

DR. BARNARD. If they have a question, I discuss it with them. I had
a lady in this week, this last week. Her child was being taken care of
through the Title XIX dental care program, and she had some
questions to ask me about her child being bused from one school to
another. And I took the time out at that time to answer her questions
because I knew it was important to her.

CHAalRMAN FLEMMING. Have you ever initiated any contact with the
NAACP [National Association for the Advancement of Colored Peo-
ple] or any other civil rights organization?

DR. BARNARD. I wouldn’t say that I initiated. When I ran for my last
election, I talked to many people about the problems in the communi-
ty to get my finger on the pulse of the community and become more
aware of the problems.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Have you done anything—have you commu-
nicated with anybody since the election?

Dr. BARNARD. Oh, yes. I speak—I have contact with people all the
time. I wouldn’t say that I seek any organization. I go to individuals
more than I go to organizations.

CuHAIRMAN FLEMMING. The same question from each of you, please?
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Ms. DARLINGTON. I don'’t really have to seek a great deal of par-
ticipation because it walks in and out of my front door everyday. I
have four children who are in the public schools. They have friends
of each and every ethnic race, and I communicate with those children
as well as their parents. I have found that people who belong to or-
ganizations are much more politically inclined to foster their ownselves
rather than to help the individual students or people, sometimes even
of their own race. So I have more or less stayed away from the
politicos involved in this thing and become more acquainted with peo-
ple and their children.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Mr. Bass.

MR. Bass. I can’t say that I've gone out and tried to speak to any
political groups. Now, I've attended PTA meetings all over this city.
I've been in every school in our district. I’'ve never refused to talk to
anyone and they know that they can talk to me.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Mr. Hornsby.

MR. HornsBY. I've quite a bit of involvement with both the black
community and the Mexican American community in that my place of
employment employs a large number of Mexican Americans and
blacks. In fact, about half of the plaintiffs are employed—in our, both
desegregation suits—are employed at the same place that I am. I meet
these people on a day-to-day, first-name basis and have quite a bit of
contact with those people.

I grew up in a neighborhood in Corpus Christi that was
predominately black and Mexican American. Before I was elected to
the school board, 1 was president of the Concerned Neighbors Or-
ganization, then called the local antibusing faction. In that regard, I did
request a meeting with the plaintiffs in this lawsuit and which they sub-
sequently refused. We did neet twice with the NAACP here in Corpus.

And as Ms. Darlington said, I have four children also and I have
quite a bit of integrated traffic in and out of my house. Also, I've made
several speaking engagements with predominately black and Mexican
American groups, and also my telephone is available to anyone at any-
time and they do take advantage of it.

Mr. HutsoN. You may be wondering if we are ignoring the so-called
town meeting process that’s so common east of the Hudson River and
some other faraway places. That is not a characteristic of people in
this part of the country. Most of the conduct of philosophy and politi-
cal affairs is done on a one-to-one basis, one to two. 1 don’t think any-
one here is trying to evade the affirmative action side to the question,
do we go out and try to find someone with whom to talk. Having been
in Federal court all these years, we do not lack for verbiage of every
kind, everytime we open the door and everytime we close one. I be-
lieve that the answer you are looking for lies, though, in the
philosophy of what constitutes dialogue or what constitutes going out
and finding what people want.
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Somehow, we have been able to—these people have been able to
find us. I would like to say, and in part answer the question you asked
earlier, that was to come down the line and didn’t—I do think we’re
making some progress on this matter of voting thing, mixing,
because—and I say this not facetiously, because this shows there is
some progress, that at my election prior to this last time that on two
west side so-called Mexican American places, polling places, 1 got no
votes. And so in those boxes this time, I got two at each place. So,
there is some increase.

CoMMissIONER FREEMAN. You got two votes in the black community
and you got zero—

MR. HuTsoN. That’s right.

CoMMISSIONER FREEMAN. That was at about 200 percent increase?

MR. HuTsoN. That’s right.

CoMMISSIONER Rurz. On this question of one-to-one contact, when
was the last time any board member went to one of these Mexican
American homes to discuss the concerns of parents relating to their
children’s education, which parents do not speak English? Are there
any? When was the last time?

MR. Bass. I really never knew there was any requirement that said
I had to go to anyone’s house like that, Mr. Ruiz.

CoMMISSIONER Ruiz. I just wanted to know.

MR. Bass. No, I have not.

ComumissioNER Rulz. Which of the board members are bilingual, En-
glish and Spanish? Now, you believe in statistics, don’t you, Mr. Bass?

MRr. Bass. Oh, I think so, yes.

CoMMISSIONER Ruiz. Well, your own statistics show that there are
18,000 students who have a home language in Spanish and not En-
glish. Do you believe that they’re accurate?

MR. Bass. I certainly do.

CoMMisSIONER Ruiz. No more questions.

DRr. BARNARD. I would like to indicate—I’'m sure that you may have
had some testimony that we have employed community aides that
work with our students, work with our minorities, and work with the
parents in order to acquaint the parents with our educational system
and keep our children in the schools. Many times in church work, I'd
notice that people feel very ill at ease when I enter their home, and
so I think that our own community aides do a much better job. They'
feel more at ease with these people and I don’t like to make anyone
feel on the defensive.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Right along this line—

DRr. BARNARD. Sure you do.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. —could I ask you as president of the board
whether the board has—coming back up the—the superintendent in-
dicated that there was in existence in this community an advisory com-
mittee made up of representatives of various groups to work on this
whole problem of desegregation. Has the board ever invited that ad-
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visory committee to meet with it or has the advisory committee ever
asked to attend a meeting of the board and make representations to
the members of the board?

DR. BARNARD. We have so many advisory committees. Are you talk-
ing about the court’s advisory committee, court appointed?

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. I'm referring to the one that the superinten-
dent referred to this morning. I didn’t gather that that was court or-
dered, but is it?

MR. GLick. There is a committee that is court ordered, Dr.
Flemming, but it is largely dealing with the mechanics of the com-
puter-order planning. It’s not advisory on deeper subject matter.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. I'm really referring to the other committee
that was set up as I understand to advise the—

DRr. BARNARD. I know the committee you are talking about. I met
with them the last time we were discussing the junior high school in-
tegration plan.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. But have they ever met formally with the
board?

DR. BARNARD. No, I don’t think so; have they?

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. The board, I assume, has never invited them"
to meet with you?

DR. BARNARD. They work through the administration. We have input
through the superintendent.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Dr. Barnard, you've listened to some of the
questioning relative to the composition of the teaching force, in other
words, relative to the representation of minority teachers in the school
system. Do you have any views on that particular issue?

DR. BARNARD. You ask this question of me?

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Yes.

DR. BARNARD. We are attempting to hire the most qualified teachers
we can find. | have a document that the staff prepared in July of °74
that Id like to submit to your Commission so that you could be aware
. of the high percentage or low percentage of Mexican American
teachers that are available even in this State. This is a three-page
document.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. We'll be very happy to accept that as a part
of the record and enter it as Exhibit No. 4, I think, if there’s no objec-
tion.

DR. BARNARD. Any objections from the board?

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Exhibit No. 3, okay?

I’d just like to ask again as president of the board—you may want
to defer to some other—as I indicated earlier, we all start from the
premise that the Supreme Court has decided that segregated schools
deny the equal educational opportunities to children and young people
guaranteed by the Constitution. The local U.S. district court has now
issued two plans; one you’ve been operating under the past year; and
then the new one for the junior high school this year designed to im-
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plement the rights guaranteed to the children and young people by the
Supreme Court.

Do you believe that as members of the school board, irrespective of
your feelings relative to the court order, and you’ve expressed, some
of you, your feelings regarding the order, have the obligations as mem-
bers of the board, as public officials, to see to it that the resources
of the school district are used to implement the order, and that if the
implementation of the order creates problems that there is an obliga-
tion to use resources in such a manner as to resolve the problems in
a constructive manner?

DR. BARNARD. I would say emphatically, yes. We’re—speaking for
myself—I think I can speak for the board, we’re all law-abiding
citizens. We would obey the court’s order and we do everything we
could to make the order work and ensure the safety of our students.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Thank you very much. We appreciate all the
members of the board coming and being with us and sharing your
views with us. Thank you very, very much.

Counsel will call the next witness.

MR. GLIck. Mr. Chairman, the next witnesses represent the State of
Texas Education Agency and they are Dr. M.L. Brockette, who is the
State commissioner of education, and Dr. Severo Gomez who is as-
sociate commissioner of education for educational programs for special
populations. And with your permission I will request Ms. Gloria
Cabrera, the regional counsel for the Commission in the Southwestern
Region, to question the witnesses.

[Messrs. Brockette and Gomez were sworn. ]

TESTIMONY OF MARLIN L. BROCKETTE, COMMISSIONER OF EDUCATION,
TEXAS EDUCATION AGENCY, AND SEVERO GOMEZ, ASSOCIATE
COMMISSIONER OF EDUCATION, EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMS FOR SPECIAL
POPULATIONS, TEXAS EDUCATION AGENCY

Ms. CABRERA. Please state your name, position, and address?

Dr. BROCKETTE. I am Marlin L. Brockette, commissioner of educa-
tion, Texas Education Agency, 201 East 11th Street, Austin, Texas.

DR. GoMEz. I am Severo Gomez, associate commissioner of educa-
tion, educational programs for special populations, the Texas Educa-
tion Agency at 201 East 11th Street, Austin, Texas.

Ms. CaBRERA. Thank you. D¢ either of you have any statements to
submit to the record or exhibits at this time?

DR. BROCKETTE. I have information that we discussed a few days ago
that relates to the implementation of 5281, the court order, which in-
cludes the communications that we have with local districts under that
order, and I would submit it for the record for what use it might be
to the Commission.

I do not have a prepared statement. I am prepared to respond to
the interest of the Commission and their questions. I do have, in addi-
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tion to that information, materials and communications with our dis-
tricts, our policies adopted by the State Legislature of Texas, and the
State board of education concerning bilingual education, and to what
extent that information in print is of use to the Commission, I'll be
glad to leave thatas a part of our records.

Ms. CaBreERra. Thank you very much.

Commissioner, for the record, would you identify the court order
you are submitting?

Dr. BROCKETTE. The court order is labeled 5281 of the United
States [District] Court, Eastern Division of Texas, Tyler Division.

Ms. CaBRERA. That’s the U.S. v. Texas?

DR. BROCKETTE. Yes.

Ms. CaBrerA. Commissioner, we’d like to begin our discussion with
general comments about the State bilingual act and the involvement
of the Texas Education Agency in implementing that law.

DR. BROCKETTE. Yes.

Ms. CaBRERA. Would you please describe for us what responsibilities
TEA has as a result of passage of the State bilingual act?

DRr. BROCKETTE. With the Commission’s permission, since it’s rather
short here, in our State legislature’s act they have identified or
described what is to be the State policy towards bilingual education,
and I'd like to submit that for our records and our information. It is
as follows:

that the Legislature finds that there are large numbers of children
in the State who come from environments where their primary
language is other than English. Experience has shown public
school classes in which instruction is given only in English are
often inadequate for the education of children whose native ton-
gue is another language.

The Legislature believes that a compensatory program of bilingual
education can meet the needs of these children and facilitate their
integration into the regular school curriculum. Therefore, pursuant
to the policy of the State to insure equal educational opportunity
to every child, and in recognition of the educational needs of chil-
dren of limited English-speaking ability, it is the purpose of this
subchapter to provide for the establishment of bilingual education
programs in the public schools and to provide supplemental finan-
cial assistance to help local school districts meet the extra costs
of the programs.

And that lays out our State policy by our legislature.

Ms. CABRERA. Yes, I understand that, Commissioner, but would you
discuss for us, for example, what TEA does as regards the funding of
the State bilingual act? Do those funds flow through TEA to the local
districts?

DRr. BROCKETTE. Yes, they do. I have given you the authority that
provides for the appropriation of those funds. I have here also the
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State board of education’s action against that policy which sets up a
policy for the use and the distribution of those funds. I also have here
with me the “Statement of Administrative Regulation,” which, as com-
missioner, I am delegated by the State board of education and under
this act to perform in the distribution of those funds to the local dis-
tricts. My administrative procedure that supports the board policy enu-
merates the kinds of things that the money shall be spent for. And if
that’s the heart of your question, I do have it here in writing. I can
make that a part of the record and I can enumerate what these funds
are used for if that serves the intent of your question, or we’d handle
it in anyway you see fit.

Ms. CaBrRERA. We would be happy to take that for the record and
if you would summarize how districts are identified to receive that
money. What I am asking is how do you assure that a district has a
need to receive that money, and then what do you do about providing
that money to that district? If you could summarize that for us besides
submitting that for the record?

DRr. BROCKETTE. Let me take a crack at it and I'll ask Dr. Gomez
to fill in what perhaps I might overlook.

In the spring of each year, we ask the local school districts for a re-
port. This report is to be used for program planning for the next
school year. The report gives us an identification of the students in
each school district that have a need for bilingual education. The dis-
tricts then submit an application to us based upon the provisions of
this act, for people who need to be trained in order to teach in the
bilingual program, for instructional materials that might be needed by
the teachers in the teaching of the bilingual students, and for other
kinds of operational costs that include but are not limited solely to
testing that might be required, and the identification of students,
evaluation of the program design that has been developed by the local
school district. And those are the primary uses now that are made of
the funds.

But, Dr. Gomez, from your administration of the program what
other major things have I left out that the funds are used for?

Dr. GoMEz. I don’t think you left out anything other than something
very specific. The funds are allocated on the basis of the number of
children that are designated by the district as having limited English-
speaking ability, by the number of teachers that are to be trained to
meet the needs of those children.

Ms. CaBRErRA. Commissioner, if I could ask you now, does TEA
have any standards the districts have to use in identifying the students
that are going to need that help? Do you have tests or instruments that
you provide to the districts that they are required by you to use?

DRr. BROCKETTE. The districts must submit along with their applica-
tion their plan for the use of the monies and their plan for the identifi-
cation of students. We identify a list of tests from which they may
select to give the required tests that are part of the development of
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their plan and a part of the identification of the students in their com-
munity.

Here again, I'd ask Dr. Gomez to fill in what we may have over-
looked as a requirement of the local district in submitting their plans.

DRr. GomEez. There is a requirement to the district that they must
submit to the Texas Education Agency the plan by which they select
or determine how the children are of limited English-speaking ability.
We do have, as the commissioner stated, a number of tests, that we
have specialists in our bilingual division that are responsible for finding
test[s] and making the information available.

When we began the program, when the law was passed in 1973, the
schools were required to submit the names of the children in the
spring of 74 and the program went in effect in the school year *74-75.
At that particular time, those of us who were involved in the bilingual
education felt that there really wasn’t a very good test available com-
mercially to determine what we would call limited English-speaking
ability in children, but we had to implement the law, and we had been
involved in bilingual education for several years through the Title VII
program and other programs, so we had some experience in having
teachers, in the identification of children.

So in our communication with the schools, we did suggest different
tests that had been used in Title VII programs, but we also suggested
to them that they use expert people in the community in the school
that might be able to determine the linguistic capabilities of children
on an opinion of an expert, rather than any kind of a test.

Ms. CABRERA. Thank you. Dr. Gomez, if I understand both of you
correct, what you are saying is that there is no standardized form or
instruments for schools to use in identifying the students with limited
English-speaking ability; is that correct?

Dr. GoMmEz. Well what” we’re saying is that until recently, because
tests are coming out, we feel that there were no tests that were specifi-
cally designed for this particular task. There were language tests, there
were tests that indicated to some extent the capability of a child in one
or another language; but we felt this wasn’t something that we could
use on a statewide basis, and we also felt that there were people in
the field in different areas in different schools that might have capabili-
ties—people in testing that might apply their testing capabilities that
they have used in English programs, if they were bilingual, in a Spanish
situation. So, we were asking is this is a possibility, not translating a
test but probably adapting the tests in order to identify the children.

Since then, there have been some tests. Most of the tests that we
consider at this point that are good tests are tests that have to be ad-
ministered individually and by people who really know how to ad-
minister tests and not the regular classroom teacher that has not been
trained in it.

DRr. BROCKETTE. We have entered into a contract, I believe, for
developing an oral language test; is that not correct?
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DRr. GoMEz. Yes, we have in the past 2 years—2 years ago we
developed some criteria reference tests in different areas including oral
language. The other areas were reading, mathematics, and, well, and
the language—in both English and Spanish. This past year we pilot-
tested those materials. In this particular year, we’re refining the tests
and are going to use them in a broader sense, but not statewide at this
point, to determine whether this particular oral language test can do
the job that we’re talking about here and we hope that it can.

Ms. CaBreraA. I see. Dr. Gomez, we’ve heard a lot of testimony
about the Lau remedies and about the State bilingual act. In your
professional opinion, what are the major differences between the State
law and the Lau remedies?

Dr. GoMez. Well, I think the main thing in terms of what the
law—the Lau, rather, decision stated is that the children could be
taught in a language other than English or in their home language. In
the case of the remedies, the remedies went further in identification
in determining whether a child was in this category by whatever lan-
guage was spoken at home; not necessarily determining whether the
child had developed language outside the home, but basically the thing
is that in our State program under the law, monies are provided in
grades K through five—K through three mandatory and then optional
in grades four and five, and then beyond that it would be at local ex-
pense.

Now, of course, in our accreditation standards which would require
that, of course, schools provide for the needs of children, if they hap-
pen to be of a linguistic nature, it would be covered there. But the
Lau decision, of course, speaks to all grade levels, whereas our State
monies in terms of the law provides monies only for grades K through
five.

Ms. CABRERA. How about the number of students that would trigger
a requirement of a program, for example, I understand that the State
law would require a program in the case where you have 20 children
of the same language category within the same grade?

DR. GOMEZ. Yes.

Ms. CABRERA. Do you see that as a major difference with Lau?

Dr. GoMEz. There is that difference too, because the State law says
you have to have 20 or more at any grade level, but it also says that
any school district who wants to provide for bilingual education for a
less number than 20 can do it with State funds within the grades K
through five.

Ms. CaBRERA. Do you see a difference in the evaluation? My un-
derstanding is that Lau does require an evaluation of the program
whereas the State does not?

DRr. GomEez. Well, in a sense, all our programs as a State—as people
in the State, we do have an evaluation department. We do require as-
sessment and evaluation in all of our educational programs. The
specifics of the remedies in terms of the evaluation, I think, are
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more—are broader than what we have in terms of evaluation for our
State program at this time and mainly because of the great number of
programs versus the limited number of personnel.

Ms. CaBReRa. I see. Thank you.

Commissioner Brockette, what position has the Texas Education
Agency taken with regard to the Lau remedies and the State bilingual
act?

Dr. BrROCkETTE. First of all, our State policy body, I think both of
our legislature and State board of education, have not expressed any
disagreement with the Lau court decision. There is some difference
here perhaps in interpretation of just what remedies must be applied
in order to carry out the intent and the interpretation of the court
order.

Now, we have been working very closely with our regional office in
Dallas on trying to identify just what, if any, these differences may be
in our State plan for bilingual education and the Lau remedies as
published. We have produced, for instance, a chart that shows our
State policy, our State plan and remedy, the Lau remedy, and what
is to be the difference, what we might view as the difference. And the
regional Office of Civil Rights here has responded to that. This was
done back in February of this year and we are still in our discussion
and working relationship with that office in trying to interpret what the
State policy is and what the State’s plan is for addressing the Lau deci-
sion.

And that since all schools in Texas must come under this State
authority and this State policy for a mandated bilingual program, I
think it is a shared desire there with us that if these—this State pro-
gram satisfies the court’s order and gives high promise for students to
develop bilingual competency that we could go through our responsi-
bilities at the Texas Education Agency to see that this happens in our
State and that’s the process that’s going on now with our regional Of-
fice of Civil Rights.

Ms. CaBrerA. Now, Commissioner, when you are talking about the
regional office, you are talking about HEW; is that right?

DR. BROCKETTE. No, I—certainly we have had the ‘leadership at the
regional office of Mr. Baca, Commissioner, and staff members there,
but Ms. Stuck has been—of Civil Rights—has been very much a leader
in part of our whole discussion and it is Ms. Stuck we’re working with
in the regional office.

Ms. CaBRERA. | see. Have you received any indication from Ms.
Stuck as to whether the State bilingual law will be declared in auto-
matic compliance with the Lau remedies, any formal communication?

DR. BROCKETTE. Yes. That communication has come to us, really
just last week, from Ms. Stuck, and we had made two specific kinds
of recommendations and proposals in our communications with the re-
gional office. Ms. Stuck has told us in this communication that is dated
August the 4th, and received in our office here on the 10th, that this
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is a subject that she feels like that the Washington office should ad-
dress and she really does not have the authority to give us authoriza-
tion to use the State plan and the State program as a fulfillment of
the Lau decision.

Ms. Casrera. Could we have a copy of that for the record, Com-
missioner?

DRr. BROCKETTE. You sure may.

Ms. CaBRERA. Thank you so much.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Without objection, we’ll enter it into the
record at this point.

MR. GLick. What exhibit number— Exhibit No. 5.

Ms. CABRERA. Dr. Gomez, is there a special unit within TEA that
is assigned to work exclusively with bilingual education and if so would
you discuss for us the role and responsibility of that unit and then the
staffing, the number of staff members, and give us the ethnic, racial,
and sexual breakdown, please?

Dr. GoMez. There’s a division of bilingual education that is under
my responsibility. When we began the program back in 1968 when I
was appointed assistant commissioner for bilingual education—was at
that time an office and now under—this was under Commissioner
Edgar. Now under Commissioner Brockette in a reorganization—where
my responsibilities have broadened, where I have responsibilities other
than with bilingual education, then the division was formed—there is
a division director, there is a program director, and there are six con-
sultants and one intern who is working with us from the University of
Texas. We had one the past year and another one this particular year.
Of the eight people, all of them are Mexican American except two,
and the division director and the program director are Mexican Amer-
ican. The two that are not Mexican American, one is a Franco Amer-
ican from Louisiana, and the other one is what we might call an Anglo
American who has one-eighth Mexican American blood, but he’s
totally bilingual.

You asked me what the function of that division was. Of course, the
function of that division is to implement the laws and the policies of
the board that we’ve been talking about in establishing the bilingual
programs throughout the State. Before the State law, we were involved
in monitoring—assisting schools in the development of projects under
Title VII, that was the beginning of our venture into bilingual educa-
tion when Title VII became a reality under the Elementary and Secon-
dary Education Act.

Ms. CaBreErA. Thank you so much, Dr. Gomez. I have no further
questions.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Thank you very much.

Commissioner Ruiz.

ComMMissIONER Ruiz. Dr. Gomez, with relation to the implementa-
tion of the State law, is there any program whereby a Spanish-speaking
student who has graduated from high school can take a crash course
in a teaching-training course in both languages?
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Dr. GoMmEez. Are there—I don’t—you mean are there provisions
under the program for high school students; is that what you are ask-
ing?

ComMissioNER Ruiz. Well, what I am trying to say is to what extent
can the law be implemented to waive certification requirements rela-
tive to scholastic background to fill in this obvious vacuum in trained
teachers?

Dr. GoMEez. We have our training program that extends both to
what we call the monolingual English-speaking teachers and the bilin-
gual teachers. In the case of the teacher who is monolingual who is
going to find herself in a bilingual classroom, in order for them to do
so they must initially take 100-hour, intensive, language immersion
course in the learning of the language. If that person after taking the
test does not pass the proficiency test that’s required as being profi-
cient in the language, that person is given a special assignment permit
for that first year with the recommendation to take an additional 200
hours and an third 100 hours if that’s necessary.

CoMMIssIONER Ruiz. Now, what I am trying to find out is this a way
to cut across in order to get somebody in this vacuum that exists, per-
haps, and that’s the reason I asked the first question. Is there any
course available to a bilingual student that graduates from high school
to go directly into this type of a backup?

DRrR. GoMEz. Well, under our State laws they could not serve as
teachers unless they went through a university program.

CoMmmisslOoNER Ruiz. That’s what I'm trying to find out. They have
to go through a university and take a lot of required courses first?

Dr. GoMEz. That’s right.

CoMMIssiONER Ruiz. And it might be mathematics, it might be
philosophy, it might be a lot of things in order to get a teacher’s cre-
dential?

DRr. GoMEz. That’s right.

ComMissIONER Rulz. It might be Greek. Now, the question is, in the
implementation of that law, is there any possible way to waive this in
order to, in a situation such as has been developing here, fill in the
vacuum?

DRr. GoMEz. As [ interpret the law, no, but we do use teacher aides
which for the most part are high school graduates and some of them
have some college.

CommissioNER Ruiz. I understand that. I understand that.

DRr. GoMEz. But, no. In the law as it’s written today, I do not believe
that a high school student can be subjected to what you have sug-
gested and then brought into a classroom as a teacher.

CoMMISssIONER Ruiz. Now, with respect to your background lan-
guage-wise and your expertise, what is your personal opinion with rela-
tion to some of these students that graduate from high school that
could take a crash course for purposes of teaching youngsters that are
just coming into kindergarten, etc., to fill in this vacancy; what is your
personal opinion?
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DRr. GoMEz. My personal opinion is the people who have capability
could very well be used, certainly could be very well used to an ad-
vantage. However, they could not serve other than what we call
teacher aides, regardless of what their function is under the existing
law.

CoMMISSIONER Ruiz. After graduating from high school, they can
become teachers’ aides?

DRr. GoMEz. Oh, yes.

CoMMISSIONER Ruiz. That is your answer?

DR. GOMEZ. Yes.

CoMMISSIONER Rulz. And these teacher aides have to be under a
credentialed teacher?

Dr. GoMEz. That’s true.

CoMMisSIONER Ruiz. And the credentialed teacher may be a
monolingual teacher that doesn’t understand any Spanish?

Dr. GoMez. Well, if the monolingual teacher is in a program in
which children have been designated under this mandatory law, that
teacher must take that immersion course, or what you called it, an in-
tensive concentrated course.

CoMMIsSIONER Ruiz. Crash?

DRr. GoMEz. Crash course in Spanish. So, the teacher is not going
to be there unless she has been subjected to at least a 5-week program
before she gets into the program.

CoMMIsSIONER Ruilz. In other words, the English-speaking teacher
that speaks no Spanish has to learn Spanish?

Dr. GoMEz. That’s true.

ComMIssSIONER Ruiz. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. We've listened to little testimony today rela-
tive to the number of persons from minority groups, particularly the
Spanish-heritage groups, who are employed as teachers, and the state-
ment has been made from time to time that it’s very difficult to recruit
persons from these groups for teaching positions and here in this
system in Corpus Christi and in other systems. As you look down the
road, what can be done over and above what is now being done to
increase the supply of teachers from the minority groups?

DR. BROCKETTE. First of all, if it pleases the—Commissioner
Flemming, I would like to say what is now being done.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Yes, sir.

DRr. BROCKETTE. Because it is outside of what is usually done and
has been done; what is now being done with the appropriations of
taxes that follows this, does provide funds for the institution of—which
Mr. Gomez has referred. These institutes are conducted by local
school districts, regional service centers, institutions of higher learning,
as the case might be. And funds are appropriated for the use for that
purpose. And now the people completing these institutes do receive
endorsement of certificates that they already hold. At the outset, we
had only some, oh, six colleges, maybe six to eight colleges, Dr.




68

Gomez, maybe, in the State, in the early seventies that were offering
programs that might qualify one for a certificate or an endorsement
in bilingual education. Now then, I understand we have some 28 to 30
colleges that have programs approved for this purpose, for this certifi-
cation. Not all of the programs, I understand, have students in them
at this time. They’re in the position to prepare teachers now. We think
that we have—we know that we have a demand that exceeds our
supply of adequate teachers. We are trying to take steps to make that
information known to high schools and college campuses and so forth
and so that they will know that there are these opportunities, as well
as these preparation programs that are in place, both institute and the
college preparation.

The institute approach for bilingual—preparing bilingual teachers is
the first time to my knowledge is the State legislature and the State
board has made that kind of approach to a sort of crash program and
crash supply of need.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Again, looking down the road, do you an-
ticipate that a district such as the Corpus Christi district will in the fu-
ture be able to recruit more persons from the Spanish-heritage com-
munity as members of their teaching staff than is the case at the
present time? Do you think that picture is going to improve?

DRr. BROCKETTE. If our expectations come around in the addressing
of the needs of the Spanish American student, we would believe that
the motivation would be there and the competency would be there,
that more and more of that segment of population will move on
through our preparation programs and people would be available, but
we are all now suffering in this supply area because of not nearly the
same ratio or percentage of students have moved through our formal
education programs to provide us with that ratio and that supply of
people. Yes, I do have high hopes, to answer your question, that more
and more people are going to be available in this field for teaching as-
signment.

Dr. GoMEz. May I add—

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. What is your—just one moment. Taking the
State as a whole, you've got a picture of the State as a whole. Do you
feel that there has been in the immediate past and there is now in ex-
istence discriminatory practices in the employment of teachers which
means that those of the Spanish American, Spanish-heritage communi-
ty, who are qualified are finding it difficult to obtain a position?

Dr. BROCKETTE. There may be a qualified certified Spanish Amer-
ican somewhere in our State unemployed in the teaching circles. I'm
not aware of one.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. I gather from what you’ve said that you be-
lieve that your teacher-training institutions within the State are at least
moving in the direction of trying to increase supply. Has the failure
to do that in the past been based on prejudices and some discrimatory
practices in terms of the admissions to the institutions of higher educa-
tion?
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DRr. BROCKETTE. I'm just not prepared to answer that question, sir.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Okay. Any additional questions?

MR. GLIcK. Yes. I would just like to ask Dr. Gomez, in your descrip-
tion of the division within TEA that deals with bilingual programs, you
discussed staffing and program activities, and I don’t recall that you
said anything about monitoring on—ongoing monitoring of the districts
that receive State funds to see whether they are in compliance with
State law. Is there such a program with monitoring and are there sanc-
tions that can be employed against districts if they fail to meet the
law?

Dr. GoMEz. We do monitor in the State program. In this particular,
this last school year, there were 182 school districts in the State pro-
gram. We monitored 65. The year before we monitored 65 and we
project 100 school districts this next year. We have an instrument
which is available here also which we call “Guide for Monitoring
Visit,” and it has different things and questions, etc., that we ask the
teachers and we observe as we monitor. And with respect to your
question on sanctions, the law, just as most laws in education do not
have in them punitive action in terms of not complying, and the only
avenue that we have for noncompliance of any particular law [is]
through the accreditation process.

And what our monitoring, our consultants, do when they monitor in
terms of noncompliance or whether there are discrepancies are put
into a report and are sent to the schools and are told to remedy what-
ever the situation may be. We have not—in terms of sanction, we have
not applied sanctions because the only avenue, as I said, is through the
accreditation process.

When people, members of the Texas Education Agency accredita-
tion team, go to the schools, they do look at this area also because
it’s a part of the standards that the school must comply with.

MR. Grick. On something like this, then, there wouldn’t even be the
sanction of refusing further grants from the State education agency?

MR. GomMmEez. Well, the thing is that of course, the way we look at
it, by refusing grants, it would not give the amounts of money that
would be used for the children and, of course, under the law, the chil-
dren are entitled to so much money for materials, equipment, etc., and
for the training of the teachers. There isn’t anything in the law that
speaks of sanctions if there is 2 noncompliance with the law. What we
want to do, of course, is to help the school districts in complying with
the law if they’re not.

MR. GLick. Thank you, Dr. Gomez.

CoMmMIssIONER Ruiz. I would like to have into evidence as the next
exhibit in order, a reference made to the document there, with respect
to visiting.

CommissiIONER FLEMMING. Without objection, it will be entered into
the record at this point as Exhibit No. 6.
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Mr. Brockette, just one further question. You and I discussed and
you provided very interesting information as to what is being done to
encourage adding to the supply of qualified teachers in the Spanish-
heritage community. Are comparable efforts being made in the State
to increase the supply of teachers from the black community?

DRr. BROCKETTE. No, sir, not in the same way that I described to you
we’re making for bilingual education. Quite a different—quite a dif-
ferent situation existed in our State in reference to black educators.
The State has had black educators in a ratio to the black population
for many years prior to 1954 and desegregation orders. This was not
true in the Mexican American population.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Do you feel that since your supply picture is
different, then do you feel that when members of the black community
are given the opportunity for training and when they take advantage
of that opportunity, that they do have opportunities for placement in
the school systems of the State?

DR. BROCKETTE. Yes, quite a different story. That’s true.

CualrMAN FLEMMING. Okay. We are very appreciative of both of
you for being here with us today and filling us in on the State pictures.
You have been very helpful. Thank you very much.

Counsel will call the next witness.

MR. GLick. Mr. Chairman, the next witnesses are Mr. Edward J.
Baca, who is the Regional Commissioner of Education for Region VI
of the Department of Health, Education, and Welfare, and Dr. John
Bell, who is with the Office for Civil Rights of Region VI. Gentlemen,
will you step forward, please?

[Messrs. Baca and Bell were sworn.]

TESTIMONY OF EDWARD J. BACA, COMMISSIONER, REGION VI, U.S. OFFICE
OF EDUCATION, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE, AND
JOHN BELL, EDUCATION CHIEF, REGION VI, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS,
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE

MR. GLIcK. Beginning with Dr. Bell, will you each identify yourself,
name, position in Health, Education, and Welfare, and position and
address.’

Dr. BELL. My name is John Bell, Education Chief, Office for Civil
Rights [OCR], HEW Region VI, Dallas, Texas, 1200 Main Tower, Dal-
las, Texas.

MR. GLICK. Beginning with—I'm sorry. Yes, Mr. Baca.

MR. Baca. My name is Edward J. Baca, Regional Commissioner,
U.S. Office of Education, Region VI, 1200 Main Tower Building, Dal-
las, Texas.

MR. GLICcK. Mr. Haswell?

MRr. HaswiLL. I'm Harold Haswell, Assistant Regional Commis-
sioner for Developmental Programs, Planning Evaluation, 1200 Main
Tower, Dallas, Texas.

MR. GLICK. Mr. Dennard?
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MR. DENNARD. I'm Eric N. Dennard, Assistant Regional Commis-
sioner of School Systems, Department of HEW, 1200 Main Tower,
Dallas, Texas.

MR. GLICK. Mr. Baca, our staff has a document which I believe has
been received from your office which describes the Federal programs
funding the Corpus Christi Independent School District over the last
3 years and anticipated for the forthcoming year. I would like you to
take a look at that document and identify it as you can as accurate
and what has been prepared by your office?

MR. Baca. Yes, sir. We did prepare that and submit it to your staff.
I would like to say, however, that that may not be 100 percent accu-
rate. We told the staff member that we thought we could give a pretty
accurate picture but not 100 percent accurate of the Federal funding
from the U.S. Office of Education in the Corpus Christi Independent
School District.

MR. GLick. Would that suggestion that that may be because there’s
some programs that are funded directly through Washington that
would not come through the regional office?

MR. Baca. Well, that would be one reason. And another reason
would be that many times the information is one fiscal year late in ar-
riving—the information arriving to us.

MR. Grick. Well, with that caveat, Mr. Chairman, may I introduce
that document into the record as Exhibit No. 7?

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. It will be made a part of the record at this
point as Exhibit 7.

MR. Grick. Thank you. Continuing with Mr. Baca, the Corpus
Christi School District is now under a court order which requires
desegregation of the elementary and junior high schools. What kind of
programs, federally-funded programs, would you evaluate as being
most helpful to a district that is undergoing a court-ordered desegrega-
tion program?

MR. Baca. I believe that the special projects funding out of the
Emergency School Assistance Act [ESAA] would be probably the
most appropriate immediately upon receiving a court order. There’s
also the Emergency School Assistance Act which has several pieces to
it, basic nonprofit bilingual, which would also be very appropriate. I
think most all of the other funding sources within the Office of Educa-
tion would be appropriate in implementing a court-ordered desegrega-
tion order such as bilingual education, Title I, education for the educa-
tionally deprived children, Follow Through, and programs of that na-
ture.

MR. GLICK. Prior to the school desegregation order of 1975 here in
Corpus Christi Independent, as I understand, was the school district in-
eligible for receipt of the Emergency School Assistance Act funds?

MR. Baca. I'd like to defer that question to Dr. Bell. It’s my un-
derstanding that they were ineligible up until this last fiscal year. May
I defer that question?

MR. GLick. Yes. Dr. Bell?
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Dr. BELL. The answer is yes. The court order that was in place in
1970-71 to '73 included a freedom-of-choice language. The regulation
under ESAA specifically prohibited those school systems operating
under such plans to be eligible under the program, so Corpus Christi
was Jndeed declared ineligible by the Dallas office up until this past
year.

MR. GLick. Was that determiniation of eligibility made on the De-
partment’s own motion, on OCR’s own determination, or was it as a
result of government involvement in the suit? How did that come? Was
it through a monitoring act? How did that information come through
to you? What were the channels?

Dr. BELL. As a part of the ESAA application, the school system was
required to submit a copy of the court order. That order was referred
to our Office of General Counsel for study and review. On the advice
from that office, we declared the school system not eligible because
of the freedom-of-choice language of the order.

MR. GLICK. So the determination was made in the Region VI office
upon the advice of counsel in Washington, I assume?

DRr. BELL. Both counsel in Washington as well as counsel in Region
VL

MR. GLick. Has the regional office of the OCR undertaken any com-
pliance reviews of the Corpus Christi Independent School District?

MR. Baca. Yes. The only contact that we have had with the Corpus
Christi school district has been during this school year in April
26—April 30. That was limited only to updating information provided
to us related to Lau v. Nichols. We have not conducted a comprehen-
sive, indepth review of the school system.

MR. Grick. Not at any time under Title VI since 1964, since the im-
plementation of the act?

Dr. BELL. An earlier review, excuse me, in 1968 and even one be-
fore that, but in recent years the only contact that we’ve had with the
school system onsite in terms of a monitoring review was last April.

MR. Guick. Last April. It has been our understanding from other
hearings that we’ve held around the country, when a district is under
a court order to comply with Title VI, that OCR does not undertake
any monitoring activities on the part of the Department; is that cor-
rect? Is that your interpretation?

MR. Baca. This is true, yes. However, in this particular case, the
April review was necessary for us to update the data provided related
to the implementation of Lau. We do and we—rather, we do in-
vestigate court-ordered districts under the Emergency School
Assistance Act. We have not developed a compliance program, broad-
based, to deal with court-ordered school districts.

MR. GLICK. Is that because of choice in utilizing resources or is
there some—excuse me—some determination by the Office of General
Counsel of HEW that would be interfering with the court order? What
would be the basis for that?
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Dr. BELL. Well, it’s a combination of factors. The first factor is that
we, the Department, accepts the court order and assurance from the
school district to comply with the order as an assurance. And, two, we
do not have the resources to conduct complaint investigations, not to
mention routine reviews under Title VI.

Let me speak to that for just one moment. In the Dallas Office for
Civil Rights, we have 21 field specialists. In Region VI, we have 2,000
plus school districts, 2,584 to be exact. And we receive yearly over
300 complaints and with that kind of workload and lack of resources,
we simply cannot conduct routine compliance reviews out of voluntary
districts, not to mention the more larger, more complicated, court-or-
dered districts.

MR. Guick. I assume that this information then, this lack of
resources, has been forcefully brought to the headquarters in Washing-
ton in HEW?

Dr. BELL. Well, we have attempted for the last 6 years during my
tenure as chief, but I am not sure whether or not the ears have been
always receptive.

MR. GLick. Dr. Bell, you mentioned Lau compliance reviews. What
are the standards and criteria you use to determine when a district is
in compliance with Lau requirements or meeting the guidelines?

Dr. BELL. Well, to answer that question fully, I'm quite sure that,
you know, that it would take perhaps 2 hours. But in essence, we look
at the number of youngsters in the school system that is not able to
function effectively in the English language, and those programs pro-
vided by the school system to help mainstream those youngsters so
that the total educational process will not be a waste for them, and
that’s very simply stated; however, as you know, it’s a very com-
plicated process.

MR. Grick. Yes. Dr. Brockette, you may have heard his testimony,
Dr. Brockette testified a little bit earlier and you may have heard—his
testimony indicated that the Texas Education Agency has made
requests to OCR, he mentioned Ms. Stuck, for review of the State
bilingual act for determination with respect to whether that act and its
implementation, if effective, and would meet the Department’s Lau
requirements. Are you familiar with that request?

Dr. BELL. Yes. I've participated in two conferences with Dr.
Brockette and members of his staff, yes.

MR. Gurick. Do you have any idea as to whether—what the deter-
mination will be? I understand from Dr. Brockette that the determina-
tion would have to be made in Washington. Would you venture an
opinion as to what it will be?

Dr. BELL. Well, at least in my judgment, the State plan even though
properly implemented might be effective, but that plan does not speak
to mandated programs in grades 4 through 12. So, you are talking
about a number of youngsters that might very well be identified as
speaking only English or either have a limited English skill not being
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programmed for by the school system beyond grades three, and op-
tional grades four and five. Now, that is my personal judgment and,
however, I cannot speak for the Director for the Office for Civil Rights
and the Secretary of HEW.

MR. GLicK. Yes. Thank you. I understand, Dr. Bell.

At this point, Mr. Chairman, I would like to introduce into the
record a document that goes along these lines, essentially comparison
of the Lau guidelines and the State act, and it’s a letter dated May
13, 1976, from Dorothy Stuck, Director of the Office for Civil Rights,
Region VI, to Dr. Brockette. And it discusses at some great length,
you may be familiar with this document, gentlemen, the contrast and
the distinction between the two requirements. I think this would be
useful for the record.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Without objection, we’ll enter it in the record
at this point.

MR. Gurick. It will be Exhibit No. 8.

I'd like to address a question both to Dr. Bell and to Mr. Baca.
There are, in some cases, some contrasting requirements for civil rights
compliance between different Federal programs and some of those
have been mentioned. I wonder if you see that, both of you gentlemen,
as a handicap in funding districts that may be attempting to comply
and being forced to fund districts that you may very well know that
are not in compliance with the various civil rights compliance. How
do these varying civil rights compliance impact on the funding school
districts? Mr. Baca.

MR. Baca. I think that the Office for Civil Rights has, as you know,
has the responsibility for judging the compliance of school district with
the certain acts and so this is really a personal opinion of mine. I think
that the ESAA legislation, because of the unique language in the
legislation, places some compliance requirements that other pieces of
legislation do not. And it seems to me that civil rights is-a right all
of itself and all legislation probably ought to have the same require-
ments across the board, but that’s just a personal opinion. I think per-
haps that Dr. Bell can give you a more professional or legal interpreta-
tion of that.

MR. GLrick. Dr. Bell.

Dr. BeLL. Well, there are some programs and ESAA is one example
whereby the Office for Civil Rights is uniquely involved with the com-
pliance determination, “compliant” to the actual funding of the school
system. There are indeed some limitations with that and then there
are, of course, many, many assets.

The limitation, as imposed this year, was that after receiving 300
plus applications, and the funding cycle was so very, very short, we
simply did not have time nor the office resources to actually conduct
onsite reviews involving those school systems that we had very serious
questions related to information submitted as a part of the application
and the past, let’s say, history of the school system. Some of those we
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were only able to raise questions by paper and not in actual field
review.

I would much prefer to see a system whereby all school systems
receiving Federal financial assistance submit a compliance document
quite similar to ESAA, but I would not recommend that with the cur-
rent constraints with the resources. I think that if we had resources in
place we could properly and effectively monitor all school systems
throughout the country, but we simply cannot do that. One, when the
resources are not there; and, two, that by program time lines you do
not have time to effectively engage in onsite reviews.

This past year with ESAA, we had less than 5-1/2 weeks. And as
I said earlier, we had over 300 applications. So, it was indeed an im-
possible task.

MR. GLick. That crunch results because of scheduling for funding
applications? In other words, if they were spread over throughout the
fiscal year, you might have a better opportunity to review?

DR. BELL. Yes.

MRr. GLICK. But because of the requirements internally in the De-
partment they’re all compressed into that 5-week period that you men-
tioned, 300 applications to review in a 5-week period?

DRr. BELL. Yes.

MR. GLICK. So, do you think that would it be possible by a rear-
rangement administratively of the funding process to spread out those
applications over the course of a year so reviews could be done?

Dr. BELL. Well, I would think so. I do think so. But as I said earlier
that ESAA and these kinds of programs—now, under the order affect-
ing HEW—had a priority but not the highest possible priority. What
has priority now related to the Adams order affecting HEW is com-
plaints, and when we have more complaints than we can possibly deal
with with the current staif, then you are lumping another responsibility
on the office not to include Title IX and Title IX compliance, not to
include section 504 of the compliance, and not to include ESAA.

MR. GLick. I see. Thank you. Is there anything you care to add to
Dr. Bell’s comments, Mr. Baca?

MR. Baca. Just one comment, perhaps. We got a little bit away from
your original question in that it’s very difficult for school districts to
understand when they’re placed in legal hold or can’t be funded in
ESAA or to be said that they are in noncompliance when they are in
fact being funded under Title I or Follow Through or Impact Aid or
any number of other programs, and it makes it very difficult to explain
why this one particular piece of legislation has additional requirements
over the others. That’s all.

MR. Grick. I have no further questions, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. I guess I'd like to ask both Mr. Baca and Dr.
Bell this question. As a result of your experiences in this region, have
you thought of any additional steps or any additional assistance that
the executive branch of the Federal Government might conceivably
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give to a school district that has decided on its own, in good faith, to
move in the direction of desegregation or that is operating under a
court order? Are we missing some opportunities to really accelerate
the desegregation of the schools? The thing I ¢onstantly keep in mind
is the importance of implementing and protecting the consitutional
rights of today’s children and young people. If we don’t do it today,
the opportunity to give them opportunities which they should have has
passed us by.

MR. Baca. I wanted to make some comments, then I'll ask—Ilet Dr.
Bell make some comments on the desegregation.

Much of the questioning this morning related to bilingual education.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Yes.

MR. Baca. If I may refer to the Corpus Christi school district. We
mentioned somewhere in the neighborhood of $140,000 to $150,000
being granted out of the U.S. Office of Education for bilingual educa-
tion. And by the way, for the record, I'd like to state that Corpus
Christi has been selected as one of the model bilingual programs under
that particular act, and I believe there were only three selected nation-
wide; two of them being from Texas.

But also, we did an analysis—Dr. Haswell, who is with me this morn-
ing, did an analysis of the Educational Amendments of 1974. In there,
we found that there were over 20 pieces of legislation within the Of-
fice of Education that talked to bilingual education. And by and large,
we find that for Mexican Americans, we concentrate on those funds
that say bilingual education or those who are funded out of the Office
of Bilingual Education. To make my point clearer, for Indian children
we look for funds that come from the Office of Indian Education.

That’s my example. But you take in the Corpus Christi Independent
School District, there is $1,416,000 this year of the basic—out of the
basic Title I. That’s about half of the money that this district receives
from the Federal Government. Now, that is for ‘“educationally
deprived children.” I’'m not making any judgment here, but my guess
would be that if this school district had looked and studied of the
needs of the school children in, of this district that there may be a
large sum of that $1-1/2 million that they received under Title I being
used for bilingual education.

Another point I wanted to make, that was raised in the questioning
this morning, was that of teacher training. There have been quite a
large number of monies set aside for teacher training in bilingual edu-
cation. Fellowships are being provided, in several universities here in
this State have been granted awards for training teachers for bilingual
education, not enough to meet the great demand that there is. Also,
the Federal Government decided to phase out the Educational Profes-
sional Development Act. In there was a program known as Career Op-
portunities programs. Those programs provided many teachers both in
desegregation—for desegregation to work with children, black chil-
dren, Mexican American children, Indian children, what else have you;
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but it was phased out, because there is, in fact, nationally an over-
supply of teachers. I think school districts might take a look at the
models that were established under such programs as Career Opportu-
nities programs. There is still viable an ongoing program in the house
of education known as Teacher Corps, which also provides for the
training of teachers to meet the needs as was questioned here this
morning.

In terms of desegregation, I’d like to defer to Dr. Bell.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Just before we—are you saying one thing
here, namely, that school districts often are not tapping resources that
might be available, not necessarily through any fault on their part, but
because of the fact that within the executive branch of the govern-
ment, there hasn’t been too good a job done of coordinating, pulling
them together, indicating how different laws or different resources
under those laws can be targeted for a particular objective?

MR. Baca. I believe it’s more—a little of both, but more on the part
of the Federal Government is at fault here, I believe. And I would like,
if I may, not at this time because we do not have it, I'd like to later
submit for the record the assessment that we did on the Educational
Amendments of 1974 in relation to bilingual education.

In order to answer your question, I'd like to say part J of the Voca-
tional Educational Act is strictly for bilingual education, and hardly
anything has been done from that act for bilingual education.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. I would appreciate it very, very much if you
would furnish it for the record and without objection it will be entered
into the record at this particular point because as you know the Civil
Rights Commission has a very real concern and interest in bilingual
education. We put out a major report in this area and we feel that
we’ve got some obligation on following up on a report of that kind,
to see what’s happening and so on. In connection with any followup
we do on that, I think that study would be very, very helpful and
would be particularly meaningful to me because it would be coming
in effect from the grassroots. I mean, it comes out of your day-by-day
experiences with the school district. And so, I'd be delighted to have
that.

Commissioner Ruiz has given an exhibit—it will be Exhibit No. 9,
won’t it?—that’s it, I think—we’ll catch up with that.

But, John, in connection with this I hope that we do identify this
as something that would contribute to our followup activities on bilin-
gual education.

Okay. Dr. Bell.

Dr. BELL. Well, I'm not really sure how I should answer your
question. So often we talk about doing something special in the area
of Title XVI compliance and -each time we do, we hang some money
out there somewhere in the blue, and I do not believe personally that
that is the answer.

I heard this morning we do not have the money to implement these
programs. The school systems throughout the country have a legal
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obligation to develop and put in place and make operational programs
based on the needs of the youngsters and the school systems. I do not
believe that it is necessary for the Federal Government to underwrite
every new program that is designed to meet the needs of these special
youngsters and the school systems.

But to be more specific, I think that if we had more leadership at
the top with the executive branch making perfectly clear the civil
rights and equal rights and equal opportunity is indeed the law of the
land, then we will not have the kind of footdragging as we have from
1954 through 1964 to 1976. And I do not believe that putting more
Federal dollars into more programs is necessarily the answer. It may
be a part of the answer, but very definitely it is not the answer.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Well, I certainly share your point of view on
that. There’s no question about it. We’ve got to—increasingly come to
the place where as a nation, we accept the fact that if the Constitution
is going to mean something, then we’ve got to eliminate segregated
schools and that becomes a part of our whole way of life.

It seems to me that the contributions or the investment of time,
energy, and resources that’s needed in order to achieve that objective
has got to come from all levels of government, and we can’t get into
the frame of mind of in effect saying to people, if you will obey the
Constitution, then we’ll give you some extra money.

On the other hand, if the elimination of segregated schools as
rapidly as possible creates some issues that it is difficult for a local
school district to handle all by itself, then I think the State has an
obligation to help and I think the Federal Government has an obliga-
tion to help.

But I agree with you that the greatest contribution that the Federal
Government can make is to make it clear that this is the law of the
land and it is going to be implemented and enforced.

We did run into one situation in another community where an
assistant superintendent of schools that had a responsibility for—does
have the responsibility for working on desegregation, identified the fact
that they are at a point where they either should completely rebuild
or relocate, say, five elementary schools, and that this could be done
in such a way as to make a very positive contribution to desegregation,
and really in such a manner as to cut down on the load of people as
far as transportation is concerned. And I think he felt that maybe he
might have a better chance of selling that kind of approach to the
community if there was an indication on the part of the Federal
Government that—if you really mean business to the extent of making
that kind of a capital investment, maybe we could—the Federal
government could—be of some help. I think we need to keep thinking
about possibilities of this kind that will help to accelerate this. I am
very, very impatient with plans that may result in desegregation 5 years
from now because as I've indicated that means that there are X
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number of children and young people that are going to be denied their
constitutional rights because of our delay. And we do have to get that
sense of urgency into the picture in order not to deny them their
rights.

Commissioner Ruiz, do you have a question?

ComMMissiONER Ruiz. I have one question of Mr. Bell. What com-
pliance review responsibility does OCR have with respect to affirma-
tive action or discrimination in staff hiring?

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. That is staff hiring within a local school dis-
trict?

CoMMISSIONER Rulz. Yes.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Right.

Dr. BELL. Well, let me answer the question in the context of Corpus
Christi. I think it might be more meaningful.

The Department would, indeed, require or request from the school
system an affirmative action plan. If it is determined that there are
teachers needed to effectively implement Lau v. Nichols, that require-
ment would strictly be based on the needs of the school systems to im-
plement Lau.

The second part of that would be if we had evidence to show or to
indicate that the school system did in fact discriminate in the past in
the recruitment and employment of minority staff, then we would
require not necessarily an “affirmative action plan,” quote, but a
directive action plan to overcome the effects of the past discrimina-
tion, but to have the effect of an affirmative action plan. We have not
made a determination as to whether or not the school system has in
fact historically discriminated in its recruitment and employment prac-
tices. However, we do have some preliminary—I would say
“preliminary”—findings that there may be a serious shortage of staff
in place to effectively implement Lau in grades K through 12. And if
that should hold, then we would indeed require an affirmative action
plan specifically related to the program needs of the school system.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. That’s very helpful.

Do you have any other questions, Mr. Ruiz?

CoMMiIssIONER Ruiz. Do you see any weakness in the administration
of Federal funds to school districts from the standpoint of civil rights
compliance and, if so, would you make any recommendation for
changes?

Dr. BELL. As I indicated earlier, I think that—

ComMissiONER Ruiz. That was covered before?

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. Like some additional staff.

Dr. BELL. Yes. Yes.

CHAIRMAN FLEMMING. That was one of the—incidentally, I certainly
sympathize with you in terms of the processing of applications and the
time limitations that are involved and so on.

I agree with you that oftentimes the executive branch could help on
that in terms of some of the regulations, but also we’re a little bit de-
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pendent on the Congress in terms of when laws are passed. In my
regular job as Commissioner on Aging, we’re faced with the responsi-
bility of passing on something like 300 to 400 applications during the
transition quarter, which means that it has to be done by September
30th and that does not permit the kind of evaluation, site visits, and
so on that you very properly have identified as being very important
if we're going to be sure that the money is being invested in the right
way.

We thank you very much for coming down and talking with us about
these issues because we find that when we have hearings of this kind,
it’s very helpful to have those who are dealing with the problems from
the Federal regional office come in and share their views so that it
helps us get the whole situation in a better perspective. We’re very
grateful to you for coming. Thank you very, very much.

This completes the list of witnesses that we were to hear from this
hearing; therefore, at this point the hearing will be adjourned.
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Exhibit No. 1

COMMISSION ON CIVIL RIGHTS
TEAS
Heari

Notice ‘is hereby given pursuanf fo
the provisiors of the Civil Rights Act of:
1957, T1 Stai. 734, as amended, that a
puhlic beating of the US. Commission
on Civit Rights will commence on August
17, 1376, at Exposition Hall, 402 West
Shorelifle Drive, Corpus Christl, Texas,
An executive session, if appropriate, may
be convened al any time before ar during
the hearing.

‘The purpase of the hearing is to collect
information concerning legal develop=
ments constituting a denial of equal pro-
tecticn of the laws under the Constitu-
tian because of race, color, religion, sex,
or_nationat origin, or in the adminisira~
tion. of. justice. particularly concerning
puhlic- school dsegregaﬂon and equal
edueaiion opportunity; .ta appraisa the
laws and policies af the Federal Govern~
ment “with respect to denfaldof. equal
protection of the lIaws under the Consti-
tution because of race;: color, religion,
sex, or national origin, or in the adminis-
{ration of justice particularly concerning
public school desegregation apd equal
edueational epportunity: and to dissemi-
nate nformation with respect to deninls
of equal proteciion of the lIaws under the
Constitution because of race, color, reli-
gion, sex, or nztfomal origin, or in the
admirpistration of" justice, particularly
concerning public school desegregation,
and equal educational. opportunity.

lggé.ted. at Washington, D.C., July 14,
ArrEUz S, Freamiaxe,
Chairmazn,
¥R Doc. 76-208%1 Piled F-15-76:8:45 am}

FEDERAL REGISTER, YOL 41, NO. I38—FRIDAY, JULY 16, 1976
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Exhibit No. 2

Analysis of
""Cost Analysis of Implementation Lau Remedies
for the
Corpus Christi Independent School District”
prepared by
the Corpus Christi ISD Division of Instruction
and circulated by

Supt. Dana Williams
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1. "In order to make the aforementioned assessments, the district must, at a

minimum, determine the language most often spoken in the student's home,

regardless of the language spoken by the student, the language most often spoken

by the students in the home, and the language spoken by the student in a social

setting.
Statement
(from Lau Remedies)
Page 3, ffI

By observations, the
district must at a
minimum determine
language most often
spoken

. at home

. 1in social setting

(by observation) Lau remedies p. 3

Cost

It would take 100 obser-
vers, making two observa-
tions a day, 4-1/2 months
to complete this task. At
a rate of $2.50 per hour,
the total cost would be
$180,000.

In case the observations
do not crossvalidate, we
will utilize bilingual
teachers during after
school hours paying them
$6 per hour to administer
language dominance tests.
We estimate that approxi-
mately 25% of the students
will require them. Total
cost: $13,500.

Comments

We feel these requirements
are unrealistic in concept.
From a total of 42,000 stu-
dents, this district identi-
fied 18,000 who would have
to be observed.

Cost is based on two tests
per hour. This district’s
test could possibly be re-
quired for Chinese, Czech,
German, and Korean.

The authors of the cost analysis, by attempting to paraphrase have obviously

fisquoted the statement contained in the Lau remedies.

5ivt require that the students home language be determined by observation.

The remedies in fact, do

Observa-

tion techniques are zécompendéd (not require§) specifically to aid in determining

the language most often spoken by the student

is not necessarily required for determination

in the students home.

be conducted by present teaching staff and/or

school hours.

It seems reasonable to

in a social setting.

Observation

of the language most often spoken
assume that such observations could
paraprofessionals during regular

Such periods as recess, lunch-time and other periods of free or non-~

clagsroom activity readily lend themselves to providing the types of informal en-

vironments required for assessing a student's "social setting" language.

Determination of a student's home language could also be achieved by utilizing

present staff.

One alternative for making this determination would be through the

utilization of a parental questionnaire ¥hich would request information concerning:

(1) the language most often spoken in the student's home; (2) the first language

learned by the child, and (3) the language the child uses most often in speaking

with other children.

Such a language survey instrument is contained in the IDRA

newsletter of January 1976, and a copy can be made available upon request.
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Being that such alternatives are available for mecting the requircments of
the Lau remedies, the Corpus Christi I. S. D.'s cost projections seem somewhat
extravagant. By utilizing present district staff and resources it is apparent
that the district can save itself a considerable sum of money. More importantly,
by recognizing that said language determinations are as integral an aspect of the
school's diagnostic practices as the administration of achievement measures, the
district will be making significant progress toward accepting the basic premises
on which the remedies are based. To assume that the Lau remedies recommend or
require programs in addition to, rather than in lieu of. present inmstructional

approaches reflects a gross misinterpretation of the intent of the document.
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2. The second part of the plan must describe the diagnostic-prescriptive measures
to be used to identify the nature and extent of each student's educational nceds
and then prescribe an educational program utilizing the most effective teaching

style to satisfy the diagnozed educations. (Lau Remedies pp 4-5.)

Page 4, {I1:

District must describe A general diagnostic prescrip- Tncludes writers time

diagnostic/prescrip- tive procedure guidcbook for plus printing cost. Based
tive measures used in 2,000 rcachers at §1.50 per on $560 per guide produce.
identifying nature and book would be $3,000. Provid-

extent of student's ing specific subject area

educational program teacher guides for 11 subjects

utilizing most effec~ (three levels of cach subject)

tive teaching style. in the elementary school and

150 different courses at the
high school level would cost
$102,480.

Although the concept of a general diagnostic-prescriptive guidebook for
teachers is admirable, there are other less costly responses to the issues raised
by this requirement in the remedies. One alternative would be the development of
a comprehensive staff development program component which would focus on diagnostic-
prescriptive approaches for meeting the needs of LESA students. Such a program
could be provided to the district, free of charge, by the Texas Lau Center which was
created to assist direct which required technical assistance in order to implement
program required by Lau.

In addition a district could utilize ,preswuuexpertise’ and district re-
sources and materials related to diagnostic and'prekcfiptive approaches for meeting
student needs. Adaptation of said resources by focussing on the unique needs of
LESA students could thus serve as an appropriate response to Lau requirements.

With current trends toward individvalization of instruction and emphasis on
meeting individual student needs, the district has more than likely developed some
expertise in this area. The remedies simply require that districts apply or expand

said approaches insure that the needs of LESA students are adequately met.
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3. "™ . .. prescriptive measures must serve to bring linguistically, culturally

different student(s) to the educational performance level that is expected of the

]

L. E. A. and state, of non-minority students." (Lau remedies p. 5)

Statement Comment

Page 5:

Raise student performance level to Expected performance is individual in nature,
that expected for non-minority no group expectations are applied.

student(s). by L.E.A. and T.E.A.

(Again the district paraphrases, and in the process, misquotes.)

The authors of the cost analysis should notg.that the remedies are written
for a national audience, and that most states do set minimal educational performance
levels for their students. Secondly, the remedies are possibly secking to insure
that districts will not consider substantially lower educational performance levels
of students in LESA programs (lower in cowmparison to non-minority students in the
district) as adequate performance merely because these students are placed in pro-
grams required as a response to Lau requirements.

Should there exist a wide disparity between the educational performance levels

of LESA and non-LESA students, no rationalization of this state of affairs can be

TR

acceptable. To state ;h “expected performance is individual in nature, and that
no group expectations are applied" serves to justify or absolve the district's
responsibility for eliminating such disparities.

Laiy be addressing such issues can the district proceed toward realization of
‘ge goa) of providing equal access to educational opportunities for all of its

students, which is the basis for the development of the remedies.
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4. “A program designed for students of limited English speaking ability must not
be operated in a manner so as to solely satisfy a set of objectives divorced or
isolated from those cducational objectives estwblished for students in the regular

program. (Lau remedies p. 5)

Statement Comments

Page 5 (Continued):

The program designed for these It is extremely difficult to require teachers
students must be based on the same to cope with all of these demands. It is un-—
objectives for students in the realistic to expect that teachers can operate
regular school program. without a separate set of objectives for the

identified students, especially since these
students need such special consideration.
Again paraphrasing of the remedies has led the Corpus Christi staff to make
this comment; "It is extremely difficult to require teachers to cope with all of
these demands. It is unrealistic to expect that teachers can operate without a
different set of objectives for the identified students, especially since these
students need such special consideration.”™ (p. 2)
The major error in this segment of the cost analysis lies in the paraphrased

version which reads "

'must be based on the same objectives for students in the re-
gular school program". The remedies do not use the term same, but rather “must

npt be operated in a manner so as to solely satisfy a set of objectives divorced

or isolated from those students in the regular program. Of greater concern is the
comment; "it is unrealistic to expect that teachers can operate without a seperate
set of objectives for the identified students, especially since these students re-
quire such special consideration.”" The term seperate is acceptable only if equitable

educational outcomes are d d the ultimate objectives of programs for LESA students;

if the comment implies that the objectives should result in lower achievement levels
for LESA students than it blatantly violates the spirit of the Lau remedies. As
stated earlier, equitable educational outcomes based on similar objectives for all
students could serve to eliminate the great disparaties in performance levels be-
tween LESA and non-LESA students. Such a goal would be in keeping with the Lau

decision, which sought to insure that all students were afforded equal opportunitics.



88

5. In the third step the district must implement the appropriate type(s) of

educational program(s) listed in this secction, (III, 5), dependent upon the

degree of linguistic proficiency of the students in question." (Lau remedies

p- 6}

Statement Cost Comments

Page 6, #II1 (cont) 1. Monolingual Category
(cont):
Staff development for The per teacher cost for

\ 18 elementary and inservice is $168. See

secondary teachers appendix A.

would be $3,000.

Page 9, #III, 2:

Implement appropriate 2. Predominantly Language

educational program Other Than English

according to degrec of Category:

linguistic proficiency

for students. Teacher for 977 elemen~ Based on 20 students per

tary students would be teacher, 49 teachers would
$490,000. (49 a $10,000 be required.

each.)}

Teachers for 1,012 17 teachers would be required
secondary students for junior high school and 8
would be $250,000. teachers required for senior
(25 a $10,000 each.) high school. Based on where

the students are located, one
school will need three teachers,
some will need two and soze need
only one with teachers working
with up to approximately 50
students on each campus.

Again, the paraphrasing is somewhat less than accurate. Fortunately, in this
case, it does not lead to serious errors in interpertation. The cost and comments
section, although quite interesting in detail, leads to more questions than the
answers it proposes to provide.

First, what instrument or instruments were utilized to assess each student's
linguistic proficiency (the cover letter mentions a survey, but no further explanations
of the linguistic proficiency assessment is evident)?

Second, the cost analysis considers staff development expense only for the
nmonolingual category; however, in analyzing the cost for the category labeled
predominant language other than English, the cost is computed for 49 ncw teachers
at 10,000 each. Why was a staff development program for all present staff affected,
not considered, and its' cost computed. Did the district also give thought to the
use of ‘differentiated staffing patterns using available teachers and paraprofessionals
withthe required language skills? Was a cost computed for this possible alternative?

These aforementioned options are found acceptable in the remedies, and specific

reférence is made to these alternatives in the document.
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Obviously, sclection of one of these two alternatives would result in
significantly smaller expenditures by the district while simultancously complying
with the staffing and program requiremcnts delincated in the remedies. By taking
advantaged of services provided by the Lau Center and state technical assistance
office, the district could cut expenditures even further, thercby, reducing costs

to a fraction of the figures originally projected.



90

6. In the case of the predominant speaker of the language other than English:

At the intermediate and high school levels; the district must provide data relative
to the students academic achicevement and identify those students who have been in
the school system for less than a year. If the students who have been in the
district are achieving at grade level or better, the district is not required to
provide additional educational programs. If, however, the students who have been
in the school system for a year or more are underachiecving, (not achieving at

grade level), . . . the district must submit a plan to remedy the situation.

(Lau remedies p. 10)

Statement Cost ..Comments

Page 10, #B:

At the intermediate and Test costs: 5 subject areas Tests in reading, math,

high school level, dis- for 18,000 students, grades science, social studies,

trict must provide data 7-12, at $1 per student would and language arts for all

relative to student's be $18,000. students grades 7 through 12.
demic achiev t and :

must provide a specific
plan for underachievers.
The test costs projected in this area ($18,000), seem to imply that the district
does not currently engage in achievement testing of its students. Assuming that
some testing is currently being done, the district should consider urilizing
available testing data to make the determinations required for students affected
by the Lau provisions. The Lau, remedies do not require that seperate tests be
administered. Rather the prime concern lies in the identification of students
who are underachieving by one or more grade levels.

Projecting test costs for a total of 18,000 students, thus seems an over-
estimation of the actual expenditures truly required for the district to meet Lau

requirement.
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7. "In the cases of the predominate speaker of the language other than English. . .
2.B. At the intermediate and high school levels: the district must provide
date rclative to the students academic achievement; and identify those students who

have been in the district for less than one year. If the students who have been

in the program are achieving at grade level or better, the district is not required
to provide additional educational programs. If however the students who have been
in the program arc achieving at grade level or better, the district is not required
to provide additional educational programs. If however, the students who have been
in the school system for a year or more are underachieving (not achieving at grade
level) the district must submit a plan to remedy the situvation. This may include
smaller class sizes, enrichment materials, etc. In either this case, or the case
of students who are underachieving and have been in the school system for less

than a year, the remedy must include one or a combination of the following:

&) ESL 2) a TBE B) a Bil/Bic Program 4) A Multilingual/Multicultural program.

(Lau p.11)

Statement Cost Comments

(from Lau Remedies)

Page 11, #2, B:

The school district We estimate that 1,000 District would utilize
must suvbmit a plan for students (predominate ESL Program in addition
secondary underachievers spellers of language other to regular remedial efforts.
who have been in the than English would be h
district for a year or affected. The estimated
more. The plan must in- cost of special programs
clude any one or a com— for these students (based
bination of the following: on Title I expenditures for
ESL, TBE, Bilingual/Bi- similar students) to be ap-
cultural Program, Multi~ proximately $300 per student
lingual/Multicultural or a total of approximately
Program. $300,000. This would include
materials, personnel and scaff
development.

The overriding questions concerning the above projections is whether the
the district recognizes the need for providing special programs for underachieving
LESA students. If it recognizes the pedogigical appropriateness of such responses,
than the projected $300,000 expense for providing these programs should not scem
wnreasonable. In addition, if the district recognizes that alternative educational
approaches are warranted, than the expendituras required can be -looked-upon.as a
rechanneling of fiscal and personnel. resources so as to dimprove the quality of
education for a significant portion of it's student population. In responding to
the identified student nceds of LESA pupils the district would thus, not be expending
additional resources; but rather initiate the process of re~allocating present

resources in innovative ways.
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8. In the case of the bilingual speaker (speaks both the language other than
English and English with equal case) the district must provide data relative to

the student(s) academic achievement.

Statement Cost Comments

Page 12, {#3, A:

District must provide Test costs: 5 subject Tests in reading, math,
achicvement data rela- areas for 15,000 students science, social studies,
tive to bilingual stu- grades 1-6, at $1 per stu- and language arts for all
dents. Testing would dent would be $15,000. students, grades 1-6.

have to bc conducted for
some 15,000 elementary
students who have not
thus far been included in
expenditures in this
document.

The figures used to estimate cost again, raise some questions. In page 3,
item 2, the district mentions a total of 18,000 LESA students in grades 7-12, who are
to be tested. The cover letter mentions a total LESA district pupil estimate of
18,000. However, on page 4, the districts estimate that there are 15,000 possible
LESA students at grades 1-6. Taking the initial estimate of 18,000 at the inter—
mediate and high school level, plus the addition 15,000 in grades 1-6, the district
must then have 33,000 LESA students -~ if so, why the 18,000 LESA student estimate
on the cover page. In consistencies such as these lead one to question the accuracy
of the figures cited throughout the document.

As noted in a previous segment, questions arise on how much the district
currently expends for testing in grades K-12. Why is it that the district did not
investigate utilization of available test data? Why is there no data providing a
comparision of expenses the district usually incurrs versus additional expenses
brought on specifically as a result of the Lau remedies?

A more conclusive cost analysis would provide documentation on the distriets
current expenditures by categores (i.e. testing, etc.) and estimation of additional
monies required solely to comply with the requirements cited in Laun.

Only as information concerning such issues becomes available can an objective

judgement, concerning Lau related expenses in this particular area be made.
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9. In the case of the bilingual speaker . . . In this case the treatment is the
same at the elementary, intermediate, and secondary levels and differs only in
terms of underachievers and those students achieving at grade level or better.

A. For those students in this category who are underachieving, treatment
corresponds to the regular program requirements for all racially/ethnically
identifiable classes or tracks composed of students who are underachieving, re-
gardless of the languagc background. (Lau remedies, p. 11)

The cost analysis of the districts selected response to the Lau provisions
in this case, seems to be again based on erroncous interpretation of the remedies.
The projected costs of $300 per pupil implies that the district does not currently
have operational programs for students in the district who are underachieving. To
assume that the remedies require that new programs be institued solely for LESA
students is a somewhat distorted conclusion. Assuming that some programs are
currently operational, some expenditures for materials, personnel and staff de-
velopment are likely already provided for in the school budget; the increases in
this budget category.

If the district did not have programatic approaches to serve the specialized
needs of its underachievers, perhaps the requirements noted in Lau will serve to
improve the quality of education received by said students in the district.

If such programs are already provided, Lau simply requires that such focussed
assistance be given to students of limited English speaking ability who may not be

receiving, but require such educational treatment.
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10. In the fourth step of such a plan the district must show that the required
ond elecctive courses are not designed to have a discriminatory cffect . . .
schools must develop strong in centives and encouragments for minority students
to enroll in electives where minorities have not traditionally enrolled. In
this regard counselors, teachers, and principals have a most important role . . .
the school district must see that all of its students are encouraged to fully

participate and take advantage of all educational benefits. (Lau remedies pp. 13-14)

Statement Cost

Page 13, #IV, A, B:

The school district must The district's approach The guidebooks previously
show that required elective to comply with these mentioned would also assist
courses are not designed to requirements would be to in compliance with these
have a discriminatory effect. employ a special "Lau requirements. Counselor's
Close monitoring is necessary counselor™ for each of salary based on $13,000.

to evaluate to what degree the district's 18 second-

ninorities are in essence ary schools - $234,000.

being discouraged . . .
districts must take affirma-
tive duties to see that
minority students arc not
excluded from any elective
courses and over included in
others.

The “approach" selected by the district to comply with the requirements in Lau
regarding LESA student enrollment in elective courses and co-curricular activities
makes an observer question the present competency of the district's current counseling-
and/or academic advisory staff. To suggest that a total new counseling component is
required to serve the curricular and_co-curricular related needs of LESA pupils is
at a minimu, questionable. The remedies ——-—-— state that staff training, specifically
conducted for the purpose of better enabling the district to implement the program
requirements is acceptable as a temporary response. A second, temporary alternative
ig utilization of para-professionals with necessary language and cultural backgrounds.
To suggest that LESA students will be provided with a special "Lau counselor™ is also
contrary to the spirit of the remedies provision regarding racial/ethnic isolation
in that said students would not be serviced by the same personnel serving the total
student body.

A more appropriate temporary response might be an extensive staff development
program designed to equip present staff with the skills and information required for
the district to meet this Lau requirement. The district should recognize that re-
training is but a partial remedy, however; provisions for recruitment and acquisition

of required personnel should be initiated to insure that requires programs can be

fully operational within a reasonable span of time.



95

11. Evaluation

A "Product and Process" evaluation is to be submitted in the plan. 7This type
of evaluation, in addition to stating the "product" (end result), must include
Yprocess evaluation" (periodic cvaluation throughout the implementation stage). A
description of the evaluation design is required. Time-lines (target for completion

of steps) is an essential component.

Page 20, f#VIII:

A "Product and Process” evaluatin is Two additional evaluation specialists and

required. a secretary would be rcquired. Evaluation
specialist at $20,000 each = $40,000.
Secretary $6,000. Supplies and materials
at $4,000. Total $50,000.

Again, the districts response to the requirements of Lau seems to reflect a
case of overkill. Does the present evaluation staff not have the time or resources
or capability to conduct the required activities? If so why is this not indicated?
Since the Lau remedies do not specifically indicate the comprehensiveness™ required
in the cvaluation design, why is it assumed that a totally new evaluation sub-
component will be required? If an evaluation plan has not presently been formulated
by the district, (taking into account available data, resources and persomnel within
the district) how is it that such a cost estimate can be made?

Options which should be considered by the district, might include:

(1) vtilization of present evaluation staff and related resources to conduct
the evaluation activites specified in Lau.

(2) Re-analysis of possible costs, taking into consideration available staff
and resources to arrive at a more realistic figure.

(3) Postponement of cost projection for evaluation until the district has de-~
veloped a comprehensive plan which responds to all requirements detailed in the
remedies. This action would in turn allow the district to develop a more precise
cost estimate based on actual evaluation activites which would be dicated by said

plan.



96
Exhibit No. 3

CORPUS CHRISTI INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
315 NORTH CARANCAHUA
P, 0. CRAWLR 110
CORPUS CHRISTI, TEXAS 78403

DePARIHENT CF FERSONNEL

RECEIVED

JUL 10 1974

¢PICE OF SU?EE‘.HIEHDFJFE
%‘.?}:L:Emn. SCHOOL DI8T.

TO: Dana Williams
FROM: Dan McLendon
DATE: July 9, 1974

SUBJECT: Observations on the Employment of Mexican-American Teachers by the
Corpus Christi Independent School District

Recent statements in the local newspapers attributed to Mr. Paul Montemayor
have charged the district with discrimination regarding the employment of
Mexican-American teachers, particularly as related to the high school level.
As these and other related events would suggest that criticism of the district
will increase in coming weeks, the following information seems appropriate

for your use at some future time.

I assume the "survey" upon which Mr. Montemayor bases his statements is the
district's March 22 report filed with the court. If that assumption is
correct, the report indicates the district had a Mexican-American teacher per-
centage of 13.03 at the high school Lgiel (AEC excluded), but also indicates

a Mexican-American teacher percentage of 24.42 at the junior high level and

of 28.13 at the elementary level.

Mr. Montemavor's charges raise two interesting questions or issues - 1) what
kind of effort is the district making in employing Mexican-American teachers
and 2) what kind of success or results has the district experienced in this
area. Although the issuves are interrelated, it does not necessarily follow
that an intensive effort at recruitment will produce the desired results or
that "successful™ recruitment is the result of a maximum effort. The comments
below reflect observations on the second point, that of the results the dis-
trict has experienced in the recruitment of Mekxican-American teachers. The
issue of effort is not addressed.

In determining how successful a district has been in the recruitment of per-
sonnel, one wust have some standard by which to compare efforts. 1It's pointless
to castigate a district for not having a higher percentage or number of em-
ployees of a particular ethnic group if they simply are not available. There-
fore, in an attempt to establish a standard by which the district's efforts
might be assessed, the following observations can be made regarding the
availability of Mexican-American teachers:

. In 1972-731 Texas employed over 33% of all the Spanish-American2
teachers3 erployed nationwide.
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. Approximately 24% of the students of that same ethnic group were
enrolled in Texas public schools during the same year.

. The number of Spanish-American teachers employed in Texas (7626)
represented 6.5% of the total number of teachers employed state-
wide.

It would appear, therefore, that the state's holding/drawing power as related
to Mexican-American teachers was excellent when compared to that of other
states. However, it is also evident that even though the state employs over
one~-third of the available Mexican-American teachers, the absolute number
represented by that percentage is a small percentage of the total number of
teachers employed state-wide. Their availability or "distributability" within
the state, therefore, is extremely limited.

After determining the above, one is in a somewhat better position to determine
the number of Mexican-American teachers which a district could be expected to
employ. Methods which might be utilized include a) establishing as an accept-~
able ''quota" a percentage of Mexican-American teachers equal to the percentage
of Mexican-fmerican students in the district (I assume this is what Mr.
Montemayor is suggesting), b) establiching a local Mexican-American teacher/
pupil ratio based on the state-wide Mexican-American teacher/pupil ratio, or
¢) establishing a local Mexican-American teacher/pupil ratio based on the
state-wide ratio of the percentages of Mexican-American teachers to pupils.

If a) were the acceptable standard for hiring Mexican-American teachers, the
following become evident:

. Corpus Christi ISD's quota would be 1075 Mexican-American teachers.
This figure represents roughly 147 of all Mexican-American teachers
available in the state. (2.8% of the state's Mexican-American
student population attend district schools.)

. If 1075 Mexican-American teachers were an acceptable goal, it
would take the district 6-8 years to reach that figure if con-
tracts vere offered only to Mexican-American teachers interviewed.%
This assumes that qualified Mexican-American teachers would be
available in all areas during this period (there are presently
no Mexican-American applicants in science and traditionally there
have been few Mexican-American applicants in English).

. If such a standard were required of all districts state-wide,
the ten (10) largest districts would require in excess of 111%
of the Mexican-American teachers available in the state while

serving approximately 20.5% of the Mexican-American students
state-wide.

Using method b), a state-wide teacher/pupil ratio of 1:133.20 (7626 teachers

to 1,015,812 students) can be established. On this basis, CCISD would be
entitled to 181.47 Mexican-American teachers (24,172 students divided by 133.20
students/teacher ). In 1972-73 the district had 428 Mexican-American teachers,
or 235% of its "entitlement."

Using c¢), a state-wide ratio of 1% teacher population to each 3.48% student
population (22.6% state-wide Mexican-American student population divided by
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6.5% Mexican-American teacher population) can be established. Applied to
Corpus Ciristi's percentage of studemts, the district would have been entitled
in 1972-73 to 152.29 Mexican-American teachers (53.0% Mexican-American students
divided by 3.48% students/tecacher state-wide ratio). The district's 428
teachers was 281% of its "entitlement" that year.

There are undoubtedly other ways by which an acceptable number of Mexican-
Anerican teachers in a given district might be determined. It would appear,
however, that by most standards one might use, Corpus Christi has had con-
siderable success in the employment of Mexican-American teachers. This seems
to be substantiated by the following:

. Of 449 districts for which information is available, 124 had
Mexican-American student populations of 307 or more.

. Of those 124, only 24 (19.8%) had better teacher/pupil percentage
ratios than Corpus Christi ISD.

. Of those 24, only 3 (12.5%) were not located either on the Mex-
ican border or in a county classified as South Texas or the Rio
Grande Valley (Corpus Christi is located in the Upper Coastal
Bend Region). (It would appear that the further removed a dis-
trict is from the cultural influence of Mexico, the more diffi-
cult it is to attract Mexican-American teachers. Salaries do not
seem to be a significant factor in drawing Mexican-American
teachers. WNone of the 24 districts had 1971-72 salaries (the
basis for hiring teachers for the 1972-73 school year) higher
than those of Corpus Christi ISD. (El Paso was higher in bach-
elor and master degree maximums but lower at both levels in
beginning salaries.))

Although the above offers only limited observations on the issues raised by
Nr. Montemayor's comments, it does present data which helps to demonstrate
that the problem is not as simple as people would be led to believe and that
Corpus Christi ISD is, in fact, doing an effective job in recruiting Mexican-
American teachers.

DM/bh

cc: Dr. Dwayne Bliss
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FOOTROTES

All figures, unless otherwise stated, are based on information contained in
U.S. Department of HEW, Office of Civil Rights, Directory of Public Elewentary
and Sccondary Schools in Selected Districts, December, 1972. Information for
1973-74 is not available.

"Persons considered by themselves by the school or by the community to be of
Mexican, Puerto Rican, Central American, Cuban, Latin American or other Spanish
origins.”" Elenentary and Secondary Schools Civil Rights Survey, Fall 1973.

The terms Hexican-American and Spanish-American are used synonymously in this
paper.

Full-time classroom teachers assigned to only one school.

Based upon the average number of interviews by the personnel department over
the past four ycars, the acceptance rate average of Mexican-American teachers
over the past four years, and the approximate number of Mexican-American
teachers who resigned from the district each year.
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Exzhibit No. 4

TEXAS EDUCATION AGENCY AUST
‘ « BTATE BOARD OF EDUCATION
+ STATE COMMISSIONER OF EDUCATION
» STATE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

May 6, 1971

TO: The Superintendent Addressed

SUBJECT: Court Order, Civil Action No. 5281, United States
District Court, Eastern District of Texas, Tyler
Division

Attached is a copy of the Court Order in Civil Action No. 5281.
May I suggest that you and the board of school trustees study the
Order so that you may understand the Texas Education Agency's
responsibilities and its relationships with school districts as
it complies with the requirements of the Order.

The Order has been appealed to the United States Fifth Circuit
Court and the appeal will be heard in Jacksonville, Florida on
June 14, 1971. 1In the meantime, a request for a stay in the
implementation of the Order until the Fifth Circuit Court has
acted has been requested.

If the stay is not granted, it will be necessary to send all
school districts certain reporting forms on transfers accepted
and public school transportation routes within the next two or
three weeks.

Very truly yours,

L.

J. W. Edgar
Commissioner of Education

78711
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- 5. Disy,
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT “"‘&ND:srz:gg?}mt
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS APR20 1971

JAMES p.
TYLER DIVISION gEYPu;y R: Coongy. é&m
Y
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA ) %ﬂ
)

V. ; CIVIL ACTION NO. 5281
STATE OF TEXAS, ET AL. )
ORDER

On November 24, 1970, this Court entered an order in this
case then styled United States of America v. State of Texas,
et al., Civil Action No. 1424, Marshall Division, requiring
inter allia that the Texas Education Agency, the State
Commissioner of Education and theilr officers, agents, employees,
successors re-evaluate all of thelr activitles and practices
relating to the desegregation of public elementary and secondary
education within the State of Texas; upon completion of
this re-evaluation the defendants were required to fille a plan
stating specific actlons which they would take pursuant to
thelr affirmative obligations under Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964 and the Fourteenth Amendment to the
Constitution. On Janhary 15, 1971, the defendants flled their
plan. Plaintifrfs filed a response to thls plan on February 1,
1971, incorporating both obJectlons to defendants' plan and
recommendations for what the defendants were legally required
to accomplish by this plan. An evidentlary hearing was held
on February 1 and 2, 1971. A further hearing was held in
Tyler on April 12, 1971, the case then, and hereafter, belng
styled Civil Action No. 5281, Tyler Division.

The Court has carefully considereéd the submissions of
the respective parties and the evidence presented at the

‘hearings, in light of the defendants' affirmative duty to

£ TRUE COPY £
JRIES R 6N
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take "whatever steps might be necessary to ... [eliminate]

racial discrimination root and branch.” Green v. New Kent

County, 391 U.S. 430, 437-38 .(1968), Swann v. Charlotte-Mecklenburg

ot LLL.2\N

Board of Education, Nos. 281 and 349, U.S. N

(April 20, 1971). In this regard the duty of the state
appears to be two-fold: First,to act at once to eliminate by
positive means all vestiges of the dual school structure
throughout the state; and second, to compensate for the abiding
scars of past discrimination.

Accordingly, it is hereby ORDERED that the State of
Texas, Dr. J. W. Edgar, Commissioner of Education of the State
of Texas, the Texas Education Agency, their offices, agents,
employees, successors and all other persons in active concert
or participation with them (hereinafter referred to as
defendants) shall fulfill those duties as follows:

A. Student Transfers

(1) Defendants shall not permit, make arrangement
for or give support of any kind to student transfers, between
school districts, when the cumulative effect in either the
sending or receiving school or school district will be to
reduce or impede desegregation, or to reinforce, renew, or
encourage the continuation of acts and practices resulting in
discriminatory treatment of students on the ground of race, color,
or national origin.

(2) The Texas Education Agency shall review all
student transfers and shall notifv the sending and receiving
districts promptly of all transfers which do not appear to
comply with the terms of this Order.

(3) 1If, after receiving notice of the Texas Education
Agency's refusal to approve transfers, the receiving district
shall continue to accept the transfer of students, or if the
sending district shall refuse to provide suitable educational
opportunities for these students, defendants, after 15 days

notice to the President of the Board of Trustees and the
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Superintendent (if the district has such an officlal), shall
refuse to transfer the funds, based on the average daily
attendance of the transfer students involved to the account
of the recelving district, and shall, thereby, terminate and
refuse to grant or continue paying to the offending district
a percentage of state funds equivalent to the district's
entitlement based on the average daily attendance of the

students transferring in violatim of this Order.

the offending district any transportation funds which might
accrue on account of transfer students accepted in violation
of this Order. If the offending district contlnues to refuse
to deny transfers which adversely affect desegregation, the
Texas Education Agency shall warn the district that its
accreditation status is in danger. This warning shall remaln
In effect for ten days, at which time, if the offending
district has falled to correct its violatlons, the Texas

Educatlion Agency shall suspend the district's TEA accreditation.

B. Changes in School District Boundaries

(1) Defendants shall not permit, make arrangements for,
approve, acqulesce 1n, or give support of any kind to changes
in school di§trict boundary lines - whether by detachment,
annexation, or consolidation of districts 1n whole or 1in
part - which are designed to, or do in fact, create, maintailn,
reinforce, renew, .or encourage a dual school system based on
race, color, or national origin.

(2) Defendants shall require the board of trustees of
any school district desiring to annex or consolidate with a
nearby district, in whole or in part, or desiring £o change
its boundaries in any other manner such as 1s described, for
example, in Part II-A(2) of the Court's Order of November
24, 1970, to report saild intention to the Commissioner
of Education for the State of Texas at least 15 days prior to

|
|
(4) Defendants shall also refuse to dlstribute to
the effective date of such action, and shall take appropriate
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measures to insure compliance with this requirement..

(3) Uhenever the Commissioner shill receive notice
that a district or a portion of a district is to be detached
from, annexed to, or consolidated with another district, he
shall institute an immediate investigation as to the effects
of such projected change of boundaries on the desegregation
status of all of the school districts concerned. He shall
promptly notify the appropriate county and local officials
of his fiqdings, and indicate whether or not the transfer of
territory i's in violation of the law.

(4) 1If county and local officials proceed to
consummate the transfer of territory after being notified that
they are in violation of the law, defendants, after 15 days notice
to the President of the Board of Trustees and the Superintendent
of the district {if the district has such an official), shall
refuse to transfer funds, based on the average daily
attendance of the students in the territory detached, annexed
or consolidated, to the account of the new district, and shall,
thereby, terminate and refuse to grant or continue paying
to the offending district a percentage of state funds equivalent
to the district's entitlement based on the average daily
attendance of the students detached, annexed or consolidated
in violation of this Order. These funds shall be distributed
to the remainder of the original district, in cases of illegal
detachments, but shall not be used by that district to support
the education of children living in the detached area. In
cases involving the consolidation of whole districts, the Texas
Education Agency shall hold the funds derived from the average
daily attendance of %the students illegally annexed to or
consolidated with the new district in escrowpending dissolution

of the illegal transfer of territory and the return of students

to their original districts.
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(5) Defendants are enjolned from granting "incentive
ald" payments pursuant to Texas law (Art. 2815-4, Vernon's
Texas Revised Civlil Statutes as amended), to districts which
are enlarged by annexations or consolidation actlons in
violation of this Order.

(6) Should a county board of education or a school
district, having received notice from the Commissioner that
a territorial alteration has been disapproved, fall to disavow
the action and to declare its effects null and vold, the
Texas Education Agency shall notify the district that its
accreditation status i1s in danger. This notice shall remain
in effect for 10 days, at the end of which time, 1f the
offending district has failed to correct its violations, the
Agency shall suspend the district's TEA accreditation.

(7) In all cases involving annexation or consolidation
of school districts, the Texas Education Agency shall apply
the portions of the Order of the Court in this case dated
April 19, 1971, concerning the annexation of nine all-black
school districts to nearby bi-racial districts, and specifically,
the portions of that Order relating to faculty and staff and
to bi-racilal committees, to the newly enlarged districts and
shall require the saild district to submit to the Texas Education
Agency such reports as may be necessary to enable that Agency
to determine whether the newly enlarged district is operating
and will continue to operate in compliance with Title VI and
the Fourteenth Amendment.

C. School Transportation

(1) Defendants shall not permit, make arrangement
for, acquiesce 1n,or give support of any kind to bus routes or runs
which are designed to, or do in fact, create, maintain, re-
inforce, renew,or encourage a dual school system based on race,

color, or national origin.
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(2) The transportation system in those county units
and school”districts having transportation systems shall be
completely re-examined each year by the Texas Education Agency.
Bus routes and runs as well as the assignment of students to
buses will be designed to insure the transportation of all
eligible pupils on a non-segregated and otherwise non-discriminatory
basis. Bus routes and runs shall be constituted to provide that
each bus operated by a district picks up every pupil along
the route or run who is assigned to the school or schools and
grade levels served by that bus. Where two or more equally
efficient and economical routes or runs are available in a
glven area of the school district, the route or run which would
promote or facllitate desegregation of buses shall be adopted
by the distriect and approved by the Texas Education Agency
rather than a route or run which, whether by intent, inaction,
or inadvertence, would maintain or encourage segregation.

(3) Accordingly, if upon examination of transportation
systems, the Texas Education Agency shall find that a district
is operating one or more bus routes or runs which serve ‘66% or
more students of a minority group, which are duplicated by one
or niore routes or runs serving more than 66% students of
another race or ethnic background, the Texas Education Agency
shall immediately investigate and determine whether the heavily
minority routes or runs may be re-routed, terminated or
combined with routes or runs which serve non-minority students
so as to desegregate these routes or runs.

(4) If the Texas Education Agency finds that a county
or local district is operating its transportation system in
violation of this Order, it shall notify the appropriate

officials of the local district. If the offending district
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refuses to alter its bus routes or runs so as to avold
segregation in Instances where the Texas Education Agency has
determined that such alterations are necessary, or if such

a district persists in operating bus routes or runs which
adversely affect the desegregation of 1ts schools, classes,
or extra-curricular activities, the Texas Education Agency
shall refuse to approve the entire route structure of the
district, and shall, thereby, terminate and refuse to grant
or continue paying state transportation funds to the offending
district until it shall have altered all routes or runs
operated in violation of this Order, so as to eliminate all
vestiges of discrimination based on race, color, or national
origin. 1In addition, the Texas Education Agency shall notify
the district that its accreditation status is in danger.

This notice shall remain in effect for 10 days, at which
time, if the offending district has failed to correct its
violations, the Agency shall suspend the district's TEA

acecreditation.

D. Extra-Curricular Activities

(1) Defendants shall not permit, make arrangement for,
acquiesce in or give support of any kind to activities run in
connection with the elementary and secondary educational program
operated by the state or any of its county aid local educational
agencies which, whether by intent, inaction, or inadvertence,
results in segregation or other discrimination against students
on the ground of race, color, or national origin. These
extra-curricular activities include, but are not lizited to,
student government organizations, athletic teams for inter-
scholastic competition, clubs, hobby groups, student newspaper

staffs, annual staffs, band, band majJorettes and cheerleaders.
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(2) The Texas Education Agency shall instruct the
members of 1ts accreditation review teams in conjunction with
its Titie IV staff, to examine the extra-curricular activities
of each district which they review. All violations of this
Order which are discovered by such investigations shall be
reported to the Commissioner of Education. If the Texas
Education Agency receives complaints from any source that a
school district is operating and supporting extra-curricular
activities in violation of this Order, immediate investigation

shall be made of such complaint.

(3) If the Commissioner finds that a district 1s
operating and supporting extra-curricular activities in
violation of this Order, he shall notify the county or local
school district through the President of its Board of Trustees
and through the Superintendent (if the district has such an
official),that the district is operating in violation of Title
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Fourteenth Amendment.
At the same time, he shall warn the district that its
accreditation is in danger. This warning shall remain in
effect for 10 days, at which time, if the district has failed
to correct the violations, the Texas Education Agency shall

suspend the district's TEA accreditation.

(4) In addition to the suspension of the accreditation
of districts operating discriminatory extra-curricular
activities, the State of Texas and the Texas Education Agency
shall reduce the percentage of state funds granted to the district
under the Minimum Foundation Program for salaries and operating
expenses by ten percent. Should the district persist in

operating its extra-curricular activities in a manner which
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results in segregation or discriminatory treatment of students

on acesunt of pace, color, or national origin, the State of

Texas and the Texas Education Agency shall reduce the per-

centage of state funds as deseribed above by an additional ten

per cent. for each semester or term that the violations continue.
(5) Defendants are required to consider that a suspension

or reduction of programs and activities to avold operating them

on a desegregated basis constitutes a violation of Title VI

arid the Fourteenth Amendment.

E. Faculty and Staff

(1) Defendants shall not permit, make arrangement for,
acquiesce in or give support of any kind to the hiring, assigning,
promoting, paying, demoting, reassigning or dismissing, or
treatment of faculty and staff members who work directly with
children in a discriminatory manner on account of race,
color, or national origin. Defendants shall be responsible
for the application and enforcement throughout the State of
the provisions of the Order of the Court in this case dated
April 19, 1971, referred to in Section 3, paragraph 7
herein, and specifically, the portions of that Order relating
to the treatment of faculty and staff.

(2) In carrying out its affirmative dutiles under
Title VI and the Fourteenth Amendment in this area, the Texas
Education Agency shall require each county or local educational J
agency desiring to recelve state funds under the Minimum l
Foundation Program to include with its preliminary application
for such funds a list of objective, non-racial and non-
ethnlec criteria by which the county or local district will
measure 1ts faculty and staff for assignment, promotion,
demotlon, reassignment or dismissal and by which 1t will

Judge prospective employees for faculty and staff positions.
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(3) The Texas Education Agency shall require the
members of its accreditation review teams, in conjunction with
the members of its staff designated to work in collaboration
with the United States Office of Education to provide
technical assistance to desegrating school districts pursuant
to Title IV of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (hereinafter
referred to as "Title IV staff" or "Title IV personnel),
to examlne the faculty and staff hiring and assigning practices
of the districts which they visit for accreditation purposes,
and to examlne the records relating to hiring, assigning,
promoting, paying, demoting, reassigning or dismissing of
faculty and staff who work directly with children for a
period including the three years prior to the complete
elimination of the district's dual school structure. The
review teams and state Title IV personnel shall also examlne
faculty aséignments within each school district under review
to determine whether the percentage of minority teachers in
each school 1s substantially the same as the percentage of
minority teachers in the school district as a whole, as re-
quired under Part II, Section A of the Order of this Court
dated April 19, 1971, and referred to in Sections B(7) and E(1)
herein. Any evldence of discriminatory practices concerning
faculty and staff shall be reported to the Commissioner
of Educatilon.

(4) After such further investigation as deemed
necessary by the Commissioner, he shall notify the district
through the President of 1ts Board of Trustees and 1ts
Superintendent (if the district has such an official),of any
acts and practices with regard to faculty and staff whilch
violate the areas described in Part II, Sectlon 4, of the

Order of this Court, dated April 19, 1971, referred to in
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Section B(7), E(1) und K(3) herein. At the same time, he
shall warn the district that its accreditation is in danger.
This warning shall remain in effect for 15 days, at which
time, if the offerding district falls to correct its
violations with regaryd .o raculty and staff who work directly
with children, the Texas #ducation Agency shall suspend the
district’s TEA accreditation.

(5) In addition to the suspension of accreditation,
the State of Texas and the Texas Education Agency shall
refuse to approve the district's application for sfate funds
under the Minimum Foundation Program for salarles, and shall,
thereby, terminate and refuse to grant or continue paying
such funds to the district.

(6) Defendants shall require a school district which
has been found to have engaged in discriminatory practices in
regard to the assignment, demotion, dismissal, reassignment
or payment of faculty or staff to restore or offer to restore
the faculty or staff member to his (or her) original position
held prior to the discriminatory action and to pay the faculty
member for any time he (or she) was unemployed or employed
at a lower salary level because of the discriminatory action
of the district, and for which he (or she) was not adequately
compensated.

F. Student Assignment

(1) Defendants shall not permit, make arrangement for,
acquliesce in or give support of any kind to the assignment of
studants to schools, individual classrooms or activities on the
basis of race, color or national origin.

(2) Defendants, having identified pursuant to this

Court's order of November 24, 1970, school districts whose
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enrollment of minority race children is greater than 66% and
whose total student population is fewer than 250 students,
shall show cause by August 15, 1971, why each such school
district should not be annexed to or consolidated with one
or more independent school districts of over 150 students,
or one or more common school districts of over 400 students,
S0 as to eliminate its existence as a racially or ethnically
separate educational unit.

(3) Defendants shall review each year all school
districts in the state in which there exist schools enrolling
more than 66% minority group students, as reported in
accordance with Part II(E)(6) of the Court's order in this
case dated November 24, 1970, and shall make findings as to
whether or not the student assignment plans of these districts
have resulted in compliance with federal constitutional
standards. On October 1, 1971, and on the same date each
subsequent year until further order of this Court, defendants
shall file a report with the Court indicating (1) the school
districts reviewed and the particular findings concerning
the assignment and transfer of students within each such
district; (2) what steps each distriect is taking to eliminate
their racially and ethnically identifiable schools and what
recommendations defendants have proposed in this regard; and
(3) what special cultural and educational activities these
districts have instituted to compensate for the inherently
unequal educational opportunities provided to students in these
racially or ethnically identifiable schools. Copies of this report
shall be served upon the Civil Rights Division of the United
States Department of Justice and the Office for Civil Rights
of the United States Department of Health, Education

and Welfare. A copy of this report shall also be retained
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in the Offices of the Pegas Educiiion Agency in sach a wm.
that it will be readily and conveniently available for publi
inspection during normal business hours.

G. Curriculum and Compensatory Education

(1) Defendants shall insure that school districts
are providing equal educational opportunities in all schools.
The Texas Education Agency, through its consulting facilities
and personnel, shall assist school districts in achieving
a comprehensive balance curriculum on all school campuses,
and, where necessary, in providing for students to transfer
to &ifferent schools in the district on a part-time basis to
avail themselves of subjects not offered in their assigned
school. Full time transfers may be allowed only where they
do not adversely affect desegregation as further described.
in Section A herein.

(2)" The Texas Education Agency shall institute a
study of the educational needs of minority children in order
to insure equal educational opportunities of all students.
The Texas Education Agency shall request the assistance of
the United States Office of-Education and any other educational
experts whom they choose to consult in making this study.
By not later than August 15, 1971, a report on this study
shall'be filed by the Texas Education Agency with the Court
including:

(a) Recommendations of specific curricular
offerings and programs which will insure equal educational oppor-
tunities for all students regardless of race, color or national
origin. These currlcular offerings and programs shall include
specific educational programs designed to compensate minority
group children for unequal educational opportunities resulting

from past or present racial and ethnic 1solation, as well as
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programs and curriculum designed to meet the special educational
needs of students whose primary language 1s other than English;

(b) Explanation of presently existing programs
funded by the State of Texas or by the Federal Government
which are available to local districts to meet these special
educational needs and how such programs might be applied to
these educational needs;

(c) Explanation of specific standards by which
the defendants will determine when a local district, which
has racially or ethnically isolated schools or which has
students whose primary language is other than English, shall
be required by the defendants to participate in the special
compensatory educational programs available; and

(d) Explanation of procedures for applying
these standards to local districts including appropriate
sanctions to be employed by the defendants should a district
refuse to participate in special compensatory educational
programs where it has been instructed to do so pursuant to
application of the standards developed under subsection (c)

above.

(e) Copies of this report shall be served as
described in Sectlon F above, and a copy shall also be
retained in the Offices of the Texas Educatlon Agency as
described therein.

H. Complaints and Grievences

The defendants shall send to all county and local
educational agencies an information bulletin designed to notify
faculty, staff and patrons of local school districts of the
availability of complaint and grievance procedures and to inform

them of how to utilize these procedures. Defendants shall
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further require that every county and local educational agency
shall place this bulletin on public display in such a way as
to assure 1ts avallability at all times during school hours.
A copy of this bulletin shall be filed with the Court on or
before Agusut 15, 1971, with a copy to the plaintiff.
I. Notification

The defendants, 1n all cases where notification is
given to a school district of imminent loss of accreditation
or state funds because of its failure to meet the requirements
of Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Fourteenth
Amendment, shall, at the same time, notify the ‘plaintiff. In
the event that it becomes necessary to suspend the distrilct's
accreditation or to reduce or remove state funds the defendants

shall also notify the plaintiff.

J. Jurisdiction
This Court retains Jurisdiction of this matter for all
purposes, and especially for the purpose of entering any and
all further orders which may become necessary to enforce or
modify thils decree.
SIGNED and ENTERED this 20th day of April, 1971.
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Texas Education Agency 201 East Eleventh Street
Austin, Texas
« STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION 78701

o STATE COMMISSIONER OF EDUCATION
o STATE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

July 16, 1971

T0: The Superintendent Addressed

SUBJECT: Modified Otder, Civil Action No. 5281, United States
District Court, Eastern District of Texas, Tyler
Division

Enclosed for your information and that of the board of school
trustees is a copy of the Modified Order in Civil Action No.
5281.

The United States Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit, on
July 9, 1971, did affirm the Order in Civil Action No. 5281
except that the District Court was directed to make certain
modifications. You and the board of school trustees may deter-
mine these modifications by comparing the Modified Order with
the original Order mailed to you under date of May 6, 1971.

Very feprdially yours,

o P &J\P/

Leon R. Graham
Assistant Commissioner
for Administration
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FILED

U. 5. DISTRICT COLRT
EASIEAN DISTAICT OF IEXAS

JuL 131871
e COONEY, /’ﬁ
6’76*.4@;(&”?/

CIVIL ACTION NO. 5281

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS

TYLER DIVISION

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

V.

STATE OF TEXAS, ET AL.

MODIFIED ORDER .

This Court's Order of April 20, 1971, in the above-
entitled and numbered civil actidén 1s hereby modified to comply
and conform with the directions of the United States Court of
Appeals for the Fifth Circult in its Opinion of July G, 1971,

in Cause No. 71-1061, entitled United States of America,

Plaintiff-Appellee, versus State of Texas, Et Al., and Dr.

J. W. Edgar, Commissioner of Education, Et Al., Defendants-

Appellants, F.2d (5 Cir. 1971), and, as so modified,

such Order 1s re-issued, as follows:

On November 24, 1970, this Court entered an order in
this case then styled United States of America v. State of Texas,
et al., Civil Action No. 142l, Marshall Division, requiring
inter alla that the Texas Education Agency, the State
Commissioner of Education and thelr offlcers, agents, employees,
successors re-evaluate all of theilr activities and practices
relating to the desegregation of public elementary and secondary
education within the State of Texas; upon completion of this
re-evaluation the defendants were required to file a plan
stating =specific actions which they would take pursuant to their
affirmative obligations under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act
of 1964 and the Fourteenth Amendment to the Constitution.

On January 15, 1971, the defendants filed their plan.

X nx .
PSS Pl CRIET
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Plaintiffs filed a response to this plan on February 1, 1971,
incorporating both objections to defendants' plan and
recommendations for what the defendants were legally required
to accomplish by this plan. An evidentiary hearing was held
on February 1 and 2, 1971. A further hearing was held in
Tyler on April 12, 1971, the case then, and hereafter, being
styled Civil Action No. 5281, Tyler Division.

The Court has carefully considered the submissions of
the respective parties and the evidence presented at the hearings,
in light of the defendants' affirmative duaty to take "whatever

steps might be necessary to . . . [eliminate] racial dis-

crimination root and branch." Green v. New Kent County, 391 U.S.

430, 437-38 (1968), Swann v. Charlotte-Mecklenburg Board of

Education, Nos. 281 and 349, U.S. , (April 20,
1971). 1In this regard the duty of the state appears to be
two-fold: First, to act at once to eliminate by positive
means all vestiges of the dual school structure throughout the
state; and second, to compensate for the abiding scars of past
discrimination.

Accordingly, it is. hereby ORDERED that the State of
Texas, Dr. J. W. Edgar, Commissioner of Education of the State
of Texas, the Texas Education Agency, their officers,agents,
employees, successors and all other persons in active concert or
participation with them (hereinafter referred to as defendants)
shall fulfill those duties as follows:

A. Student Transfers

(1) Defendants shall not permit, make arrangement for
or give support of any kind to student transfers, between school
districts, when the cumulative effect in either the sending or

receiving school or school district will be to reduce or impede
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desegregation, or to reinforce, renew, or encourage the
continuation of aects and practices resulting in discriminatory
treatment of students on the ground of race, color, or national
origin.

(2) The Texas Education Agency shall review all
student transfers and shall notify the sending and receiving
districts promptly of all transfers which do not appear to comply
with fhe terms of this Order.

(3) 1Ir, after receiving notice of the Texas Education
Agency's refusal to approve transfers, the receiving district
shall continue to accept the transfer of students, or if the
sending district shall refuse to provide suitable educational
opportunities for these students, defendants, after 15 days
notice to the President of the Board of Trustees and the
Superintendent (if the district has such an official), shall
refuse to transfer the funds, based on the average daily
attendance of the transfer students involved to the account
of the receiving district, and shall, thereby, terminate and
refuse to grant or continue paying to the offending district
a percentage of state funds equivalent to the district's
entitlement based on the average daily attendance of the
students transferring in violation of this Order.

(4) Defendants shall also refuse to distribute to the
offending district any transportation funds which might accrue
on account of transfer students accepted in violation of thils
Order. If the offending district continues to refuse to deny
transfers which adversely affect desegregatlon, the Texas
Education Agency shall warn the district that 1ts accreditation
status i3 in danger. This warning shall remain in effect for
ten days, at whieh time, 1f the offending district has falled to
correct its violatlons, ‘the Texas Education Agency shall suspend

the district's TEA accreditation.
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B. Changes in School Distriet Boundaries

(1) Defendants shall not permit, make arrangements for,
approve, acquiesce 1n, or give support of any kind to changes
in school district boundary lines - whether by detachment,
annexation, or consolidation of distriects in whole or in
part - which are designed to, or do in fact, create, maintain,
reinforce, renew, or encourage a dual school system based on
race, color, or national origin.

(2) Defendants shall require the board of trustees of
any school district desiring to annex or consolidate with a
nearby district, in whole or in part, or desiring to change
its boundaries in any other manner such as is described, for
example, in Part II-A(2) of the Court's Order of November
24, 1970, to report said intention to the Commissioner of
Education for the State of Texas at least 15 days prior to
the effective date of such action, and shall take appropriate
measures to insure compliance with this requirement.

(3) Whenever the Commissioner shall. receive notice
that a district or a portion of a district is to be detached
from, annexed to, or consolidated with another district, he
shall institute an immedliate investigation as to the effects
of such projected change of boundaries on the desegregation
status of all of the school districts concerned. He shall
promptly notify the appropriate county and local officials of
hils findings, and indicate whether or not the transfer of

territory 1s in violation of the law.

(4) If county and local officials proceed to consummate
the tranSfer of territory after being notified that they are
in violation of the law, defendants, after 15 days notice
to the President of the Board of Trustees and the Superintendent
of the district (if the district has such an official), shall

refuse to transfer funds, based on the average dally attendance
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of the students in the territory detached, annexed or
consolidated, to the account of the new district, and shall,
thereby, terminate and refuse to grant or continue paylng to
the offending district a percentage of state funds equivalent
to the district's entitlement based on the average dailly
attendance of the students detached, annexed or consolidated

in violation of this Order. These funds shall be distributed
to the remainder of the original district, in cases of 1llegal
detachments, but shall not be used by that district to support
the education of children living in the detached area. 1In
cases involving the consolidation of whole districts, the Texas
Education Agency shall hold the funds derived from the average
dailly attendance of the students 1112gally annexed to or
consolidated with the new district in escrow pending dissolution
of the 1llegal transfer of territory and the return of students
to thelr original districts.

(5) Defendants are enjoined from granting “incentive
ald" payments pursuant to Texas law (Art. 2815-4, Vernon's
Texas Revised Civil Statutes as amended), to districts which
are enlarged by annexations or consolidation actions in
violation of this Order.

(6) Should a county board of education or a school
district, having received notice from the Commissioner that a
territorial alteration has been dilsapproved, fall to disavow
the actlon and to declare its effects null and void, the
Texas Education Agency shall notify the district that its
accreditation status 1is in danger. This notice shall remain in
effect for 10 days, at the end of which time, if the offending
district has failed to correct its violations, the Agency

shall suspend the district's TEA accreditation.



(7) In all cases involving annexatlon or consolidation
of school districts, the Texas Education Agency shall apply
the portions of the Order of the Court in thls case dated
April 19, 1971, concerning the annexation of nine all-black
school districts to nearby bi-racial districts, and specifically,
the portions of that Order relating to faculty and staff and
to bi-racial committees, to the newly enlarged districts and
shall require the said district to submit to the Texas Education
Agency such reports as may be necessary to enable that Agency
to determine whether the newly enlarged district is operating
and will continue to operate in compllance with Title VI and
the Fourteenth Amendment.

C. School Transportation-

(1) Defendants shall not permit, make arrangement for,
acquiesce in, or give support of any kind to bus routes or runs
which are designed to, or do in fact, create, maintain, re-
inforce, renew, or encourage a dual school system based on race,
color, or national origin.

(2) The transportation system in those county units
and school districts having transportation systems shall be
completely re-examined each year by the Texas Education Agency.

Bus routes and runs as well as the assignment of students to

buses will be designed to insure the transportation of all

eligible pupils on a non-segregated and otherwise non-disc¢riminatory
basis. Bus roiites and runs shall be constituted to provide that
each bus operated by a district picks up every pupil along

the route or run who i1s assigned to the school or schools and
grade leVels served by that bus. Where two or more equally
efficient and economical routes or runs are avallatle in a
gilven area of the school district, the route or run whicn would
promote or facilitate desegregation of‘buses shall be adopted
by the district and approved by the Texas Education Agency
rather than a route or run which, whether by Intent, inaction,

or inadvertence, would maintaln or encourage segrezation.
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(3) Accordingly, if upon examination of transportation
systems, the Texas Educatlon Agency shall find that a district
is operating one or more bus routes or runs which serve
66% or more students of a minority group, which are duplicated
by one or more routes or runs serving more than 663 students of
another race or ethnic background, the Texas Education Agency
shall immediately investigdte and determine whetger the heavily
minority routes or runs may be re-routed, terminated or
combined with routes or runs which serve non-minority students
50 as to desegregate these routes or runs. In no event
shall thls paragraph be construed as requiring any fixed
percentage of students of a minority group on a particular
route or run.

(4) If the Texas Education Agency finds that a county
or local district i1s operating its transportation system in
violation of this Order, it shall notify the appropriate
officials of the local district. If the offending district
refuses to alter its bus routes pr runs so as to avoid
segregation in instances where the Texas Education Agency
has determined that such alterations are necessary, or if such
a district persists in operating bus routes or runs which
adversely affect the desegregation of its schools, classes,
or extra-curricular activities, the Texas Education Agency shall
refuse to approve the entire route structure of the district,
and shall, thereby, terminate and refuse to grant or continue
paying state transportation funds to the offending district
until it shall have altered all routes or runs operated in
violatipn of this Order, so as to eliminate all vestiges of
discrimination based on race, color, or national origin. In
addition, the Texas Educatlion Agency shall notify the district
that its accreditation status 1s in danger. This notice shall
remain in effect for 10 days, at which time, if the offending

district has failed to correct its violations, the Agency shall
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suspend the district's TEA accreditation.

D. Extra-Curricular Activities

(1) Defendants shall not permit, make arrangement for,
acquiesce in or give support of any kind to activities run in
connection with the elementary and secondary educational program
operated by the state or any of its county and local educational
agencles which, whether by intent, inaction, or inadvertence,
results in segregation or other discrimination against students
on the ground of race, color, or national origin. These
extra-curricular activities include, but are not limited to,
student government organizations, athletic teams for inter-
scholastic competition, clubs, hobby groups, student newspaper
staffs, annual staffs, band, band majJorettes and cheerleaders.

(2) The Texas Education Agency shall instruct the
members of its accreditation review teams in conjunction with
its Title IV staff, to examine the extra-curricular activities
of each district which they review. All violations of this
Order which-are discovered by such investligations shall be
reported to the Commissioner of Education. If the Texas
Education Agency receives complaints from any source that'a
school district is operating and supporting extra-curricular
activities in violatlon of thls Order, immedlate investigation
shall be made of such complaint.

(3) If the Commissioner finds that a district is
operating and supporting extra-curricular activities in
violation of this Order, he shall notify the county or local
school district through the Preslident of its Board of Trustees
and through the Superintendent (%f the district has such an
official), that the district is operating in violation of Title
VI of the Civil Rights Act sf 1964 and the Fourteenth Amendment.
-<zrn the district that its accreditation

At the same time, he shall

is in danger. This warninz shall remain in effect for 10 days,



125

at which time, if the district has failed to correct the
violations, the Texas Education Agency shall suspend the
district's TEA accreditation.

(Hi In addition to the suspension of the accreditation
of districts operating discriminatory extra-curricular
activities, the State of Texas and the Texas Education Agency
shall reduce the percentage of state funds granted to the
district under the Minimum Foundation Program for: salaries
and operating expenses by ten percent. Should the district
persist in operating its extra-curricular activities "in a manner
which results in segregation or discriminatory treatment of
students on account of race, color, or national origin, the
State .of Texas and the Texas Education Agency shall reduce the
percentage of state funds as described above by an additional
ten_percent. for each semester or term that the violations
continue.

(5) Defendants are required to consider that a suspension
or reduction of programs and activities to avoid operating them
on a desegregated basis continues a violation of Title VI
and the Fourteenth Amendment.

(6) Any school district aggrieved by the proposed
reduction or the reduction of Minimum Foundation Program Funds,
or the proposed suspension or the suspension of accreéitation
shall have the right to petition the United States District Court
for the Eastern District of Texas, in which thils sult 1s pending,
for such relief as sald Court may deem proper.

E. PFaculty and Stafr

(1) Defendants shall not permit, make arrangement for,
acquiesce in or give support of any kind to the hiring, assigning,
promoting, paying, demoting, reassigning or dismissinz, or
treatment of factulty and staff members who work directly with

children in a discriminatory manner on account of race, color
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or national origin. Defendants shall be responsible for the
application and enforcement thnroughout the State of the
provisions of the Order of the Court in this case dated April
19, 1971, referrad to in Section B(7) herein, and specifically,
the portlions of that Order relating to the treatment of faculty
and staff.

(2) In carrying out its affirmative duties under
Title'VI and the Fourteenth Amendment in this area, the Texas
Education Agenéy shall require each county or loc;i educatlonal
agency desiring to receive state funds under thé}Minimum
Foundation Program to include with its preliminary application
for such funds a 1list of objective, non-racial and non-
ethnic criteria by which the county or local district will
measure its faculty and staff for assignment, promotion,
demotlon, reassignment or dismissal and by which 1t will
Judge prospective employees for faculty and staff positions.

(3) The Texas Education Agency shall require the
members of its accreditatlon review teams, in conjunctlon with
the members of its staff designated to work in collaboration
with the United States Office of Education to provide
technlcal assistance to desegregating school districts pursuant
to Title IV of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (hereinafter
referred to as "Title IV staff” or "Title IV personnel®),
to examine the faculty and staff hiring and assigning practices
of the districts which they visit for accreditation purposes,
and to examine the records relating to hiring, assigning,
promoting, paying, demoting, reassigning or dismissing of
faculty and staff who work directly with children for a
period including the three years prilor to the complete
eliminat}on of the district's dual school structure. The
review teams and state Title IV personnel shall also examine

faculty assignments within each school district under review
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to determline whether the perc;ntage of minority teachers in

each school is substantially the same as the percentage of
minority teachers in the school district as a whole, as rex
quired under Part II, Section A of the Order of this Court dated
April 19, 1971, and referred to in Sections B(7) and E(1)
herein. Any evidence of discriminatory practices coficerning
faculty and staff shall be reported to the Commissioner of
Education.

(8) After such further investigation as deemed
necessary by the Comnissioner, he shall notify the district
through the President of Its Board of Trustees and its
Superintendent (if the district has such an official), of any
acts and practices with regard to faculty and staff which
violate the areas described in Part II, Section A, of the
Order of this -‘Court, dated April 19, 1971, referred to in
Section B(7), E(1) and E(3) herein. At the same tlme, he
shall warn the district that its accreditation is in danger.
This warning shall remain in effect for 15 days, at which time,
if the offendling district fails to corrects its violatlons
wilth regard to faculty and staff who work directly with children,
the Texas Education Agency shall suspend the district's TEA
accreditation.

(5) Ingaddition to the suspenslion of accreditatlon,
the State of Texas and the Texas Educatlon Agency shall
refuse to approve the district's application for state funds
under the Minimum Foundation Program for salaries, and shall, ‘
thereby, terminate and refuse to grant or continue paying ]
such funds to the district.

(6) .Any school district aggrieved by the proposed
termination or the terminatilon of Minimum Foundation ¥Funds or
the proposed suspenslon or the suspenslion of accreditation shall
have the right to petition the United States District Court for

the Eastern District of Texas, in which thils suit 1s pending, for such

rellef as sald Court may deem proper.
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(7) This Order shall not be construed to have any effect
upon the state er federal remedles available to any individual
members of Faculty or Staff for discriminatory actlon by a
school district in assignment, demotion, dismissal; re-
assignment, payment or other employment conditions.

F. Student Assignment

(1) Defendants shall not permit, make arrangement for,
acqulesce in or gilve support of any kind to the assignment
of students to schools, individual classrooms or activitiles
on the basls of race, color or national origin, except where
required to comply with constitutlonal standards.

(2) Defendants, having ldentified pursuant to this
Court's Order of November 24, 1970, school districts whose
enrollment of minorlty race children is greater than 66% and
whose total student population is fewer than 250 students,
shall show cause by August 15, 1971, why each such school
district should not be annexed to or consolldated with one
or more indePendent school districts of over 150 students,

‘or one or more common school districts of over 400 students,
so as to eliminate its existence as a raclally or ethnlcally
separate educational unit.

(3) Defendants shall review each year all school
districts 1n the state 1n which there exists schools enrolling
more than 66% minority group students, as reported in
accordance with Part II (E)(6) of the Court's order in this
case dated November 24, 1970, and shall make findings as to
whether or not the student assignment plans of these districts
have resulted in compliance with federal constitutional
standards. On October 1, 1971, and on the same date each

subsequent year until further order of thls Court, defendants
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shall file a ‘report with the Court indicating (1) the school
distriets reviewed and the particular findings concerning
the assignment and transfer of students within each such
district; (2) what steps each district is taking to ;liminate
their racially and ethnically identifiable schools and what
recommendations defendants have proposed in this regard; and
(3) what speeial cultural end educational activities these
districts have instituted to compensate for the lnherently
unegual educational opportunities provided to students in these
raclally or ethnically identifiable schools. Coples of this
report shall be served upon the Civil Rights Divislon of the
United States Department of Justice and the Office for Civil
Rights of the United States Department of Health, Education
and Welfare. A copy of this report shall also be retalned
in the Offices of the Texas Education Agency in such & manner
that it will be readily and convenlently avallable for public
inspection during normal business hours.

(4) If a school district which 1s reviewed pursuant
to paragraph F(3) is the subjJect of a school desegregation suit
or a court-approved plan of desegregation, a copy of the report’
required by paragraph F(3) shall be submitted to the
District Court having Jurisdiction of such sult or plan.

G. Curriculum and Compensatoryv Educatilon

(l)h Defendants shall insure that school districts
are providing equal education opportunities In all schools.’
The Texas Education Agency, through its consulting facllities
and personnel, shall asslist school distriets in achleving
a comprehensive balance curriculum on all school campuses,

and, where necessary, in providling for students to transfer
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to different schools in the district on a part-time basis to
avall themselves of subjects not offered in their assigned
school. Full time transfers may be allowed only where they
do not adversely affect desegregation as further desg¢ribed
in Section A herein.

(2). The Texas Education Agency shall institute a study
of the educatlonal needs of minority children in order to
insure ecual educational opportunities of all students. The
Texas Education Agency shall request the assistance of the
United States 0fZice of Education and any other educational
experts whom they choose to consult in making this study.

By not later than August 15, 1971, a report on this study
shall be filled by the Texas Education Agency wi%h the Court
including:

(a) Recommendations of specific curricular
offerings and programs which will insure equal educational
opportunities for all students regardless of race, color or
national origin. These curricular offerings and programs shall
include specific educational programs designed to compensate
minori%y group children for unequal educational opportunities
resulting from:past or present racial and ethnic isolation,
as well as programs and currlculum designed to meet the special
educational needs of students whose primary language 1s other
than English;

{b) :: Explanation of presently existing progranms
funded by the State of Texas or by the Federal Government
which are avallable to local districts to meet these specilal

educatlional needs andé how such programs might be applied to

these educational needs;
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(c) Explanation of specific standards by which the
defendants will determine when a local district, which has
raclally or ethnically isolated schools or which has
students whose primary language 1s other than English, shall
be required by the defendants to participate in the special
compensatory educational programs available; and

(d) Explanation of procedures for applying these
standards to local districts including appropriate sanctions
to be employed by the defendants should a district refuse to
participate 1n specilal compensatory educational programs where
it has been instructed to do so pursuant to application of the
standards developed under subsection (c¢) above.

(e) Coples of this report shall be served as
described in Section F above, and a copy shall also be
retairied i1n the Offices of the Texas Education Agency as

described therein.

-H. Complaints and Grievances

The defendants shall send to all county and local
educational agencles an information bulletin designed to notify
faculty, staff and patrons of local school districts of the
avallability of complaint and grievance procedures and to inform
them of how to utillize these procedures. Defendants shall
further require that every county and local educational agency
shall place this billetin on public display in such a way as
to assure its avallability at all times during school hours.

A copy of thils bulletln shall be filed with the Court on or
before August 15, 1971, with a copy to the plaintiff.
I. Notiﬁication

The defendants, in all cases where notification 1s
given to a school district of imminent loss of accreditation
or state funds because of its fallure to meet the requlrements

of" Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Fourteenth
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Amendment, shall, at the same time, nofify the plaintiff. 1In
the event that it becomes necessary to guspend the district’s
accreditation or to reduce or remove state funds the defendants
shall also notify the plaintiff.
J. Jurisdiction

(1) This Court retalns jurisdiction of this matter for
all purposes, and especlally for the purpose of entering any
and all further orders which may become necessary to enforce or
modify: this decree.

(2) Nothing herein shall be deemed to affect the
Jurisdiction of any other district court with respect to any
presently pending or future school desegregation suilt.

SIGNED and ENTERED this[j’i{ day of July, 1971.

.
UNITED STATEYS DI 1§LCT JUDGE
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Texas Education Agency 201 Enst Eloventh Stroet
Austin, Texas
o STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION 78701

o STATE COMMISSIONER OF EDUCATION
o STATE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

August 17, 1971

TO: The County or District Superintendent Addressed

SUBJECT: Modified Court Order, Civil Action 5281, United States District
Court, Eastern District of Texas, Tyler Division

We desire to remind you of two very important sections of the Order:
B. Changes in School District Boundaries, and E (2) Faculty and Staff

Section B., Changes in School District Boundaries, requires the board of trus-
tees of any school district desiring to annex or consolidate with a nearby
district, in whole or in part, or desiring to change its boundaries in any
other manner to report said intention to the State Commissioner of Education
at least fifteen (15) days prior to the effective date of such action.

We, therefore, request that any school district superintendent who becomes
aware of any proposed consolidation, annexation or detachment of territory
which will involve his district to notify us immediately and, in no instance,
later than fifteen (15) days prior to the time such action is to become effec-
tive. 1In a like manner, we request all county superintendents to notify us

at least fifteen (15) days prior to the time their county boards propose to
consider the annexation of any school district to another school district or
the detachment of territory from a school district and its subsequent annex-
ation to a second school district.

Section E (2),Faculty and Staff, requires each school district to submit with
its preliminary application for Foundation Program funds a list of objective,
non~racial and non-ethnic criteria by which the district will measure its
faculty and staff for assignment, promotion, demotion, reassignment or dis-
missal, and by which it will judge prospective employees for faculty and
staff positions.

This same requirement is applicable to county boards that operate cooperative
special service, counselor or supervisor programs under the Foundation Program
Statutes since the law requires personnel filling such positions be recommended
by the county superintendent and employed by the county board.
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While we would be pleased to receive a list of the objective, non~racial and
non-ethnic criteria from all school districts, our interpretation of the
Modified Court Order is that it is not mandatory for school districts under
the jurisdiction of Texas Federal District Courts other than the Eastern
District of Texas, Tyler Division, to furnish this Agency such criteria with
their preliminary applications for Foundation Program funds.

Very.cordially yours,

SR

Assistant Commissioner
for Administration
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Texas Education Agency 201 East Elevanth Stroat
() Austin, Texas
P o STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION 78701

@ STATE COMMISSIONER OF EDUCATION
¢ STATE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

August 20, 1971

TO: The County or District Superintendent Addressed

SUBJECT: Correction to Our Letter of August 17, 1971 Entjt !«
"Modified Court Order, Civil Action 5281, United :i1.tes
District Court, Eastern District of Texas, Tyler Division®

The last paragraph of this communication, as found on the back of the
page, should read as follows:

While we would be pleased to receive a list of the vbjective
non-racial and non-ethnic criteria from all school districts,
our interpretation of the Modified Court Order is that it is
not mandatory for school districts under court ordcrs for
desegregation in Federal District Courts other tha: the
Eastern District of Texas, Tyler Division, to fur
Agency such criteria with their preliminary applications
for Foundation Program funds.

We sincerely regret the error in our original letter.
Very gcordially yours,

oY Gkt

Leon R. Graham
Assistant Commissioner
for Administration
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Texas Education Agency 201 Zast Eleventh Strost

Austin, Texas
o STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION 78701
» STATE COMMISSIDNER OF EDUCATION
@ STATE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

August 23, 1971

TO: THE COUNTY OR DISTRICT SUPERINTENDENT ADDRESSED

SUBJECT: Implementation of Court Order, Civil Action 5281, United States
District Court, Eastern District of Texas, Tyler Division

You have previously received a copy of the Court Order in Civil Action 5281,
United States Disttrict Court, Eastern District of Texas, Tyler Division. The
Order, among other requirements, directed the Texas Education Agency to (1) ini~
tiate specific activities to ensure equal educational opportunity for all minor-
ity children, and (2) develop a bulletin on complaint and grievance procedures.

Enclosed are copies of three documents that have been prepared and filed with
the Court, Department of Justice and the Department of Health, Education and
Welfare as required by the Order.

The first document entitled “Texas Education Agency Plan for Meeting Requirements
of Section G, Curriculum and Compensatory Education of the Court Order, Civil
Action 5281, United States District Court, Eastern District of Texas, Tyler
Division, delineates the Agency plan for implementing the Court Order relative

to Section G, Curriculum and Compensatory Education. One copy of this plan is
enclosed for review by you, the board of school trustees and the administrative
staff,

The second document entitled "Alternative Programs to Improve Curriculum for
Minority Students® provides direction for school districts to begin the imple-
mentation of applicable curriculum modification measures in the 1971-72 school
year, Sufficient copies are enclosed to supply one to each school campus in
your district.

The third document is a brochure, "Procedures for Filing a Complaint Arising
from Ethnic Discrimination.”™ The brochure describes both formal and informal
complaint and grievance procedures. Sufficient copies are enclosed so that one
can be displayed in a prominent location on each school campus. Please note
that copies of the brochure printed in Spanish are available upon request.
Requests for the Spanish version should be addressed to I. R. Huchingson, Direc-
tor, Division of -Administrative Services, Texas Education Agency.

The Agency staff is prepared, to the extent possible, to assist school dis-
tricts in complying with the Court Order.

Very truly yours,

. W. Edgar

Commissioner of Education
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Texas Education Agency 201 East Eleventh Street
Austin, Texas
o STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION 78701
@ STATE COMMISSIONER OF EDUCATION
o STATE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
3%
MEMORANDUM v
4062
o5 ) 57
TO: Richard Benmnett SEGQEGA
T/olY
FROM: Alton O. Bowen
DATE: May 6, 1975

SUBJECT: Implementation of Modified Order, Civil Action 5281

Attached is a copy of my letter to all school superintendents
notifying them that we are required to secure from them annually
a list of the non-racial, non-ethnic, etc. criteria they use in
measuring their faculty and staff for assignment, promotion, etc.

Would you please take the necessary steps to make sure that each
preliminary application for foundation school funds for fall, 1975,
and each year thereafter includes the required list of criteria
before funds are released to the district. Instructions accom-
panying FIN-060 may need to be revised to accommodate this actionm.
In addition, you should initiate a request in August of each year
for the establishment of a task force to review all lists of
criteria against the requirements of section E(2) of Modified
Order Civil Actiom 5281. No funds should be released until a
district's list has been approved by the task force. You are
responsible for negotiations with any district which doesn't

file a list or which files a list that is not approved by the

task force.. The Division of Technical Assistance will furnish

you with technical assistance at your request. Any impasse should
be referred to me for resolutiomn.

Although we must carry out this provision of the court order, we
should be of as much assistance to districts as possible and do
our best to maintain cordial relationships with them.

cc: M. L. Brockette
J. B. Morgan
Gilbert Conoley



Texas Education Agency 201 East Eleventh Strect

Austin, Texas

« STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION 78701

« STATE COMMISSIONER OF EDUCATION

o STATE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

September 14, 1973

T0: The Administrator Addressed

SUBJECT: Amendments to Court Order, Civil Action 5281, United
States District Court, Eastern District of Texas,
Tyler Division

Enclosed is a compilation prepared by the Attorney General's office
of the Modified Court Order, Civil Action 5281 entered July 13, 1971
and the amendments entered by the Court on August 9 and August 15,
1973.

We do urge that you and the board of school trustees study the Order
as amended most carefully with particular reference to Section A.
Student Transfers, Section F. Student Assignment and the completely
new Section J. Conveyances of Real Property by a School District.

Veryacordially yours,

Assistant Commissioner
for Administration
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Texas Education Agency 201 East Eleventh Street
Austin, Texas
@ STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION 78701

« STATE COMMISSIONER OF EDUCATION

o STATE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

TO: THE SCHOOL OFFICIAL ADDRESSED

You may recall from Section E(2) of the Modified Order, Civil Action 5281
sent to you by Leon Graham under date of September 14, 1973, that the
Texas Education Agency is ordered to require:

each county or local educational agency desiring

to receive state funds under the Minimum Foundation
Program to include with its preliminary application
for such funds a list of objective, non-racial and
non-ethnic criteria by which the county or local
district will measure its faculty and staff for
assigmment, promotion, demotion, reassigrment or
dismissal and by which it will judge prospective
efiployees for faculty and staff positions.

This order is interpreted to require that such criteria be filed annually.
Consequently, ‘to.ensure prompt processing of your preliminary application
for Foundation School funds (Form FIN-060) for the 1975-76 school year and
thereafter would you please attach the required list of criteria to the
application due Fall 1975 and each fall thereafter.

To assist "you in the development of a list of criteria designed to meet

the requirements of Section E(2), some typical objective criteria which
might be used by your district are listed below. Please note that the

use of objective criteria does not mean that the subjective judgment of

the superintendent and/or other administrators or board members as to

the effectiveness of an applicant or employee cannot be used. It merely
assures everyone concerned that part of rhe selection process will be
determined by non-sub jective means, and that in no case will racial or
ethnic criteria be used. The following list might serve as a model which
can be used to develop objective criteria to meet the needs of ypur district.

Teacher
Certification:

» Certification (hours above degree held should brirg additional
weight to each of the categories below)

« Certification (Master's degree; teaching in area of certification)
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School Official Addressed
Page 2

o Certification (Master's degree; not teaching in area of certification)

« Certification (Bachelor's degree; teaching in area of certification)

« Certification (Bachelor'’s degree; not teaching in area of certification)
« Certification (no degree)

« Temporary certification

« Non-certified (degree)

.‘Non-certified (no degree)

Experience:
« In grade, subject, or position applied for
« In the system

« In teaching profession, either in public or private schools

« In related profession

Number of hours of voluntary participation in inmservice training, work-
shops, etc.

Fluency in more than one language where language barrlers exist.
Administrators
Certification (same as for teachers)

Experiences:
« As an administrator (size of staff supervised, etc.)

o Level of experience (elementary, secondary)

z::.1s.In system

.= In any system

-As a teacher

E-'Experience in related field

Please feel free to use any portions of the above in compiling your district's
criteria for hiring, assigning, promoting, paying, demoting, reassigning or
dismissing faculty and staff members. If additional help is needed, feel free
Fp.contact the Office of Technical Assistance at (512) 475-5959.

incerely,

Alton O. Bowen
Deputy Commissioner
for Administrative Services

cc: M. L. Brockette
Je Ba- Morgan
Gilbert Conoley
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE ERSTERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS

TYLER DIVISION

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

V. CIVIL ACTION NO. 5281

PG I I e I

STATE OF TEXAS, ET AL.

MODIFIED ORDER
This Court's Order of April 20, 1971, in the above-entitled
and numbered civil action is hereby modified to comply and con~
form with the directions of the United States Court of Appeals
for the Fifth Circuit in its Opinion of July 9, 1971, in

Cause No. 71-1061, entitled United States of America, Plaintiff-

Appellee, versus State of Texas, Et Al., and Dr. J. W. Edgar,

commissioner of Education, Et Al., Defendants-Appellants,

F.2d (5 cir. 1971), and, as so modified, such Order

is re-issued, as follows:

on November 24, 1970, this Court entered an order in this
case then styled United States of America v. State of Texas,
et al., Civil Action No. 1424, Marshall Division, requiring inter
alia that the Texas Education Agency, the State Commissioner of
Education and their officers, agents, employees, successors re-
evaluate all of their activities and practices relating to the
desegregation of public elementary and secondary education within
the State of Texas; upon completion of this re-evaluation the
defendants were required to fife a plan stating specific actions
which they would take pursuant to their affirmative obligations
under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Fourteenth
Amendment to the Constitution. On January 15{ 1971, the defendants

filed their plan. Plaintiffs filed a response to this plan on
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February 1, 1971, incorporating both objections to defendants®
plan and recommendations for what the defendants were legally
required to accomplish by this plan. An evidentiary hearing was
held on February 1 and 2, 1971. A further hearing was held in
Tyler on April 12, 1971, the case then, and hereafter, being
styled Civil Action No. 5281, Tyler pivision.

The Court has carefully considered the submissions of the
respective parties and the evidence presented at the hearings,
in light of the defendants' affirmative duty to take “"whatever
steps might be necessary to . . . Zgliminat§7 racial discrimina-

tion root and branch." Green v. New Kent County, 391 U.S. 430,

437-38 (1968), Swann v. Charlotte-Mecklenburg Board of Education,

Nos. 281 and 349, U.s. ., (April 20, 1971). 1In this

regard the duty of the state appears to be two-fold: First, to

act at once to eliminate by positive means all vestiges of the dual
school structure throughout the state:; and second, to compensate
for the abiding scars of past discrimination.

Accordingly, it is hereby ORDERED that the State of Texas,
Dr. J. W. Edgar, Commissioner of Education of the State of Texas,
the Texas Education Agency, their officers, agents, employees,
successors and all other persons in active concert or participa-
tion with them (hereinafter referred to as defendants) shall
fulfill those duties as follows:

A. Student Transfers

(The Modified Order of July 13, 1971, has been amended

by the Court by Order dated August 9, 1973, and Section A

now has the following language:)

(1) Defendants shall not permit, make arrangement for or
give support of any kind to student transfers, between school
districts, when the cumulative effect, in either the sending or

receiving school or schoel district, will be to reduce or

impede desegregation, or to reinforce, renew, or encourage the
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‘continuation of acts and practices resulting in discriminatory
treatment of students on the ground of race, color, or national
origin.

(2) In applying the above section to student transfers
between school districts, the defendants may grant the following
classes of exceptions regardless of the race; color, or national
origin of students.

(a) Class One: All transfers of students to

county or multi-county day schools for the deaf.

(b) Class Two: Special education students from
districts where the special education class for which

the students are qualified is unavailable and such class

is available in the receiving district, provided such

students have been properly screened according to

Texas Education Agency guidelines by the receiving

districts.

(c) Class Three: The Commissioner of Education

may grant additional transfers in hardship situations.

Before ‘such transfers are granted by the Commissioner,

the parties will be notified at least 30 days in advance

of the intent to grant such transfers and the reasons

therefor. The parties may object to such transfers to
the court, and the court may approve or disapprove such
transfers with or without a hearing.

(3) In addition to the above exceptions, defendants shall
use the following guidelines to determine the cumulative effect
of student transfers in the various school districts of Texas.

(2) Where student transfers between school

districts involve ethnic consideration concerning race,

color or national origin of students, only hardship

situations shall be considered, and such transfers shall
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be governed by the procedure in Paragraph A (a) (c),

above.

(b) In such situations, the defendants shall not
approve transfers where the effect of such transfers
will change the majority or minority percentage of the
school population, based on average daily attendance in
such districts by more than one per cent (1%), in either
the home or the receiving district or the home or the
receiving school.

(4) Defendants may use the following additional guidelines
in approving or disapproving student transfers between the various
school districts in Texas:

(a) The Agency will review and apply this Section
to all in-grade transfers between school districts in
Texas.

(b) The Agency will investigate all complaints
of violations of its decisions made pursuant to
Section A of the Court Order.

(c) The Agency will from time to time solicit
the assistance of other agencies, both State and
Federal, in arriving at a decision under Section A
of this Court Order, but the Agency shall not be bound
by such recommendations.

(d) The Agency will consider as factors relevant
to its decision in approving or disapproving student
transfers under this Section: (1) whether the receiving
district or the home district is composed solely of
students of one race or ethnic origin, (2) whether all
the students seeking transfers are of one race or ethnic
origin, and (3) whether the sending or receiving school

district is operating under the provisions of an order
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issued by another District Judge requiring said school

district to eliminate segregation on the ground of race,

color, or national origin.
{e) The Agency will use such additional guide-

lines as may be ordered by the court. The Agency may

also use such guidelines as adopted by the Agency and

submitted to the court and to all other parties, in

writing, provided no objection is filed by the parties

to said agency-adopted guidelines within twenty-one

(21) days of the filing of said guidelines with the

court or their receipt by certified mail, return

receipt requested, by the parties. In the event of

objection by the parties or the court within such

period, the Agency may request a hearing for approval

of said guidelines by the court.

{5) The Texas Education Agency shall review all student
transfers and shall notify the sending and receiving districts
promptly of all transfers which do not appear to comply with the
terms of this order.

(6) If, after receiving notice of the Texas Education Agency's
refusal to approve transfer, the receiving district shall continue
to accept the transfer of students, or if the sending district
shall refuse to provide suitable educational opportunities for
these students, defendants, after 15 days notice to the President
of the Board of Trustees and the Superintendent {if the district
has such an official), shall refuse to transfer the funds, based
on the average daily attendance of the transfer students involved
to the account of the receiving district, and shall, thereby,
terminate and refuse to grant or continue paying to the offending
district a percentage of state funds equivalent to the district's

entitlement based on the average daily attendance of the students
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transferring in violation of this order.

(7) Defendants shall also refuse to distribute to the
offending district any transportation funds which might accrue
on account of transfer students accepted in violation of this
order. If the offending district continues to refuse to deny
transfers which adversely affect desegregation, the Texas Educa-
tion Agency shall warn the district that its accreditation status
is in danger. This warning shall remain in effect for ten days,
at which time, if the offending district has failed to correct
its violations, the Texas Education Agency shall suspend the
district's TEA accreditation.

(8) The State Board of Eduction shall entertain no appeal
from any decision of the Agency which applies sanctions against
a school district in compliance with this or any preceding order
of this court. However, any school district aggrieved by the
proposed reduction or the reduction of funds, or the proposed
suspension or the suspension of accreditation, shall have the
right to petition the United States Court for the Eastern
District of Texas, in which this suit is pending, for such

crelief as said court may deem proper.

B. Changes in School District Boundaries

(1) Defendants shall not permit, make arrangements for,
approve, acquiesce in, or give support of any kind to changes
in school district boundary lines - whether by detachment, annexa-
tion, or consolidation of districts in whole or in part - which
are designed to, or do in fact, create, maintain, reinforce, renew,
or encourage a dual school system based on race, color, or national
origin.

(2) pDefendants shall require the board of trustees of any

school district desiring to annex or consolidate with a nearby
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district, in whole or in part, or desiring to change its boundaries
in any other manner such as is described, for example, in Part
IT-A(2) of the Court's Order of November 24, 1970, to report

said intention to the Commissioner of Education for the State of
Texas at least 15 days prior to the effective date of such action,
and shall take appropriate measures to insure compliance with this
requirement.

{3) Whenever the Commissioner shall receive notice that a
district or a portion of a district is to be detached from,
annexed to, or consolidated with another district, he shall
institute an immediate investigation as to the effects of such
projected change of boundaries on the desegregation status of all
of the school districts concerned. He shall promptly notify the
appropriate county and local officials of his findings, and
indicate whether or not the transfer of territory is in violation
of the law.

(4} If county and local officials proceed to consummate the
transfer of territory after being notified that they are in
violation of the law, defendants, after 15 days notice to the
President of the Board of Trustees and the Superintendent of the
district (if the district has such an official), shall refuse to
transfer funds, based on the average daily attendance of the
students in the territory detached, annexed or consolidated, to
the account of the new district, and shall, thereby, terminate
and refuse to grant or continue paying to the offending district
a percentage of state funds equivalent to the district's entitle-
ment based on the average daily attendance of the students detached,
annexed or consolidated in violation of this Order. These funds
shall be distributed to the remainder of the original district,
in cases of illegal detachments, but shall not be used by that

district to support the education of children living in the
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detached area. 1In cases involving the consolidation of whole
districts, the Texas Education Agency shall hold the funds
derived from the average daily attendance of the students
illegally annexed to or consolidated with the new district in
escrow pending dissolution of the illegal transfer of territory
and the return of students to their original districts.

(5) Defendants are enjoined from granting "incentive aid"
payments pursuant to Texas law (Art. 2815-4, Vernon's Texas
Revised Civil Statutes as amended), to districts which are
enlarged by annexations or consolidation actions in violation of
this Order.

(6) Should a county board of education or a school district,
having received notice from the Commissioner that a territorial
alteration has been disapproved, fail to disavow the action and
to declare its effects null and void, the Texas Education Agency
shall notify the district that its accreditation status is in
danger. This notice shall remain in effect for 10 days, at the
end of which time, if the offending district has failed to correct
its violations, the Agency shall suspend the district's TEA
accreditation.

(7) In all cases involving annexation or consolidation of
school districts, the Texas Education Agency shall apply the
portions of the Order of the Court in this case dated April 19,
1971, concerning the annexation of nine all-black school districts
to nearby bi-racial districts, and specifically, the portions
of that Order relating to faculty and staff and to bi-racial
committees, to the newly enlarged districts and shall require
the said district to submit to the Texas Education Agency such
reports as may be necessary to enable that Agency to determine
whether the newly enlarged district is operating and will continue

to operate in compliance with Title VI and the Fourteenth Amendment.
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C. School Transportation

(1) Defendants shall not permit, make arrangement for,
acguiesce in, or give support of any kind to bus routes or runs
which are designed to, or do in fact, create, maintain, reinforce,
renew, or encourage a dual school system based on race, color,
or national origin.

(2) The transportation system in those county units and
school districts having transportation systems shall be completely
re-examined each ye=ar by the Taxas Education ERgeacy. Bus routes
and runs as well as the assignmeant 5f students to buses will be
designed to insure the transportation of all eligibie pupils on
a aoi-sageagated and otherwise non-discrimiunatory basis. Bus
routes and rans shall be constituted %o provide that each bus
oparated by a Aisicict picks up every pupil along the route or
run who is assigned to the school or schools and grade levels
served by that bus. Where two or more equally efficient and
economical routes or runs are available in a given area of the
school district, the route or run which would promote or facili-
tate desegregation of buses shall be adopted by the district and
approved by the Texas Education Agency rather than a route or run
which, whether by intent, inaction, or inadvertence, would
maintain or encourage segregation.

(3) Accordingly, if upon examination of transportation systems,
the Texas Education Agency shall find that a district is ogerating
one or more bus routes or runs which serve 66% or more students
of a minority group, which are duplicated by one or more routes
or runs serving more than %6% students of another race or ethnic
background, the Texas Education Agency shall immediately investi-
gate and determine whether the heavily minority routes or runs may
be re-routed, terminatcd or combined with routes or runs which

serve non-minority students so as to desegregate these routes
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or runs. In no event shall cais paragraph be construed as re-
quiring any fixed percentage of students of a minority group on
a particular route or run.

(4) 1If the Texas Education Agency finds that a county or
local district is operating its transportation system in violation
of this Order, it shall notify the appropriate officials of the
local district. If the offending district refuses to alter its
bus routes or runs so as to avoid segregation in instances where
the Texas Education Agency has determined that such alterations
are necessary, or if such a district persists in operating bus
routes or runs which adversely affect the desegregation of its
schools, classes, or extra-curricular activities, the Texas
Education Agency shall refuse to approve the entire route structure
of the district and shall, thereby, terminate and refuse to grant
or continue paying state transportation funds to the offending
district until it shall have altered all routes or runs operated
in violation of this Order, so as to eliminate all vestiges of
discrimination based on race, color, or national origin. 1In
addition, the Texas Education Agency shall notify the district
that its accreditation status is in danger. This notice shall
remain in effect for 10 days, at which time, if the offending
district has failed to correct its violations, the Agency shall
suspend the district's TEA accreditation.

D. Extra-Curricular Activites

(1) Defendants shall not permit, make arrangement for,
acquiesce in or give support of any kind to activities run in
connection with the elementary and secondary educational program
operated by the state or any of its county and local educational
agencies which, whether by intent, inaction, or inadvertence,
results in segregation or other discrimination against students

on the ground of race, color, or national origin. These extra-
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curricular activities include, but are not limited to, student
government organizations, athletic teams for interscholastic
competition, clubs, hobby groups, student newspaper staffs, annual
staffs, band, band majorettes and cheerleaders.
(2) The Texas Education Agency shall instruct the members
of its accreditation review teams in conjunction with its
Title IV staff, to examine the extra-curricular activities of each
district which they review. All violations of this Order which
are discovered by such investigations shall be reported to the
Commissioner of Education. If the Texas Education Agency receives
complaints from any source that a school district is operating
and supporting extra-curricular activities in violation of this
Order, immediate investigation shall be made of such complaint.
(3) If the Commissioner finds that a district is operating and
supporting extra-curricular activities in violation of this
Order,he shall notify the county or local school district through
the President of its Board of Trustees and through the Superin-
tendent (@#f the district has such an official), that the district
is operating in violation-of Title VI of the Civil ﬁights Act
of 1964 and the Fourteenth Amendment. At the same time, he
shall warn the district that its accreditation is in danger.
This warning shall remain in effect for 10 days, at which time,
if the district has failed to correct the violations, the Texas
Education Agency shall suspend the district's TEA accreditation.
(4) In addition to the suspension of the accreditation
of districts operating discriminatory extra-curricular activities,
the State of Texas and the Texas Education Agency shall reduce the
percentage of state funds granted to the district under the
Minimum Foundation Program for salaries and operating expenses
by ten percent. Should the district persist in operating its

extra-curricular activities in a manner which results in
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segregation or discriminatory treatment of students on account

of race, color, or national origin, the State of Texas and the
Texas Education Agency shall reduce the percentage of state funds
as described above by an additional ten percent for cach semester
or term that the violations continue.

(5) Defendants are required to consider that a suspension
or reduction of programs and activities to avoid operating them
.on a desegregated basis continues a violation of Title VI and
the Fourteenth Amendment.

(6) Any school district aggrieved by the proposed reduction
or the reduction of Minimum Foundation Program Funds or the
proposed suspension or the suspension of accreditation shall have
the right to petition the United States District Court for the
Eastern District of Texas, in which this suit is pending, for
such relief as said Court may deem proper.

E. Faculty and Staff

(1) Defendants shall not permit, make. arrangement for,
acquiesce in or give support of any kind to the hiring, assigning,
promoting, paying, demoting, reassigning or dismissing, or
treatment of faculty and staff members who work directly with
children in a discriminatory manner on account of race, color
or national origin. Defendants shall be responsible for the
application and enforcement throughout the State of the provisions
of the Order of the Court in this case dated April 19, 1971,
referred to in Section B(7) herein, and specifically, the portions
of that Order relating to the treatment of faculty and staff.

(2) In carrying out its affirmative duties under Title VI
and the Fourteenth Amendment in this area, the Texas Education
Agency shall require each county or local educational agency
desiring to receive state funds under the Minimum Foundation

Program to include with its preliminary application for such
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funds a list of objective, non-racial and non-ethnic criteria
by which the county or local district will measure its faculty
and staff for assignment, promotion, demotion, reassignment or
dismissal and by which it will judge prospective employees for
faculty and staff positions. .
(3) The Texas Education Agency shall require the members
of itsvaccreditation review teams, in .conjunction with the
members of its staff designated to work in collaboration with the
United States Office of Education to provide technical assistance
to desegregating school districts pursuant to Title IV of the
Civil Rights Act of 1964 (hereinafter referred to as "Title IV
staff" or "Title IV personnel"), to examine the faculty and staff
hiring and assigning practices of the districts which they visit
for accreditation purposes, and to examine the records relating
to hiring, assigning, promoting, paying, demoting, reassigning
or dismissing of faculty and staff who work directly with
children for a period including the three years prior to the
complete elimination of the district's dual school structure.
The review teams and state Title IV personnel shall also examine
faculty assignments within each school district under review
to determine whether the percentage of minority teachers in
each school is substantially the same as the percentage of
minority teachers in the school district as a whole, as required
under Part II, Section A of the Order of this Court dated
April 19, 1971, and referred to in Sections B(7) and E(1)
herein. Any evidence of discriminatory practices concerning
faculty and staff shall be reported to the Commissioner of
Education.
(4) After such further investigation as deemed necessary

by the Commissioner, he shall notify the district through the
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President of its Board of Trustees and its Superintendent (if

the district has such an official), of any acts and practices
with regard to faculty and staff which violate the areas described
in Part II, Section A, of the Order of this Court, dated hpril 19,
1971, referred to in Section B(7), E(l) and E(3) herein. At

the same time, he shall warn the district that its accreditation
is in danger. This warning shall remain in effect for 15 days,
at which time, if the offending district fails to correct its
violations with regard to faculty and staff who work directly
with children, the Texas Education Agency shall suspend the
district's TEA accreditation.

(5) In addition to the suspension of accreditation, the
State of Texas and the Texas Education Agency shall refuse to
approve the district's application for state funds under the
Minimum Foundation Program for salaries, and shall, thereby,
terminate and refuse to grant or continue paying such funds to
the district.

(6) Any school district aggrieved by the proposed termina-
tion or the termination of Minimum Foundation Funds or the pro-
posed suspension or the suspension of accreditation shall
have the right to petition the United States District Court for
the Eastern District of Texas, in which this suit is pending,
for such relief as said Court may deem proper.

(7) This Order shall not be construed to have any effect
upon the state or federal remedies available to any individual
members of Faculty or Staff for discriminatory action by a
school district in assignment, demotion, dismissal, reassignment,

payment or other employment conditions.
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Student Assignment

(The Modified Order of July 13, 1971, has been

amended by the Court by Order dated August 9, 1973,

and Section F now has the following language:)

(1) Defendants are required to consider forthwith the
application of the procedures and provisions of this order to
any school district reviewed pursuant to Section F of this
court's Modified Order of July 13, 1971, where (a) such review
has been conducted at any time prior to the entry of this order,
(b) such district was found to be in violation of federal
constitutional standards, and (c) specific recommendations
designed to eliminate such violations were provided to the dis-
trict by the defendants but have not been implemented.

(2) Defendants shall not permit, make arrangement for,

acquiesce in or give support o any kind to the assignment of

|
\
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students to schools, individual classrooms or other school

activities on the basis of race, color, or national origin,

except where required to comply with constitutional standards.

(3) Defendants shall review each year all school districts

in the state in which there exists schools enrolling more than

66% minority group students, as reported in accordance with part

II(E) (6) of the Court's Order in this case dated November 24,

1970, and shall make findings as to whether or not the student

assignment plans of these districts have resulted in compliance

with the terms of this order. Priority shall be given to any

district about which the defendants receive specific complaints.

Any district found not to be in compliance shall be notified that

it is in violation, and, further, shall be provided in writing by

the defendants with a specific detailed plan designed to eliminate

all such violations of the terms of this order. Defendants shall

be required to take all measures necessary to insure that whenever

possible, the notice and plan provided for herein shall be received

by the district at least 45 days prior to the beginning of the
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next semester or term. As to any district reviewed at any Ltime
prior to the entry of this order, defendants shall scrve the
notice and plan provided for herein forthwith in order that the
sanctions provided hereafter in this order be made applicable to
the school semester or term starting on or about September 1,
1973.

(4) If, by the end of the first week of the semester or
term following receipt of the notice and plan provided for
in paragraph F(3), a district has failed to implement such plan,
or, has failed to adopt and implement an equally effective
alternate plan to eliminate all racially or ethnically identifiable
schools found to be in violation of constitutional standards as
provided by paragraph F(3), the defendants shall warn the
district through the President of its Board of Trustees and through
its Superintendent (if the district has such an official) that
its accreditation is in danger. This warning shall remain in
effect for ten days after which time, if the district has still
failed to achieve compliance, the Texas Education Agency shall
s uspend the district's TEA accreditation.

(5) In addition to suspension of accreditation and simul-
taneously therewith defendants shall suspend payment of all
state funds granted to the district under the Minimum Foundation
Program for salaries, operating expenses, transportation and all
other purposes.

(6) Defendants shall suspend immediately without further
notice the accreditation and the payment of all Minimum Founda-
tion Program funds of any district which changes or otherwise
modifies a plan adopted and implemented pursuant to paragraphs
F(3) and F(4) herein when .such changes or modifications are
designed to, or do in fact, recreate, renew, reimplement or

result in violation of federal constitutional standards.
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(7) On or before June 1 of each school year until further
orders of this court, defendants shall file a report with the
court indicating (a) the school districts reviewed and the
particular findings concerning the assignment and transfer of
students within each such district, (b) all recommendations made
and actions taken by the defendants and each such district to
eliminate racially or ethnically identifiable schools, (c) what
special cultural and educational activities these districts have
instituted to compensate for the inherently unequal educational
opportunities provided to students in these racially or ethnically
identifiable schools. Copies of this report shall be served
upon the Civil Rights Division of the United States Department of
Justice, the Office for Civil Rights of the United States De-
partment of Health, Education and Welfare and all parties to this
action. A copy of this report shall also be retained in the
offices of the Texas Education Agency in such a manner that it
will be readily and conveniently available for public inspection
during normal business hours.

(8) Any school district aggrieved by the proposed reduction
or the reduction of Minimum Foundation Program funds or the pro-
posed suspension of accreditation shall have the right to petition
the United States District Court for the Eastern District of
Texas, in which this suit is pending, for such relief as said
court may deem proper.

(9) If a school district which is reviewed pursuant to
paragraph F(3) is the subjec¢t of a school desegregation suit
or a court-approved plan of desegregation, a copy of the report
required by paragraph F(3) shall be submitted to the District

Court having jurisdiction of such suit or plan.
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G. Curriculum and Compensatory Education

(1) Defendants shall insure that school districts are
providing equal education opportunities in all schools. The
Texas Education Agency, through its consulting facilities and
personnel, shall assist school districts in achieving a compre-
hensive balance curriculum on all school campuses, and, where
necessary, in providing for students to transfer to different
schools in the district on a part~time basis to avail themselves
of subjects not offered in their assigned school. Full time
transfers may be allowed only where they do not adversely affect
desegregation as further described in Section A herein.

(2) The Texas Education Agency shall institute a study of
the educational needs of minority children in order to insure
equal educational opportunities of all students. The Texas
Education Agency shall request the assistance of the United
States office of Education and any other educational experts
whom they choose to consult in making this study. By not later
than August 15, 1971, a report on this study shall be filed by
the Texas Education Agency with the Court including:

(a) Recommendations of specific curricular offerings and
programs which will insure equal educational opportunities for all
students regardless of race, color or national origin. These
curricular offerings and programs shall include specific educational
programs designed to compensate minority group children for unequal
educational opportunities resulting from past or present racial
and ethnic isolation, as well as programs and curriculum designed
to meet the special educational needs of students whose primary
language is other than English;

(b) Explanation of presently existing programs funded by the
State of Texas or by the Federal Government which are available
to local districts to meet these special educational needs and

how such programs might be applied to these educational needs;
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(c) Explanation of specific standards by which the defendants
will determine when a local district, which has racially or cthnically
isolated schools or which has students whose primary language is
other than English, shall be required by the defendants to parti-
cipate in the special compensatory educational programs available;
and

(p) Explanation of procedures for applying these standards
to local districts including appropriate sanctions to be employed
by the defendants should a district refuse to participate in
special compensatory educational programs where it has been
instructed to do so pursuant to application of the standards
developed under subsection (c¢) above.

(e) Copies of this report shall be served as described in
Section F above, and a copy shall also be retained in the Offices
of the Texas Education Agency as described therein.

H. Complaints and Grievances

The defendants shall send to all county and local educational
agencies an information bulletin designed to notify faculty,
staff and patrons of local school districts of the availability
of complaint and grievance procedures and to inform them of how
to utilize these procedures. Defendants shall further require
that every county and local educatiocnal agency shall place this
bulletin on public display in such a way as to assure its
availability at all times during school hours. A copy of this
bulletin shall be filed with the Court on or before August 15,
1971, with a copy to the plaintiff.

I. Notification

The defendants, in all cases where notification is given

to a school district of imminent loss of accreditation or state

funds because of its failure to meet the requirements of
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Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Fourteenth Amendhnc: -

shall, at the same time, notify the plaintiff. 1In the event that it
becomes necessary Lo suspend the district's accreditation or to reduce
or remove state funds the defendants shall also notify the plaintiff.

J. Conveyances of Real Property by a School bYistrict
(The Court, by orders dated August 9, 1973, and Augqust 15,

1973, has ordered the following to be added to the Modified
Order of July 13, 1971:)

(1) Defendants shall not permit, make arrangement for, approve,
acquiesce in or give support of any kind to sales, leases or
other conveyances of real property by a school district where such
conveyances are designed to or do, in fact, create, maintain,
reinforce, or encourage a dual school system based on race, color
or national origin.

(2) Defendants shall require the board of trustees of any
school district desiring to sell, lease or otherwise convey any
interest in real property or buildings to report said intention to
the Commissioner of Education for the State of Texas at least 15 days
prior to the effective date of such conveyance and shall take all
appropriate measures to insure compliance with this requirement.

(3) Whenever the Commissioner shall receive notice that a
district intends to sell, lease or otherwise convey any interest
in real property, he shall promptly notify the appropriate local
school officials that the following language shall be incorporated
into the instrument of conveyance, sale or lease, and further,
that failure of the district to comply with this requirement will
result in the imposition of sanctions as set out in paragraph J(4):

"The further covenant, consideration and

condition is that the following restrictions shall

in all things be observed, followed and complied with:

*(a) The above-described realty, or any part
thereof, shall not be used in the operation of,

or in conjunction with, any school or other in-
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stitution of learning, study or instruction
which discriminates against any person because
of his race, color or national origin, regard-
less of whether such discrimination be effected
by design or otherwise.

(b) The above described realty, or any part
thereof, shall not be used in the operation of,
or in conjunction with, any school or other
institution of learning, study or instruction
which creates, maintains, rei nforces, renews, or
encourages, or which tends to create, maintain,
reinforce, renew or encourage, a dual school
system.

"These restrictions and conditions_shall be
binding upon /grantee, lessee, etc./, /name of
grantee, lessee, etc./, /his heirs, personal
representatives and assigns_or its successors and
assigns, as the case may be/, for a period of
fifty (50) years from the date hereof; and in
case of a violation of either or both of the
above restrictions, the estate herein granted
shall, without entry or suit, immediately revert
to and vest in the grantor herein and its
successors, this instrument shall be null and
void, and grantor and its successors shall be
entitled to immediate possession of such
premises and the improvements thereon; and no
act or omission upon the part of grantor herein
and its successors shall be a waiver of the
operation or enforcement of such condition.

"The restriction set out in (a) above shall
be construed to be for the benefit of any person
prejudiced by its violation. The restriction
specified in (b) above shall be construed to
be for the benefit of any public school district
or any person prejudiced by its violation."

(4) If a school district, after notice from the Commissioner,
proceeds to sell, lease or otherwise convey any interest in real
property but fails to comply with the requirements set forth in
paragraph J(3) herein, the defendants shall proceed to impose
sanctions in accordance with theé following:

(a) The Commissioner shall notify the proper official or
officials of the school district that the district is not in
compliance and that, unless the district initiates legal proceed-
ings in a court of competent jurisdiction, within thirty days from

date of the notice, to reacquire possession of the property, the

payment of all state funds to said district under the Minimum
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Foundation Program for salaries, operating expenses, transportatic:
and all other purposes shall be suspended. If the district
initiates legal proceedings as required but, in the judgment of
the Commissioner, the district fails to prosecute said proceed-
ings expeditiously and in good faith, the Commissioner at any

time thereafter may suspend the payment of all state funds to

the district. Any party to this action who has reason to believe
or to question that the Commissioner is not proceeding as required
herein may, upon proper motion, apply to this Court for whatever
relief is indicated, at law or at eguity.

(b) In the event that a school or other facility used in
conjunction with any institution of learning which would con-
stitute a breach of the condition set forth in paragraéh J(3) is
operated on the real property conveyed by the district, the
defendants shall suspend the payment of state funds under the
Minimum Foundation program for salaries, transportation and all
other purposes, operating expenses, and, simultaneously therewith,
defendants shall suspend the district's TEA accreditation. The
suspension of funds and of accreditation as provided in this sub-
paragraph shall continue until such times as the school or
other institution of learning which was the basis for these
sanctions has ceased operation or until such time as the district
in question has taken steps to exercise its rights of reversion
and has reacquired the property in question.

(5) Defendants are enjoined from granting TEA accreditation
to any school or other facility used in conjunction with any
institution of learning, study or instruction, the operation of
which would constitute a breach of the condition set forth in
paragraph J(3).

(6) Any school district aggrievéd by the proposed suspension

or the suspension of Minimum Foundation Funds, or the suspension
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of accreditation shall have the right to petition the United
States District Court for the Eastern District of Texas in
which this suit is pending, for such relief as said court may
deem proper.
K. Jurisdiction

(The Modified Order of July 13, 1971, was changed

by amendment by the Court by Order dated August 9,

1973, and Section J of such Modified Order now

appears as Section K.)

(1) This Court retains jurisdiction of this matter for
all purposes, and especially for the purpose of entering any
and all further orders which may become necessary to enforce or
modify this decree.

(2) Nothing herein shall be deemed to affect the juris-

diction of any other district court with respect to any

presently pending or future school desegregation suit.
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Ezhibit No. 5 (<,

‘{.‘-‘ te DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE
. REGIONAL OFFICE
1200 MAIN TOWER BUILDING
DALLAS, TEXAS 75202
OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS

August 4, 1976 ﬂ(/‘&*’ 22/'4”“

LEIV €D ﬂEcElll %
Aug AUg & Beckiin”
lp 195 1
973 1976 mcwdj

The Henorable M. L. Brockette Aps co e Oty
Commissioner of Education K skﬁ!f’fnf{ e {g-ui;'.‘m.
Texas Education Agency )
Austin, Texas 78711

Dear Dr. Brockette:

This is to acknowledge your letter of June 22, 1976 which responded to our
analysis of the position paper presented to this Office by the Texas Edu-
cation Agency February 20, 1976. Specifically, your letter was in further
response to our analysis of the Agency's position paper - a general dis-
cussion of beliefs and philosophy of TEA and a discussion of two (2) pro-
posals for the implementation of Bilingual Education Programs.

Inasmuch as there are only minimal differences between the Federal stance
and the philosophical position outlined in your letter on the roles of the
Federal and State Governments in education, I will not address that issue
here. In addition, I cannot address your second proposal, that the Office
of Education channel Title VII funds through the State Board of Education
because the Office for Civil Rights is not involved in funding decisions
of the Office of Education. Furthermore, it is my understanding that the
proposal you outline would require significant modifications of the Title
VII legislation.

Your first proposal, which was the focus of our initial meeting, appears to
be the major element of your letter. It is my understanding that the State
Board of Education is requesting the Department of Health, Education and
Welfare, the Office of Education, and the Office for Civil Rights to look
to the State Board of Education as the primary enforcement agency for the
implementation of the Lau decision and the Bilingual Education Act, (Texas
Education Code Sections 21.451 - 21.460). The enforcement process wou]d
include the State Board's implementation of school accreditation standards
as the primary enforcement measures to insure that all school districts
rectify language deficiencies as needed in order to open the instructional
program to all students.

During our meeting, we both agreed that a “"partnership” of some type could
prove mutually advantageous, not only in Lau implementation, but also in
other areas of our responsibilities. However, the nature of your proposal
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(to assume Title VI compliance responsibility) reaches beyond an agreement
that can be made with a Regional Office. The possible impact of such a
relationship extends to the policy making function of this Office, which is
retained by the Director.

Because of the unique nature of your request, I have suggested to Mr. Martin
Gerry, Director, Office for Civil Rights, that he review the proposal per-
sonally, and that he bring in other agency representatives he feels would be
affected by the proposal. Uhen that review is completed, I have recommended
to him, that he arrange a meeting with you to discuss this matter.

I regret my absence from the Regional Office has delayed this response. I
will keep you advised on future developments as soon as I have some word
from our headquarters Office.

Sincerely,

;;;’{ Dtk

Dorbthy D. Stuck
Director

0ffice for Civil Rights
Region VI

cc: Mr. Martin Gerry, Director
0ffice for Civil Rights
Washington, D. C.
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FExhibit No. 6
GUIDE FOR MONITORING VISIT

(BILINGUAL PROGRAMS)

Division of Bilingual Education
Texas Education Agercy
201 East 1llth St.
Austin, Texas 78701
(512) 475-3851

School District

Superintendent

Funding: 1. State Amount 3

No. Pupils

Grade Levels

Contact Person

2. Title VII Amount 4

No. Pupils

Grade Levals

Contact Person

3. Other Amounts $

No. Pupils

Grade Levels

Contaest Person

Total Pupils (unduplicated])

Rev!ewer(s)

Date(s) of Visit
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MANAGEMENT COMPOMNENT: Attach any nceded documentation.

ll

6.

How wero studonts selected?

How were classroom assignments made?

When and how were parents notified?

What are the goals of the program?

Have planned activities been implemented on time?

How are state special allowancé funds spent?

Observations:



INSTRUCTIONAL COMPONENT:
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flave components of the statewide

design been implemented? Describe.

The basiec concepts initiating the child into the school
environment are taught in the language he brings from

home.

Language development is provided in the child’s dominant

language.

Language development is provided in the child’s second

language.

Subject matter and concepts
dominant language.

Subject matter and concepts
second language.

Specific attention is given
in the child.

At what point is the second
and written) instituted?

are taught in the child’s

are taught in the child’s

to develop a positive identity

language instruction (oral
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8. Are concepts taught in the child’s dominant language as
indicated in standard scope and sequence charts?

9. Observations:

STAFF DEVELOPMENT COMPONENT: Attach any needed documentation.

1. Status of instructional staff:

Name Status Comments




170

2, Attach Staff Development Schedule showing:
a. TEA Tecacher Training Institutes attended;
b. Dates of district in-service programs;
c. Topics for in-service sessions; and
d. Names of persons to conduct in-service sessions,

3. Observations:

PARENT AND COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT COMPONENT:

Describe briefly the activities in which the parents and
community members will be involved. Specifically note all
planning, implementation, and evaluation of the school’s
bilingunal program.
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MATERIALS COMPONENT

1. State—adopted materials in use

(Specify by title, grade, and language)

2. Other materials in use

(Specify by title, grade, and language)

Materials and equipment are:
Yes No

. in working and usable condition

. current and up-to-date
. in use in the classroom
. centrally stored

. available to teacher upon request
. available to teacher automatically

. checked out to each teacher and/or
classroom on a permanent (yearly)
basis
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EYALUATION COMPOMNENT:

Does the Evaluation Design follow an
appropriate format?

Do all the behavioral objectives contain
the following elements?

+ target group or individual

.« behavior or product to be developed

« level of acceptable performance

. units and means of performance measurement

. conditions for measurement

Lisc title and publisher of language assessment instruments
used by the district to identify children of limited English
speaking ability and language dominance.

List title and publisher of testing instruments used to
measure academic achievement.

Is data collection proceeding on schedule and available as
stated in the evaluation design?
Yes No

GENERAL OBSERVATIONS: Make observations concerning materials
selection, use; classroom management; staffing; etc.
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Exhibit No. 7

a_ﬂ 177¢

OFFICE OF EDUCATION GRANTS TO

CORPUS CHRISTI I.S.D.

Programif Program Name FY '73 FY '74 FY '75 FY '76
13.403 Bilingual Ed. 87,000 105,400 155,000 143,643
13.427 Educational Deprived

Children-~Handicapped 1,000 14,500 7,142
13.428 ESEA, Title I A 1,264,686 1,014,789 1,662,442 1,416,267
13.428 ESEA, Title I C 40,883 53,167 37,765 38,210
13.433 Follow Thirough 252,912 282,586 263,292 260,820%
13.478 SAFA Maint. & Oper. 1,079,094 321,204 995,804 578,354
13.479 National Defense

Ed. Act, Title III 32,976 25,589 18,060 12,840
13.480 ESEA, Title II 85,328 75,739 78,672 ———
13.492 Upward Bound = 0————- 69,000  -———— = -
13.502 Voc, Ed, Adm, 153,342 84,362 84,849 Phased ocut
13.516 ESEA, Title III

Pre-sch., El. & Sec.,

Special Projects 10,632 e ———— —m
13.519 ESEA, Title III

Sup. Ed. Center/Serv. 165,620 191,234 177,857 65,924
13.519 PL 93-380, Title IV C ——— mmmee e 180,892
13.525 ESAA, Basic —_— fo, 360 157,450
13.570 PL 93-380, Title IVB = =~———== = =——==  —ee—e 61,751
TOTAL 3,172,473 2,224,070 3,488,241 3,048,293
GRAND TOTAL 11,933,077

* Requested

amount -,
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Moy Y2, 1978

Dr. Y. L. Lrockette
Commissioner of Education
Texas Ldacation Agency
State Loard of Education
Austin, Texas Y8711

Dear Dr. Brocketts:

¥e appreciated the opportunity to meet with you &né wmembers of your stafl
in Ballas on February 20, 1976, for the purposa of discussing the current
efforts being uade by ‘l.!:e Sta te of Texas to provide erual cducational

opportunities for national origin minoxity studeats withu liadted Loplish

;n.a-q.m' ability, Wo welcomed the forum that allowed you and xeprosenta—
tives of other state organizations prosent to shaxe v:n.n us

the concerns
of eo.. sciicol  districts about tihe feasicility of inpidme ntmf the Pepaxt-

moat's YTask Force Findings Specifying Rermedies Available for Llisn -m"“in'f
Pdst Bducat:.on‘.l Fractices Ruled Unlawiful Under Lau v. Nichols™ (L
Reazdies).

L'

b" a 'I‘d < 1‘0 ce Gesi 2
(’iotricts Iin uevelur)mg "olum:a*y -)lrms ior conplmncr_ w:u_h 'Iitl VI o*"
the Civil Rigits fct of 1244, Tie Remedies cutline educaeional approache
wirich would conatitute appropriate actien to be taxen by a schwol m.eric*'
‘to open its iastructional prograa to studeats currently foreclosed from
effective participation in that program. Thesecapproaches are intend

to be illustrative rathex than exhaustive "1\lt‘10u-'n tirey should provide
‘substantial assistance to school distriets seefcmn' reredies which would

be lezully acceptable to OCR In a variety of circumtances, they do not
foreclosa the use of other educational approaches which cen be demonstrated
to have equal promise in meeting the needs of limited or non-English
speaking students in a school districte

As part of ycur concern with the Lon Remedies, you requested that this
Office examine carelully the efloris of the State to iwplement a stote-
wide bilingual program for students with limited English speaking abili-
ties (LLSA), end to consider that effort as adequate to meet the current
requirements of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.


https://l.lCt:i.on
https://11pp_ropriD.tt
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, cremns we AEALTH, EoJCALcon, AND WELFARE
o~ % = Dr, Brockette

The document, prepared by a member of your staff, entitled A Comparisen of
the HEW Lau Remedies to State Law and State Poard of Education Policy, was

very helprful to us in understanuing the State's percepiion or the uiscrep—
ancies between the State law/Board of Education policy ca bilinpual educa-
tion and the Lau Reiwedies.

We should state from tha outset that we are in general agreement with your
characterization of the discrepancies stated in the comparison document,
Thexefore, our reaction to your document, as set forth below, concentrates
more on providing an explanation for those areas where the Lau Remedies are
different from, or go beyond, the State requircinent. Also, we have taken
the liberty to point out additional discrepancies or problems with the
implementation of the State bilingual prograia, based upon further analysis
of the documents you provided us as well as information obtained from ouxr
on-gite reviews of school districts during the past several years.

I. Identification of the Student's Primary or Home Longuage

Proper identification and assessment of a student®s langusge is
perhaps the single most iaportant element of a Title VI plan
des:.l,ned to remedy past discri*unato:.y pracu.ccs against studentsg
1th limited Inglish speaking abilities. It is 1.1113 initial
1den1_1f1c‘.1_10n and assessi2nt that detexriaines not only those
students who will receive additional educational responses but
also the type of appropriate responses 1o be provided, Thus, the
Remedies call for u systematic process for the determination of
home language and for the assesswent of lanyuage frecuency. The
underlying assumption is that school districts st ke able to
assess the degrze to which each student functions in one or wore
languages in orxder to provide an appropriate educational. response.

The overall importance of this language identification and assess-
ment area 1s stressed in the hemedies and examples are given there
of some procedures to be followed by school districts. We should
point out that observation of the student in the home is not one
of the requirements. We should also note that other metnods for
the identification and assessuent of language will be accepted, if
it can be demonstrated that such methods are effective in the
identification and assessment of language proficiency.

The State requirements for language identification and assessrent,
as defined by State law and State Board policy, set forth some
positive guldelines for school districts to follow. As was noved
in the comparison document, the State's assessnent eriteria do not
provide for the categorization of students according to language
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proficiency, other than to differentiate between students with
limited Inglish speaking abilities (LESA) from those who are

English lampuage proricient,

11.

Even with that differentiation, it appears that local school
districts have wide latitude in determining their own policy,
methods and criteria for ideatifying LESA children. From our
on-site reviews in school districts that are implementing the
State bilingual program, we have found a variety of assessment
procedures in use, most of which appeared to operate to provide
a limited numbex of LESA children. TFor example, in one school
district, wonolingual English speaking first grade teachers
recomnended Spanish surnamed students for further screening for
possible placenent into the State program. Language assessments
were then coapleted by a bilingual person who used a locally
developed verbal test devised for the purpose of deteraining
vwhich students would participate in the State program. Bilingual

teechers provided the fuxther assesssents only with :r_‘i\oge students
referred by the monolingual ELnglish speaking teacheYs.

—

In ancther school district visited by staff from this Qffice, wed .
fornd that adecuate effcrts were made to assess the language T
skills of students vho attended schools where Title VII Bilingual
Programs were located, lowever, no languzge assessments were
attempted for hundreds of Spanish surnamed students who attended
other schools in the distriet.

Ye have aiso observed from our reviews that efforts are not being
nade by school districts to identify students of LESA above the
elementory grades.

Diagnostic/Prescriptive Approuach

The diagnostic/prescriptive approach, as described in the Remedies,
is consistent with a basic Title VI requirement that specific
remedial action mmst be taken by a scheool district to correct -the
gficcts of past discriminatory practices,

In addition to correcting the past discrimination, a noncomplying
district must develop procedurcs designed to prevent the continu-
ance or recurrence of the discriminatory practices. Fron a Title
Bl perspective, it is not sufficient for a school district to treat
a group of students who have been subjected to discfimination with
2 general or "benign" approach. Thus, the diagnostic/preseriptive
approach described in the Renedies, or a similar approach, would be
required to assure that the necessary corrective action had been
teken undexr Title VI.
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Iil.

In the comparison document you identify a diserepancy in this
gection as follows:s

¥, ..prescriptive measures rust be designed to bring
students to the performance level expzcted of non-
minority students in the State and LEAs., The State
and its LEAs do not identify achievement expectation
levels based on ethnicity.h

Wa pust emphasize that OCR would require u echool district to
develop a plan consistent with the principles set forxth in the
Remedies only whexe there is sufficient evidence which reveals
that national origin minority students with lirmited English
spaaldng abilities have Leen excluded from effective partici-
pation in the district's cducaticnal program. Since, in a
particular school distriet, lecale, or stute, the achieverment
level for minority students would likely Le adversely impacted

by past and present discriminatory practices against LESA students,
Title VI xequirxes scheol districts to tie the goal for the educa-
tional achievement of LESA students to that of non-minority stidents.

Edueational Program Selection

Educational projram selection options in the Lau Remedies are a

logical extension of the identification/assessuent and diagnostic/
prescriptive procedures.

A1) students whosze home Jongmuage is other than Enslish and who
are identified as LESA children, must be provided with one, or
a combination of, the cducatioral projgrams epecified in the
Remadies, We believe this process assures a reasonable ind
appropriate educational response for each student wliose educa-
tional progress would be impeded by imrersion into a traditional
English dominant currxiculum,

In contrast, the State program of bilinguzl education centers in
grades K-3 (by 1976-77), with options for ‘some echool (istricts
to expand the program into grades 4 and 5. Im addition, on-site
reviews of several school districts in the State have revealed
discrepancies in the zctual implementation of the State bilingual
program. The pertinent elements of Texas Education Cede Section
21.454, "Program Content: Method of Instruction,” provides that
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Iv.

v.

the bilingual education program established by & school district
shall be a full-time program of instruction in all subjects reguired
by law or by the school district, except fox predominantly nonverbal
subjects, such as art, music, and physical education.

Our reviews of school districts implementing the State bilinpual
program revealed that, in practice, students with LESA are not
provided a full-time bilingual Jnstruction program. Instruction

in the native language is generally limited to the language arts

area and then for only one or two periods of the school day. The
emphasis of the State bilingual program at this point in time zppears
to be on the development of English language skills (ELSL) rather then
on the development of cognitive skills in the native language. Addi-
tionally, the State program requires that LESA students move ocut of
the bilingual program at the end of grade three (grades 4 and 5 are
optional); whereas, OCR's position, s explezined in the Remedies, is
that instruction in the native language is required until such a

time the distrxict cun demonstrate, uwsing predictive data, the stu-
dent's ability to function in a dominant English language curridulunm,
Thus, the Rewedies stronsly support the teaciiing of English as a
second lenfuase as part of the instructional program, but not at the
expense of the LESA prudents’ mastery of the copnitive skills and |
'sibject nmatter content expeeted of other students in the districr. |

Recuired and Llective Courses

This section of the Remedies applies primarily to the school dis-
tricts vhere minority students have been denied opportunities to
enroll in certain courses because of a discriminatory effect result
ing from the student’s inability to speak and understtmd English, or
because of some other discriminatory practice. If minority enroll-
ment in required or elective courses has been limited, a school
district would be required to develop affirmative steps similar to
those described in the Reredies, as part of an overall plam to
comply with Title VI.

Instructional. Personnel Reaquirements

It is general knowledge that many school districts in the State do
not currently employ sufficient nunbers of teachers with the necessary
teaching slkills in a second language, Those distriets, if found to
be in noncompliance with Title VI, would be reguired to implement a
detailed in-service training program similar to the one described in
the Remedies (in addition to a plan for securing the necessary staff).
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VI.

The Remedies specificaily tie instructional personnel requireoents
for a school district to the educational need for personnel who
are linguistically/culturally faniliar with the background of
students identificd in Section I as nceding additional programmatic
responses, A school distriet that does not have tiie number of
qualified teachers necessary to fully iaplerment the instructional
progran for LESA students rmst submit a plan for seeuring such
teachers. This cducational-related reauirewment may be separate
from the necessity for some school districts to develop and imple-
went affircative action plans to recruit ond. employ edditional
ninority teachers in oxder to corrcet specific discriumiratory
lLiring practices under Title VI.

The State's program for issuance of bilingual education cexrtifi-
cates and endorsements is a step in the direction of providing
cualified bilingual teaccher’. Ve are also aware that a substantial
anount of Pederal funds are being used by the State to provide
language training for nonolinyual tczchers. Although it is reason-
able that language training for monolingual teachers will assist
those teachers in worwing with LESA students in the classroon, and
with bilingual teachers ond aides in team tesching situationg, wi.
have not scen eny evidence that this approach will provide an aviil-
able pool of teachers who cen function in the classroom in a language
other than English. Our on-site reviews to date have revealed that
local school districts are using differing methods for deteraining
the longuage profieiency of bilingual teaciers, soae of which are
questionable in terms of assuring the teaciers' competency to teach
in a language other than Luglish.

We must point out that this Office will accept amy plan that works
to provide the necessary instructional persomnel specified in the
Remedies. If your efforts to retrain monolingual tcachers are not
effective, you wiay wish to consider other methods to achieve youxr
goal, such as encouraging local school districts, through financizl

incentives, to implement carcer development programs for bilingual
teacher aides.

Racial/Cthnic Isolotion and/or Identifiability of Schools ond
Classes

Althiongh no diserepancy in this section was noted in the comparizon
docuuent between State TawState Board Poliey md the Remedies, we
believe that further clavitication is needed, particularly with
regard to racially/ethnically izolated and/or identifiable classes.
For example, the Texas Education Code, Section 21.454 provides for
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the partieipction of children in the bilingual program with English
speaking students in nonvexbal subjects, but it does not spaak
directly to the integration of tiesc students into the other acadeaic
oreas. From our visits, we have found many school districts who are
segregating Spenish speaking students into separate, isolated classes
for the entire school day, with the possible exception of physical
education, art and music. These school districts invariably use the
State law as the justificatlion for the sepresation. We should point
out that some school districts in the State that we have visited axe
implementing the State bilingual program and often additional bi-
Iingual programs, without segregating one group of students from
another. Theretore, we rast conclude that the State's cormaitment

to comply with Title VI in the assignment of students to classes is
elther not widely published, oxr it is ignorcd by many school districts,.

We realize that there are instances where some isolation of students
may be necessary. In those situations we are willing to review {he
specific educational justiileation for such isolation in light of
the current Title VI recuirements. As a general xule, Title VI
policy, as deseribed in the Recedies, is that it is not legadly
permissible or educationally necessary to have racially/ethnically
isolated and/or identifiable classes in oxder to respond to studints
lunguage needs.

VIL. Notification to Parents of Students those Primary or ilome Lunguage
1g Otpex Taan jnelish :

We believe that the diserepancies noted in the comparison document
for this scetion are &ccurate. The Office for Civil Riguts assunes,
as stated in the Remedies, that all information sent from the schosl
to the homes iz inmportant ond therefore must be provided to parents
of LESA children in the necessary languages.

Equally important is the way in which the school district informs
minoxity and non-minority parents of all aspects of the programs
desigred for LLSA childrep, If the program is characterized as a
rempdial program, or a Yduaping™ place for minority childrin, then
it obviously will not receive the support of minority or non-minority
parents. A1l educational approaches for LESA students must be on
integral. poxt of the totul school curriculum and @)l parents should
be informed of this fact,
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VIII., Evalnation

A school distriet submitting a Title VI compliance plan embodying the
principles set forth in the Lau Remedies would be required to submit
a "product and process" evaluation as characterized in the comparison
docurent. The cvaluation document should be specific with regaxd to
the process used or to be uscd in implementing cach section of the
plan., The documentation of process is particularly important for
a1l plans in Section I, II, and IIX, where a specific group of
students are to be identified and provided with appropriate educa-
{ional responses. The process cevaluation of the district's efforts
to meet the instructional persomnel. xequircients is also more impor-
tant thun some of the othex sections of a plan that do not require
on-going aetivities. Stated end results ox Yproduects® for cach com—
ponent of the plan are nccessary, as well a3 the projected time lines
for the completion of major activities.

The requirerment for the above type of evaluation is essential, from
OCR's viewpoint, to assure that a school district determined to Le
in noncoapliance with Title VI is making every reasonable effort to
correct past discriminatory practices. Tiwe evaluustion component}
will olso assist a school district and the O0ffice in identifying-”
those areas vhere additional tecimical assistance may be needed to
assure the success of the plmm.

It appears that elements of the State's evalmation design for districts
implementing a State bilingual program could be incorporated into an
evaluation for a Title VI plun. A najor difference to keep in mind

is that the State's eviduation desipn is specifieally directed toward
evaluating a district's efforts to implement the State bilingual pro-
gram,’ whereas, the evaluation design described in the Reaedies would
address all areas of noncompliance with Title VI. Also, the State
poliey does not require an evaluation design, but states that "school

districts operating bilingual programs should develop an evaluation
design..."

We hope that the above discussion of the comparison document and other
issues related to 'the State bilingual program dnd Title VI compliance will
be of assistance to you, your stuaff and the State Board of Ldueation in
assessing the current posture of the State with regaxrd to school districts
that may be recuired to develop plans to comply with Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964. From our viewpoint, there are some significant gaps
between the current State offerings for LESA students and the Title VI
requirements. We are willing to work with you in every possible way to
close those gaps. One of the issues discussed at our meeting in February,
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but not included #n the comparison document, was the cost of implementing
tho Remedies, You md representatives of other State organizations present,
expressed a concexn that compliance with Title VI in this area would re-
quire a prohibitive expenditure of additional woney. We da not believe
this to be nccessarily a foct, although certainly some additional initial
expenditures may be necessary in those school districts that have made
little progress in providing cducational opportunities for LESA students.
The zetual cost for implementing the types of educational approaches
desceribed in the Renedies should not be congidered in isolation, but
rather in conjuvction with the local, State und Federal resources currently
available for school districts. Hore ilmportantly, we must consider the
Immen costs of continued failure to meet tne educational needs of a size-
able portion of our student pormlation and to provide these students with
the samz copportunities and the same access to the educational projgram as
211 other etudents. The initial steps already taken by the State and

many local achool distxicts iIn the dircction of e¢ual cducational oppor-
tunity deuwonstrates the capability to Go whatever is necessary te completo
‘the job.,

As you xecall, we agreed to meet with you ond your staff following your
receipt of this letter to further discuss wiys in which the State and
Federal requirements can be branght together. We are willing to partici-
pate In such discussions and to exnlore uny eltexmatives tlat ave con-
gistent with the reouirements of Title VI. Curreatly, staff from this
Office are conducting on-sito reviews of fourteen school districts in
Texas 10 determine those districts' compliance with Title VI in the aren
of equal edncational sexrvices for gsitndents vhese heme language is other
than Enylish. These reviews are scheduled for comnletion dn early May.
Qur tampet date for subuitting letters of determination to the fourteen
districts Is June 15, 1976, Thereflore, we would supgest that any addi-
tional meetings between the State and this 0ffice be scheduled prior to
dJune 1.

e look forward to heaxring from you and to working with you in thils
endeavor.

Sincerely yours,

Dorothy B. Stuck
Director
Office for Civil Rights
Reglon VI
bee: Clarke, Stuck, Henderson,
Howell, Stokes
OCR: JLittlejohn:mh:5-10-76
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